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NO. 1
WRIT OF _SUMMONS.

1960 No.2079 DEMERARA

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH GUIANA

CIVIL JURISDICTION

BETWEEN: CLEMENT HUGH DaSILVA ‘e Plaintiff
- ang -

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION,

a body corporate, incorporated by
Ordinance, No.,l3 of 1954 whose

office is gituate at lots 20 and

21 Water Street, Georgetown,

Demerara voo Defendants

ELIZABETH THY SECCND, by the grace of God, of
the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland and of her other realms and territories,
Queen, Head of the Commonwealth, Defender of the
Faith.

To: British Guiana Credit Corporation, a body

In the Supreme
Court of
British Guiana

No.l

Writ of
sSummons

13th December
1960



In the Supreme
Court of
British Guiana

No,.,l

Writ of
Summons

13th December
1960
continued

2.

corporate, incorporated by Ordinance, No. 13 of
1954, whose office is situate at lots 20 and 21
Water Street, Georgetown, in the County of
Demerara.

WE COMMAND YQU, that within (10) days
after the service of this Writ on you, inclusive
of the day of such service, you do cause an
appearance to be entered for you in an action at
the suit of the abovenamed Plaintiff; AND TAKE
NOTICE that in default of your so doing the
Plaintiff may proceed therein and judgment may
be given in your absence.

Witness the Honourable Joseph Alexander
Tuckhoo, Chief Justice of the Colony of British
Guiana, the 13th day of December, in the yecar of
Our Lord, one thousand nine hundred and sixty.

N.B. The Defendants may appear hereto by enter~
ing an appearance either personally or by
Solicitor at the Reglgtry atbt Georgetown.

INDORSEMENT OF CLAIM.,

The Plaintiffs' claim against the Defendant
is for -~

(a) a declaration that he is the General
Manager of the defendant Corporation and that he
is entitled to occupy that post and perform the
duties and functions attached to that office by
virtue of his appointment made by the Defendants
on the 22nd day of Sepbember, 1960, and communi-
cated in writing by the Defendants to him on the
26th day of September 1960, and accepted by him
in writing on the 3rd day of Octoper, 1960, all
at Georgetown, in the county of Demerara and
colony of British Guiana.

(vb) in the alternative the Plaintiff claims
the sum of F100,000.00 (one hundred thousand
dollars) as damages for breach of contract %o
employ the Plaintiff as the General lanager of
the Defendant Corporation, after he was duly
appointed and after he accepted such appointment.

(¢) such further or other reclief as may be
juS't .
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(d) Costs.

Zvelyn A. Luckhoo
Solicitor for the Plaintiff.

This Writ was issued by Evelyn Ada Luckhoo,
of and whose address for service and place of
busginess is at the Office of Luckhoo and Luck-
hoo, Legal Practitioners, of 2, Croal Street,
Georgetown, Demerara, Solicitor for the Plain-
tiff herein, who resides at 64 Brickdam, George-
town, Demerara, in the Colony of British Guiana.

Evelyn A. Luckhoo
Solicitor for the Plaintiff.

Dated at Georgetown, Demerara,
this 13th day of December,
1960 L]

AUTHCRITY TO ACT AS SOLICITOR
IS HEREWITH FILED.

No.2

(Title as No.l)

STATEMENT OF CLAIM.

1. The Plaintiff is the Deputy Financial
Secretary of the Colony of British Guiana.

(a) He has obtained the following certificates,
namely, Cambridge School Certificate
(Hons.s, (Distinction and 6 Credits),
Asgociate Member of the Chartered Insgtitute
of Secretaries, Intermediate Certificate of
the Association of Certified and Corporated
Lccountants.

(b) He received the following training, namely,
a residential course of one year at Oxford
University, which forms part of the course
for the B, Litt. degree in Public Finance
and the technigues of loan-capital and
fixed capital development.

(c) He has the following experience: Public

In the Suprene
Court of
British Guiansa

No.l

Writ of
Summons

13th December
1960
continued

No.2

Statement of
Claim

30th December
1960
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Statement of
Claim

30th December
1960
continued

(d)

(e)

(f)

2.

4.

administration including service in
senior administrative pests such as
Private Secretary to the Governor,

Clerk to the Legislative Council, "
Clerk to the Executive Counicil, District
Commissioner, Chief Establishment
Officer.

His present duties include the assessing
of industrial proposals for tax and
cugstoms duties, concessions and the pre-
paration of the Colony's 1960 - 1964
Development Programme.

He is also familiar with the economic
development's proposals of the country
and the Government's policy, and has
dealt successfully with overseas bodies
such ag the Colonial Office, the United
Nations Social Fund and the Internation-
al Bank for Reconstruction and Develop-
ment .

He has also been respongible for ap-
praising the effects of the various
Government Development Schemes on the
economic development of British Guiana
and hag done this in respect of very
large drainage and irrigation and land
develorment projects.

The Defendants are a body corporate

incorporated by Ordinance No.l3 of 1954, with
registered office at lots 20-21 Water Street,
Georgetown, in the county of Demerara and
colony of British Guiana.

3.

By notice appearing in the daily news~

papers of this Colony and in the West Indies
in the month of August, 1960, the Defendants
announced the vacancy of the post of General

Manager for their Corporation, invited appli-
cations to fill the said vacaency and intimated
that a copy of particulars could be obtained
on application. The Plaintiff verbally re-
quested and obtained from the Defendents!
gecretary a copy of the particulars which con-
tained the terms and conditions of employment,
and which inter alia stated:

(a) +that the post carried a salary of
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£11,280.00 per annum, a Tree partly~ In the Supreme
furnlshed house and leave facilities Court of
in accordance with Government's Gener- British Guiansa
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40

al Order.

(b) that leave passages would be paid to a No.2
maximum of %2,500.00; Statement of
Claim

(c)
(a)

4.

that motor car allowance would be pro- 30th December

vided; 1960

that the appointment will normally pe  COomtinued

for three years in the first instance.

The Plaintiff accordingly submitted an

application dated 24th August, 1960, to the
Defendants addressed to the Defendants‘ Chair-
men in which he offered himself for appointment
to fill the said vacancy as Defendants' General
Manager supplying his qualifications, training
and experience,

5.

On Tuesday the 22nd September, 1960, at

a properly constituted meeting of the Defend-
ants' Board under item "appointment of General
Manager vice W.G. Carmichael" all applications
wnich had been received as a result of the
advertisements published locally and in the
West Indies as aforesaid were carefully consider—~
ed and the Plaintiff was unanimously selected
for the said post as their General Manage?.
The Defendants further decided that the Plain-
tiff be notified of his said appointment and
that all unsuccesgful applicants be notified
that the vacancy had been filled.

6.

By letter dated the 26th September, 1960,

addressed to the Plaintiff and signed by the
Secretary of the Defendants' Board the Defend-
ants communicated to the Plaintiff the fact
that he wags appointed their General Manager on
the terms and conditions as advertised.

7.

The Plaintiff duly acknowledged and con—

firmed the said appointment by letter to the
Defendantsg dated 3rd October, 1960, that he was
appointed their General Manager on the terms
and conditions as advertised.

8.

At a properly constituted meeting of the

Defendants' Board held on 27th October, 1960,



In the Supreme
Court of
British Guiana

No.2

Statement of
Claim

30th December
1960
continued

6.

under item "appointment of General Manager" the
Plaintiff's aforesaid letter dated 3rd October,
1960, was read and noted at the sald meeting.
The minutes of the previous meeting held on the
22nd September, 1960, were read by the Secre~
tary of the Board and confirmed by the Chairman.

g. The Plaintiff has received no further
communication from the Defendants but by virtue
of his being a member of the Defendants' Board
he received later in November, 1960, a copy of
the minutes of the meeting of the Defendants!
Board held on the 1llth November, 1960, and then
for the first time he became aware of efforts
to replace him by anobther person for the post
of General Manager.

10. The Plaintiff is a member of Defend-
ants! Corporation having been appointed by the
Governor as the Official member of the Board
by virtue of being the holder of the Office of
Deputy Financial Secretary. The Plaintiff as
a member of the said Corpcration never partici-
pated in the consideration of any matters
relating to the appointment of the General
Manager and never woted or took part in any !
discussions relating to the said appointment,
but withdrew from the meeting whenever there
was any consideration of the said post of
General Manager.

11. By letter dated 7th December, 1960,
written by Solicitors on behalf of the Plain-
tiff to the Defendants, the Plaintiff claimed
that he was the duly appointed General Manager
of the British Guiana Credit Corporation, that
he was ready eand willing to take over and
assume the respongibilities of his post within
a reasonably short time, and that he was treat-
ing and regarding himself as the duly appointed
General Manager. To this letter the Plaintiff
has received no reply.

l2. Following upon the Defendants' afore-

said letter of appointment of the 26th September,

1960, the Plaintiff did the following to his
detriment:-

(a) on the 16th October, 1960, he made the
usual application for the permission of
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the Government of British Guiana to re-
tire from the Public Service with know-
ledge that such permission would
follow automatically upon the applica~
tion by any Senior Administrative
Officer who had reach the age of 50
years ss he had done;

(b) +the Plaintiff rented his home at Lama
Avenve, Bel Air, Park, for an indefin-
ite period, since under the terms of
his appointment as Defendants' General
Manager, the Defendants provided a
free partly furnished house which the
Plaintiff accepted;

(¢) +the Plaintiff arranged his business and
domestic affairs to fit in with his
retirement from the Government and the
taking up of his new appointment as
Defendants' General Manager;

(d) the Plaintiff formally sought permis-
sion to retire from the Civil Service
of British Guiana only because of his
appointment as Defendants' General
Manager. In so doing, he would lose
the benefits which would have accrued
to him if his retiremcnt instead had
been effected at a later age, namely,
55 years of age. The said benefits
consist of increased pension, gratuity
and the like.

13. The Defendants in breach of their agree-
ment as aforestated to employ the Plaintiff as
their General Manager, purported to appoint
someone else to the said post in or about Novem-
ber, 1960.

14. The Plaintiff's appointment was already
known in and out of this Colony. The Defend-
ants permitted and/or acquiesced in announce-
ments in the Press and over the Radio in or
about December «s.... 1960 that the said vacan-
cy had been filled and the further announcement
of a name to £ill the said vacancy which was
not the name of the Plaintiff.

i5. The Plaintiff has suffered much humili-
ation embarrassment and loss of reputation as a

In the Supreme
Court of
British Guiana

No.2

Statement of
Claim

30th December
1960
continued
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Statement of
Clainm

30th December
1960
continued

8.

result of the aforesaid announcements, and would
be adversely affected 1f someone else is allowad
to perform the functions and duties of the
General Manager of the Defendants, after he the
Plaintiff had been appointed by the Defend@ants
so to do and after the establishment, as afore-

- gaid, of a contract between himself and the

Defendants so to do.

16. The Plaintiff will suffer substantial
damages if he is deprived of the benefits of his
contract with the Defendants to serve ag the
General Manager of their Corporation.

17. The Plaintiff therefore claims against
the Defendants:

(a) a declaration that he is the General
Manager of the Defendants' Corporation
and that he is entitled to occupy that
post and perform the duties and funtions
attached to that office by virtue of his
appointment made by the Defendants on
the 22nd day of September, 1960, and
communicated in writing by the Defend-
ants to him on the 26th day of Septem-
ber, 1960, and confirmed by him in
writing on the 3rd day of October, 1960,
all at Georgetown, in the County of
Demerara and colony of British Guians;

(b) in the zlternative the Plaintiff claims
the sum of $100,000.00 (One hundred
thousand dollars) as damages for breach
of contract to employ the Plaintiff as
the General Manesger of the Defendantg'
Corporation, after his offer so to
serve, his appointment by the Defendants
as such and his subsequent confirmation
thereof;

(¢) an injunction restraining the Defendants
their servants and/or agents from fill-
ing the said vacancy by means of a per-—
son other than the Plaintiff;

(4) such further or other relief as may be
just;
(e) Costs.

18. Particulars of special damages which the
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Plaintiff will suffer and which is veing
claimed in the alternative under paragraph
AIVIEE

To lLogs of contract for minimum
period of 3 years at #11,280.00
per annum $33,840.00

To loss of free house partly
furnished house provided by
Defendants and presently

10 rented at £225.00 per month,
for a period of 3 years 8,100.00
To loss of leave passages 2,500.00
To loss consequent on premature
retirement 13,550.00
#57,990.00

General damages (claimed under
paragraph 17(o) 42,010.00

Total damages claimed under
paragraph 17(b) if Plaintiff
20 is denied his appointment as o
General lanager £1.00,000.00

Evelyn 4. Luckhoo
Solicitor for the Plaintiff.

Edward V. Luckhoo Lionel Luckhoo
0f Counsgel Of Coungel

To: The abovenamed Defendants
and
To: H.W, DeFreitas, Esq.

their Solicitor,
30 of High Street, Georgetown, Demerara.

Dated at Georgetown, Demerara,
this 30th day of December, 1960.

In the Supreme
Court of
British Guiana

No.2

Statement of
Claim

30th December
1960
continued



In the Supreme
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British Guiana

No,.,3
Defence

13th January,
1961

No.3

(Title as No,l)

DEFENCE

(1) Save as is hereinafter expressly admitted,
the Defendants deny each and every allegation of
fact in the Statement of Claim as if the same
were set forth herein seriatim and specifically
traversed.

(2) Paragraph 2 of the Statement of Claim is
admitted. 10

(3) Except that they say that the notices in
the newspapers stated that the Defendants wished
to consider applications by suitably qualified
persons for appointment as General Manager, the
Defendants admit the allegations contained in
paragraph 3 of the Statement of Claim.

(4) As regards paragraph 4 of the Statement

of Claim, the Defendants admit that the Plain-

tiff applied for appointment as General Manager

of the Corporation. 20

(5) So far as paragraph 5 of the Statement of
Claim is concerned, the Defendants deny that the
meeting of 22nd September, 1960, was properly
constituted or that the Plaintiff was unanimous-
ly selected as General Manager. No Secretary
was present when the said appointment was being
discussed. The voting procedure was irregular.
The Defendants will contend that the decisions
taken at the said meeting were invalid.

(6) As regards paragraph 6 of the Statement of 30
Claim, the Defendants say that by letter dated

26th September, 1960, the Defendants' secretary
informed the Plaintiff that he was selected for
appointment on the terms and conditions as

advertised and requested to be informed as early

as possible how soon he would be able to take up

the appointment.

(7) The Defendants expressly deny the allega-

tions of paragraph 7 of the Statement of Claim.

The Plaintiff wrote to the Defendants on 3rd 40
October, 1960, as follows:
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11.

"T enclose a draft agreement of service
which I shall enter in with the Corpor-
ation. I accept the appointment.”

The Plaintiff enclosed a draft agreement with
and attached schedule that introduced the fol-
lowing provisions that either differed stibstan-
tially from the terms and conditions of the”
Corporation's advertisement or were absent from
the said advertisement:-

(a) The engagement of the Plaintiff for a
period of six years' resident service
comprising two tours of three years
each.

(p) an allowance in lieu of a free, partly-
furnished house;

(¢c) determination of the Plaintiff's employ-
ment by twelve months' notice in writing
by the Defendants or *the payment to him
of six months' salary;

(d) determination of the Plaintiff's employ-
ment by the Plaintiff, at any time afver
the expiration of three months'
residential service, by the giving of
three months' notice in writing by the
Plaintiff or on payment by the Plaintiff
of one month's salary to the Defendants:

(e) provisions as to further employment; and

(f) provisions in case of ill-health. The
Plaintiff also intimated that he intend-
ed to apply for release from the Govern-
ment.,

(8) In'reply to paragraph 8 of the Statement
of Claim, the Defendants say that the attempted
confirmation on 27th October, 1960, of the min-
utes of the meeting of 22nd September, 1960, was
a nullity as all the members present at the
later meeting, except the Chairman, opposed
their confirmation.

(9) The Defendants deny that the Plaintiff
learnt only late in November, 1960, that another
person was being appointed General Manager. The

In the Supreme
Court of
British Guiana

No.3

Defence

13th January,
1961
continued
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12,

Plaintiff was aware since 27th October, 1960,
that the recommendation of his name as General
Menager had been considered by the Governdr-in-—
Council and that as a result the Defendants had
been requested by the Finanecial Secretary to
re-examine the sald recommendstions as the
Government was anxious that the best person
available should be obtained for the post of
General Manager-

(10) The Corporation with the approval of the
Governor-in--Council made an appointment of a
well qualified person to-the post of General
Manager on 16th December, 1960.

(11) As regards paragraph 10 of the Statement
of Claim, the Defendants say that the Plaintiff
assisted in the drafting of the advertisement
for the said post.

(12) With reference to parasraph 11 of the
Statement of Claim, the Defendants admit that
they received a letter dated 7th December, 1960,
written by Messrs. Luckhoo & Luckhoo on behalf
of the Plaintiff. That letter stated inter
alia that on the 3rd October, 1960, the Plain-
tiff had by letter accepted the appointment of
General Manager and that on the basis of the
offer which had been made by the Defendants on
the 26th September, 1960, and following his
acceptance the Plaintiff treat-3 his appointment
as being truly made and effected. The Plain-
tiff's solicitors never stated that the Plain-
tiff was ready and willing to sérve as General
Manager in accordance with the terms and con-
ditions of the Defendants' advertisement.

(13) The Defendants deny the allegation in
paragraph 12 of the Statement of Claim that per-
misgion for retirement from the Public Service
follows automatically upon the application by
any Senior Administrative Officer. The Plain-~-
tiff stated in his application that he was 48
years of age.

(14) Further in reply to paragraph 12 of the
Statement of Claim, the Defendants say that the
Plaintiff rented his house in anticipation of
and not in consequence of his alleged appoint-
ment. In May, 1960, the Plaintiff began
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negotiations through the Ministry of Communica~-
tions and Works for the letting of his house at
Lama Avenue and his house was occupied by
tenants from 11lth July, 1960. Moreover the -
Plaintiff is in g position to withdraw hisg TFex
quest for permission for release or retirement
from the Civil Service.

(15) As roegards paragraph 13 of the Statement
of Claim, the Defendants say that there was no
consensus ad idem betwesen She Plaintiff and them,
and will submit that the Plaintiff's letter to
them dated 3rd October, 1960, amounted to a re-
fusal of the terms and conditions comprised in
the advertisement and a counter-orfer of his own
which was never accepted by the Defendants.
Alternatively, the Plaintiff repudiated the
terms and conditions on which he was selected
for appointment as General Manager by introduc-
ing an addition and variation of terms contrary
to the wishes of the Defendants.

(16) As regards paragraph 14 of the Statement
of Claim, the Defendants say that they did not
make any announcement that the Plaintiff was
appointed General lManager.

(17) The Defendants deny paragraph 15 of the
Statement of Claim, and say that they did not
cause the Plaintiff any humiliation, embarrass~
ment or loss of reputation and that such an
allegation is unnecegsary and misleading and is
not a permissible head of damage in this type of
action.

(18) The particulars of special damage plead-
ed in paragraph 18 of the Statement of Claim
are not admitted.

(19) The Defendants will contend that any pur-
ported selection of the Plaintiff for appoint-
ment as General Manager of the Plaintiff's Cor-
poration was invalid and bad in law because:-

(a) The advertisements for appoiniments
were inserted in the newspapers in
hugust, 1960, without the prior approval
of the Governor-in-Council.

(v) The Secretary of the Corporation was not

In the Supreme
Court of
British Guiana

No;3

Defence

13th January,
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14.

In the Supreme legally entitled to write the letter of
Court of 26th September, 1960, to the Plaintiff.
British Guiana
e e (¢) No approval of the purported appoint-
No.3 ment of the Plaintiff as a Civil Serv-
* ant by the Governor-in-Council was
Defence ever obtained by the Defendants; and
igg? January, (d) The Plaintiff's alleged appointment was
continued ultra vires the provisions of the
British Guiana Credit Corporation Ordin-
ance, No.,13 of 1954.
Dated the 13th day of January, 196l.
David de Caires B.0O. Adams
SOLICITOR. CF COUNSEL.
No.4 NO.4
Particulars (Title as No,l)
of Defence
26th January PARTICULARS OF DEFENCE
1961

PARTICULARS REQUESTED BY PLAINTIFF!S SOLICITOR
BY LETTER DATED 10TH JANUARY, 1961.

UNDZR PARAGRAPH 5

(1) Meeting of 22nd September, 1960, was
not properly constituted as no Secretary to
the meeting was present.

(2) The vobting procedure was irregular
because although voting was by secret ballot,
there was no returning officer and no check was
made of the voting.

(3) The decisions taken at the said meet-
ing of the 22nd September, 1960, were invalid
because the meeting was not properly consti-
tuted and the voting procedure was irregular
and because of the other allegaticas in the
defence.

(4) The Defendants are not in a position
to say how many votes the Plaintiff received.
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UNDER PARAGRAPH 6 In the Supreme
: Court of
Letter of 26th September, 1960, was British Guiana
written after the invalid decisions of the e
meeting of 22nd September, 1960. No.4

UNDER PARAGRAPH 8 Particulars

. ) . of Defence
Name of person present at the meeting of o6th January

22nd September, 1960 who opposed the confirma- 1961

tion of the minutes of the meeting of 22nd Sep- continued
tember, 1960, was Gobin Biragie. All other
persons present at the meeting of 27th October,
1960, except the Chairman had been appointed as
members of the Board subsequent to 2Zznd Septem-—
ber, 1960. The said opposition was not record-
ed in writing in the minutes of 27th October,
1960.

UNDER PARAGRAPH 11

It is alleged that the Plaintiff prepared
the first draft of the advertisement for the
said post.

Georgetown, Demerara,
Dated this 26th January, 1961.

B.0. Adams
OF CQUNSEL.

S. Narain
SCLICITOR TO DERENDANTS .,

NO.5 No,.b

(Title as No.l) Reply
27th January,
REPLY 1961

RUPLY

1. The Plaintiff joins issue with the
Defendants on their defence,

2. The Plaintiff will contend the Defen-
dants' statement of defence does not provide
any excuse or rcason legally or otherwise for
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16.

a denial of the Plaintiff's claim.

3. The Plaintiff expressly denies that he
repudiated any terms and conditions on which
he was selected and appointed as General
Manager of the Defendants' Corporation and/or
that he introduced any addition and/or varia-
tion of any terms contrary to the wishes of the
Defendants.

4. The Plaintiff did "enclose" a draft
agreement of service which was submitted to the
Defendants for their consideration in as much
as all senior appointments of this class carry
a written agreement of service, which draft
was based on the standard Colonial Office and
Crown Agents form. The same was intended to
be and was understood Lo be no more than an aid
submitted for the benefit of the Defendants in
asgisting them to draw up a formal contract of
service, which the Plaintiff considered that
the Defendants would wish o do having regard
to what was done in the past. The Defendants
knew and understood that they could utilise so
much of Plaintiff's suggestions in the 8#id ~
draft as they might wish to use. = For &xample
(a) under paragraph 6 of the published terms it
ig stated "The appointment is non-pensionable
and will normally be for 3 years in the first
ingstance but the duration of the initial con-
tract is subject to a variation to meet indiv-
idual circumstances."  The Plaintiff in con-
sequence of the said provision merely suggested
in his draft that the contract might be for 2
tours of 3 years each; (b) Paragraph 5 of the
published terms, states: ~ "That the post
carried a free, partly furnished house and
leave facilities in accordance with the Govern-
ment General Orders and Regulations in force at
the time."  According to the Government's
General Order 209, "A house allowance is an
allowance granted to an Officer who is entitled
by virtue of the appointment he holds to free
guarters but for whom quarters are not avail-
able", The Plaintiff in consequence suggested
an allowance in lieu of a free partly furnished
house, intending this to be an alternative if
the house was not available. At no time did
the Defendants ever treat or consider the
Plaintiff's suggestion as being a counter offer,
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and at no time did the Defendants ever inform
the Plaintiff that his suggestion amounted to
a repudication or variation of the complete
and tinding contract of service.

5. The Plaintiff will object that the
Defendants are egtopped from challenging or im-
pugning the velidity of the Flaintiff's ap-
pointment as General lManager, having regard to
the fact that the some was made by them, duly
recorded in their minutes, duly communicated to
the Plaintiff and duly accepted and/or confirm-
ed by the Plaintiff.

6. The Plaintiff will object that the De-
fendants are estopped from saying and/or ought
not to be adnitted to say what they have said
paragraphs 5, 8, 15 and 19 of the statement of
defence, having regard tc the conduct of the
Defendants ag set out in the Plaintiff's State-
ment of Claim and having regard to Defendants'
own defence.

7. At all material times the Defendant
well knew and understood that the Flaintiff was
ready and willing and able to take up his
appointment as General lManager within a reason-
able time and/or as soon as he was released by
the Government, to which release he was
entitled.

8. The Plaintiff will contend that the
Defendants are incorporated under law and are
charged to perform their functions independent-
1y of political influences; that it is their
duty and function to appoint a General Manager
without the necessity of approval of the
Governor-in-Councils that it is not a condi-
tion precedent to the appointment of a General
Manager that the Governor-in-Council should
approve prior thereto; that it would be con-
trary to the express provision of section 6 of
Ordinance No,13 of 1954, to treat an act of
appointment of General lManager by the Defend-
ants as a recommendation to the Governor-in-
Council; that in the instant case political
influences and pressure have been brought to
seek to upset the Plaintiff's firm appointment
and instead to seek to secure a substituted
appointment by one who had been rejected by
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18.

the Defendants when the Plaintiff was
gelected.

9. The Plaintiff's experience, qualifica-
tion and suitebility was fully considered on
the 22nd September, 1960, by the Defendants,
constituted by a Board of the following
Members, Mr. J.H. McB. Moore, C.B.k., Chair-
mgn, Mr. W.M. Green; Deputy Chairman, "Mri
Vincent Roth, 0.B.E., Mr. C.P.B. Melbourne, -
M.B.E., Mr. Hamid Rahaman, Mr. E.C. Rodrigues,
Mr. Gobin Biragie, who after deliberation
selected and appointed the Plaintiff as
General Manager. Subseguent to the 22nd
Sepvember, 1960, that is to say on or sbout
the 26th September, 1960, the constitution of
Defendants' Board was altered, the following
Members were not re-gppointed, W.M. Green,
Vincent Roth, 0.B.E., C.P.B. Melbourne, M.B.E.,
Hamid Rahaman, 2.G. Rodrigues. The following
new Members were appointed, Peter Anderson,
Joseph Jardim, Ivan Remington, Oswald Fisher,
Jacob Bowman, Montaz Ali. The Defendants'
Board with the newly appointed Members with-
out legal excuse or justification were
encouraged and influenced by the Governor-in-
Counecil to interfere and did interfere with
the valid appointment made by their prede-
cesgors in Office in breach of contract with
the Plaintiff and to his detriment.

Evelyn A. Luckhoo
SCLICITOR FOR THE PLAINTIFF.

BZdward V. Luckhoo
OF COUNSEL.

Lionel Luckhoo S. HRahaman
OF COUNSEL OF COUNSEL

Dated this 27th day of January, 1961.

To: The above named Defendants,
_and_

To: Sase Narain, Esq.,
217 South Street,
Lacytown, Georgetown.
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No. 6

(Title as No.l)

AITSWERS OF CHATRMAN OF CORPORATION
TO INTSRROGATORILS BY PLAINTIFE.,

I, JOII¥ HILTCOH McBEAN MOORE of 274 Peter
Rose Street, Queenstown, Georgetown, British
Guiana, being duly sworn make oath and says-

Question 1 -~ Was a notice sent out dated 1l4th
September, 1960, invitifig members
to attend a meeting of the
British Guiana Credit Corporation
to be held at Head Office at 9.30
a.m. on Thursday 22nd September,
1960, to consider the applica-
tions received for the vacant
post of General Manager of the
Corporation?

Answer: Yes.

Question 2 ~ Was the Notice in (1) above
signed by the Secretary?

Answexr: Yes,

Question 3 -~ Yas the meeting held on the said
22nd September, 19607°

Answer: Yes.

Question 4 - Vere you Chairmen of the Meeting?
How many members were present?

Answer: - I was Chairman of the Meeting.
seven lMembers were present.

Question 5 - Wasg the Meeting properly con-

ducted?
Answer: - Yes.
Question 6 - Vere there any irregularities at

the Meeting? Did you conmsider
that there were any irregulari-
ties? If so what were they?

In the Supreme
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In the Supreme To whose attention were they
Court of brought? Is there any record

British Guiana made of any such irregularities?
e If so where?

No.6 Angwer: There were no irregularities at

the meeting. I do not consider

Answersg of . :
S that there were any irregulari-

Chairman of

Corporation to ties.
%?tgfﬁgiiﬁgﬁles Question 7 -~ How many applicants were there
26th October for the post of General Manager? 10
igg%inued Answer: Twenty-six.
Question 8 -~ Were 2ll of these placed before
the Board?
Answer: Yes.

Question 9 -~ Was the Secretary of the Corpora-
tion an applicant?

Answer: Yes.

Question 10 - Was he (the Secretary) present
when the Meeting commenced?

Answer: Yes. 20

Question 11 - Did he leave and/or was he asked
to withdraw from the Meeting when
the item of General Manager's
appcintment was being considered?
If the Secretary left, why did he
leave? Who asked him to do so?
Did any member of the B®ard ~
object to the withdrawal of the
Secretary from the Meeting? If
there was any objection was this 30
recorded? If so where?

Answer: I arranged with the Secretary
previous to the Meeting that when
the item of the appointment of
General Manager was to be consid-
ered he would withdraw from the
meeting. As arranged he withdrew
when the item was reached. There
was no objection to the Secretary's
withdrawal . 40
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Question 12 —~ Were all the applications care-
fully considered? VWere they by
elimination reduced to thresd or
if they ware reduced, then to what
number?

A1) of the applications were care-
fully considered. They were by
elimination reauced to three.

Answer:

Question 13 - How was the selection made? If
by ballot was each member given a
paper on which to write the name
of his choice?

After elimination of all but three
the final selection was made by
ballot. Each member wag given a
paper on which to write the name
of his choice,

Answer:

Question 14 - How many ballot papers were dis-
tribubted to the members? How
many ballot papers were returned?
Did each member record his
gelection?

Answer: oeven ballot papers were distri-

buted to the members and seven

were returnszd. Hach member re-
corded his selection.

Question 15 - Did you receive the papers from
members?

Answers Yes.

Question 16 — Did you count them? Wag the
number in order when compared

with the number of members
present?

I counted them and the number was
in order when compared with the
number of members present.

Answer:

Quegtion 17 -~ Did you open the ballot papers?
Did the Deputy Cheirman, Mr . W.M.
Green asgist you in checking the
ropers and the votes received by
each of the persons whose names
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1961
continued

Angwer:

Question 19 -

Answer:

Question 20 -

Angwer:

Question 21 -

22,

were put forward for finzl con-
sideration?

I opened the ballot papers and
Mr. W.M. Green, Deputy Chairman,
assigted me in checking the
papers and the votes for each of
the persons whose names were put
forward for final consideration.

What were the results? How
many votes did each applicant re-
ceive, that ig, of the final
names of applicants considered by
the Board?

Mr. I. Persaud received two voles
and Mr. C.H, DaSilva five votes.

If there were three applicants
finally put forward for selection
for the post of General Manager,
were they not the Plaintiff, Mr.
G.E. Luck and Mr., I. Persaud?

If so, how many votes did each
receive?

Yes, the Plaintiff, Mr. G.E. Luck
and Mr. I, Persaud,. The Plain-
tiff received five votes and lir.
Persaud two votes. Mr. Luck did
not receive a vote.

Did you announce the results of
the ballot? Did the Board then
acquiesce that the Plaintiff was
gelected? Was there any opposi-
tion to this? If so by whom'and
is the same recorded? I so,
where?

I announced the result of the
ballot and the Board acquiesced
that the Plaintiff was selected.
There was no opposition.

Was the Secretary called in? Was
he notified as to the person™
selected for the post of General
Manager?
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Answer:

wuegtion 22 -

Angwers

Question 23 -

Answer:

Question 24 -

Answer:

Question 25 -

23.

Yes. He was notified of the
Flaintiff's selection after the
meeting was concluded.

Did you make notes of what had
transpired?

I made no notesg,

Did you prepare the minutesg relat-
ing to the record of what had
transpired? If you did not, d4id
you convey the information to the
secretary? Did you see the draft
minutes before they were cyclo-
styled? Did you approve that
they should be so circulated? It
not, did you make any changes and
if any changes were made, what
chianges?

I saw the draft minutes of the
meeting of the 22nd September,
1960, prepared by the Secretary
but there was no reference to what
transpired regarding the selection
of a General Manager. At the
Becretary?s request I drafted the
paragraph relating to what trans-
pired and gave i* to him for in-
clusion in the minutes. The Min-
utes as cyclogtyled were not cir-
culated.

Were the minutes of the Meeting of
the 22nd September, 1960, as cir-
culated, true and correct?

The minutes of the meeting of the
22nd September, 1950, were not cir-
culated as the term of office of
all members had expired. The min-
utes confirmed at the meeting of
the 27th October, 1960, are a true
and correct record.

Did anyone at the liceting of the
22nd September make any complaint
and/or objection and/or offer any
opposition to anything which had
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Answer:

Quegstion 26 -

Answers:

Question 27 -~

Answer:

Quesgtion 28 -

Answer:

Quegbtion 29 -

24.

been done? If so was any such
objection or complaint recorded,
if recorded - where?

There was neither complaint,
objection or opposition by eny
member.,

Was the selection of the Plain-

tiff on the 22nd September, 13960,

for the post of General Manager,
properly made by the members of
the Board on that dater Was
this a decision of the Board?

Yes and it was a decigion of the
Board.

Did you subsequent to the meet-
ing of the 22nd September, 1960,
telephone the Plaintiff and in-
form him that his application
was successful? Did you con-
gratulate him verbally?

I 40 not remember telephoning
the Plaintiff but I did inform
him vexrbally in the afternoon of
the 22nd September, 1960, that
his application was successful
and I might have congratulated
him.

Did you on the said 22nd Septem-
ber, 1960 inform the Financial
Seeretary or cause him to be in-
formed that the British Guiana
Credit Corporation had appointed
the Plaintiff as General Manager,
and/or selected the Plaintiff
for appointment as General
Manager?

I informed the Financial Secre-
tary on the 22nd September, 1960,
that the British Guiana Credit
Corporation had selected the.
Plaintiff as General Msnager.

Did you instruct the Secretary

20
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Answer:

Question 30 -

Answer:

Question 31 -

Answer:

25.

to write the letter of 26th Sep- In the Supreme

tember, 1960, to the Plaintiff Court of
informing him that he was select-  British Guiana
ed for appointment? ——

i No.b

_LGS e

Answer of

Tid you see the sald letter of Chairman of

26th Septewber, 1960, written to s

the Plaintiff, in draft, before it gggggig’“;@gﬁgs
was written by the Secretary and/ 5 Plaiitiff

or did you approve of the said zgth October
letter which was writtén by the - 1961

sald Secretary? Did you instruct
the Secretary to write the Finan-
cial Secretary informing him of the
Plaintiff's selection as General
HManager?

continued

I did not see the letter of the
26th September, 1960, addressed
to the Plaintiff in draft, but
approved of it before issue. I
also ingstructed the Secretary to
inform the Financial Secretary of
the Plaintiff'e selection.

Diéd the said meeting of the 22nd
September, 1960, after selection of
the Flaintiff for appointment, de-
cide to inform all other appli-
cants that the post of General
Manager was f£illed? If there

wag such a decision, was it minuted?
If so where? VWere all of the
other applicants so informed by
letter? Was one Eton Luck the
present alleged holder of the
Office of Genersl lianager one of
the unsuccessful candidates? Was
he go informed?

The meeting of the 22nd September,
1960, decided that all tUnsudtess=
ful applicants be notified that the
position had been filled. It was
recorded in the minutes of the said
neeting. Twenty three of the un-
successful applicants were informed
by letter dated 27th September,
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Question 32 -

Answer:

Question 33 -~

Answer:

Question 34 -~

Answer:

Question 35 -

26.

1960. The other two, employees of
the Corporation were informed
orally. Mr., Luck wag one of the
unsuccessful candidates who was in-
formed by letter.

Was the next Meeting of the British
Guiana Credit Corporation after the
22nd September, 1960, held on the
27th October, 19607 At this Meet-
ing were the minutes of 22nd Sep-
tember, 1960, read by the
Secretary?

Yes. Yes.

Was there any objection to these
said minutes of 22nd September,
1960? If so by whom?  How was
the objection made orally or in
writing? If in writing identify
the writing. Did you note them?
Did the Secretary note them? If
not, why not?

There was no objection to the
minutes of the meeting of the 22nd
September, 1960, by anyone either
orally or in writing. Of those
present at the meeting of the 27th
October, 1960, only Biragie and
nyself were present gt the meeting
of the 22nd September, 1960,

Did you confirm the minutes of the
22nd September, 1960, and sign them
as Chairman? Were you satisfied
that the minutes of the said meet-
ing represented a true and accurate
record of the sald meeting of the
22nd September, 19607

Yes. Yes.

At the Meeting of the 27th October,
1960, was the Plaintiff's letter
dated 3rd October, 1960, read.
accepting the Board's offer to him
of the post of General Manager?

Was a letter dated 18th October,1960,

40
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Answer:

Question 36 -

Answers

Question 37 -

Answer:

27.

from the Financial Secretary read
stating that it was the wish of
the Governor-in~Council that the
Beard re—examine the matter of
the appointment?

Yes. Yes.

Was the draft agreement enclosed
in the Plaintiffis letter dated
3rd October, 1960, ever consider-
ed by the Board? If so, when?
Was any record made? If so,
where? 1f there was a considera-
tion of the same was it minuted?
If so, when?

No.

Was there any fresh advertisement
for General Manager? Did M¥.Luck
renew his applicetion? Were
there by writing or orally any
instructions and/or suggestions
given the Board that the formerly
rejected applicant should be ap-
pointed? When was the alleged
decigion to appoint Mr. Luck made
by the British Guiana Credit Cor-
poration? Was tais decision
communicated to him by the Board,
if so, when and in what terms?

There were no fresh advertisements
for General Manager. Mr.luck did
not renew his application. There
were no ingtructions either by
writing or orally and/or sugges-
tions given the Board, as 1o who
should be appcinted. The deei-
sion that Mr. Luck should be ap~
vointed was taken by the British
Guiana Credit Corporation at its
meeting on the 11th November,
1960. The decision was not com-
municated to Mr, Luck by the Board
until the 16th December, 1960, and
in accordance with the terms of
the Financial Secretary's letter
of the 12%h December, 1960.
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Question 38 ~

Answer:
Question 39 -

Answer:

Question 40 -~

Answer:

28.

Prior to the commencement of this
action, did the British Guiana
Credit Corporation ever give writt-—
en or oral notice to the Plaintiff
that he was no longer the appointed
General Manager?

No

Did the British Guiana Credit
Corporation ever withdraw and/or
revoke and/or amend the letter of
265h September, 1260? If so,
when? Wag this communicated to
the Plaintiff? If so was this
done in writing or orally? If in
writing, identify the document.

No.

Has any excuse and/or explanation
ever been made by the British
Guiana Credit Corporation to the
Plaintiff for purporting to appoint
someone else whilst he was the duly

‘gselected and appointed General

Managezr.
No.

J.H. McB. Moore.

Sworn to at Georgetown, Demerara,
this 26th day of October, 1961.

BEFCRE ME

P.I, Dias

A COMMISSIONER OF OATHS TO

AFFIDAVITS.

364 Stamp
cancelled.
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No.7 In the Supreme
- Court of
JUDGES NOTES British Guiana

CLEMENT H. Da SILVA No.7
Judges Notes
VT 28th February

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION 1962.

Counsel and/or Solicitor for Plaintiff - L.A.
Luckhoo, Q.C. with C. Lloyd ILuckhoo, Q.C.,
E.V.Iuckhoo, John Carter and S. Rahaman,
instructed by Miss Ena Luckhoo.

Coungsel and/or Solicitor Ffor Defendants:
Dr. F.W.H. Remsahoye/Sase Narain.

Ramsohoye says that he desires to raise an
objection to the order made by Mr. Justice
Bollers on 21.3.1961.

The object of the objection is to raise
the point is a nullity and ile interrogatories
answered do not form part cf the record in this
place.

The order took the form of an order on
Mr. Moore to answer interrogatories filed and
served on behalf of the Plaintiff.

Submits that the order cannot be made in
this form and the order should have been to
grant leave to file and serve interrogatories
and further to order some person to answer the
interrogatorics when filed and served.

Submits that the correct form of the
Order was made by Fraser, J. on 15.5.61 and
entered on 26.5.61. And relies on the form of
Order as my euthority. Quite recently it came
to his knowledge that Mr. Moore resigned from
the Corporation on 18.,3.1961 and that the in-
terrogatories in any event could not be answer-
ed by him and that when he answered he was not
a member of the Corporation.

Submits that the order cannot bind the
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Corporation 1f the interrogatories are answered
by a person who was not a member when he
answered.

Says objection is made under Order 23 Rule 4

(See Order 25 of Annual Practice).

IAU.CkhOO ) :IrJ oA.n

Says that he was not made aware of the Pre-
liminary objection taken. Says that the Plain-
tiff's counsel ig asking this Court to sit as an
appellate Court against a Court in interlocutory
proceedings.

Says that the Plaintiff had done so in other

proceedings.

When paperg were served and application made

the Chairman was a member of the Corporation.
When the order was made ‘there followed a series
of applications by the Defendauntv for extensions
of time with accompanying affidavits to the
effect that the Chairman wag out of the Colony
and that time was required for the CHELIYMAEA G0
answer. When the Chairman eventually returned
to B.G. the answers were given in the appropri-
ate form sworn on 26.10.61. Up to that stage
no objechtion was made to the order or to the
form of order. Says that the Defendant is pre-
cluded at this stage to challenge the order and
seeks to appeal ageinst the order,

Order 23 Rule 4 does not seem t¢ contem-
plate an objection of thisg kind. There are
Rules for appeal against an Order made in an
Interlocutory application.

Submits that the Defendant by answering the
interrogatories has taken a fresh step and is
therefore precluded from talking the present
objection.

Ramgohoye in reply:

Says a nullity is no less a nullity merely
because it has not been declared to be a nulliity
by an appellate tribunal.

There can be no acquiescence in a nullity
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because it would amount as in this case to a
change of the law. A man cannot be estopped

if the result will be to affect a change in the
law. An irregularity may be waived but a null-
ity cannot be waived.

Decision on this point reserved until the
final determination of the action.

PLAINTIFR'S COUNSLEL'S OPENING

Luckhoo, G.C.

Says the Plaintiff filed action on
13.,12.1960. At that time he was holding office
as Deputy Financial Secretary of British Guiana.

Had wide experience and high qualifications.

Was a member of the B.G. Credit Corporation
as Deputy Financial Secretary. Credit Corpora-
tion incorporated by Ordinance 13 of 1954, as
amended by 13 of 1955.

Powers of Corporation included in the
Ordinance.

Under Section 6(1) of 13 of 1954 power %o
employ.

August, 1960, advertisement in local and
foreign Press for application for post of Gener-
al Manager of the B.G. Credit Corporation.

Applications to be made not later than
15.9,60.

Salary B.W.I. $11,280: or £2,350: Free
Partly Furnished House.

Not pensionable. For 3 years in first
instance. Plaintiff obtained a copy of the
further particulars from Secretary of the Cor-
poration, Mr. L.E. Kranenburg.

By letter dated 24.8.1960 the Plaintiff
offered his services to £ill the vacancy of
General Manager.

Board met on Tuesday 22.9.1960.
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Properly congtituted meeting of the Board.
Item on the Agenda -~ was for appointment cf the

Genersl Manager vice Mr., W.G. Carmichael.
Plointiff was not present.

Kranenburg was one of the applicants and
wag present up to when discussion was to take
place on thig itemn. He leit the meeting.

Quorum: Section 8(4) requires Chairman and 3
members.

26 applications for the post. 411 plae-
ed before the Board.

Selection was by means of ballob:

I. Persaud

G.0. Luck ;
)
¢.q. Da Silva )

7 Baellots distributed. Chairman assgisted by
the Deputy Chairman checked the papers and the
votes received. G.E. Luck received no votes.
I. Persaud 2 votes. C.H. Da Silva received 5
votes. Chairmen then announced the resuld
and the Board declared that the Plaintiff was
selected to the post of General MNanager. No
opposition.

Chairman drafted the paragraph for the
minutes and gave it to the Secretary. No
objection to the procedure.

Chairman on 22.9.60 then informed the

FPinancial Secretary that the Board had selected

the Plaintiff as General Manager. Chairman
ingtructed the Secretary to inform the
Plaintiff.

All unsuccessful applicants were sent
letters.

Minutes of 22.9.60 have been confirmed.
Refers to Section 46 of Ordinance 13 of 1954,

Letter dated 26.9.1960 was taken by
Kranenburg who signed the letter as Secretary
to the Plaintiff.

10

20

30



10

20

30

33.

Letter of 26.9.1960 constituted an accept-  In the Supreme
ance of the offer. Court of
British Guiana
Upon verbal enquiry by Kraneuburg the e ERmmane

Plaintiff said that he would take over duty on No.7
16,12.60.

Plaintiff intimated that he was retiring  Hat°p JOeS
from the gervice. Was 49 years at the time. 1962

In application age was stated as 48 years. continued

Draft agreements were prepared and sent by
letter on 3.10.60 by the Plaintiff.

On 27.10.60 there was another meeting of
the Board. Minutes of meeting of the 22,9.60
were read and confirmed. Only Moore, Biragie
were the only two persons present at the pre-
vious meeting hecause the constitution of the
Board had been subghantially altered.

Never been a reply to the Plaintiff's
letter of 3.10.60.

Meeting on 11.11.60 - Finencial Secretary's
letter of 18.10.60 considered.

No other advertisement.
No new application.

Decision communicated to Mr, ILuck -
decision on 16,12.60.

Plaintiff received copy of the minutes
Of ll .ll .60 .

Letter written on 7.12.60 to the Chairman
of the B.G. Credit Corporation.

Never has there been a reply to the letter
of 7.12.60.

Deals with Defence:
Refers to Minutes of 9.12.60.

Plaintiff made application to be retired
from the Publiic Service.

Government released the Plaintiff.
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facts and
documents:
lst March,
1962,

34.

Plaintiff ceased working prior to 14.1.61.

Plaintiff had a tenant who was to deliver
up possession on 30.9.60.

Referred questions:
(1) Validity of the appointment.

(2) Letter of 3,10.60 a refusal of the
termg of appointment.

(3) Advertisements not put in with the
approval of the Governor-in-Council.

Adjourned to 1.15 p.m.
Adjourncd to Thursday lst ilarch, 1962 at
9 .OO 8.0,

Appearanceg ag before:

L.A. Luckhoo, Q.C. says that the parties had
agreed on a gtatement of facts and documents.

Those matters not in the document are in
dispute.

Luckhoo requests that the agreed statement
has bheen gigned by Solicitors on both sides.

Dr. Ramszhoye says that the position is
as stated by L.A. Luckhoo.

Documents marked in the order listed
Exhibits "A" -~ "H" ~ with Exhibit "G" being
marked "G1" to "G4".

No.8
(Title as No.l)

AGREED STATEMENT OF FACTS AND DOCUMENTS:

FACTS
Plaintiff'ts Statement of Claim,

Para. 1 +.... admitted except for (4d)
(e) (£).

20

30



10

20

30

35.

Para. 2, 3, 4 ..... admitted

Para. 5 seeseeesses admitted sxcept
for word
"Unanimously".

Para. 8, 11 .ss.... admitted.
Defence

Para., 2, 3, 4, 6 «.ev..s admitted.

DOCUMENTS .., ADMITTED AND TENDERED

1. Daily Chronicle Saturday €th August,
1.960.

2. Document of particulars issued by
Defendants re vacancy of General
Manager.

3. Application of Plaintiff dated 24th

August, 1960, in response to advertise-

ment.

4, Minutes of Defendants' meeting held on

22nd September, 1960.

5. Letter from Defendants to Plaintiff
dated 26th September, 1960 _

6. Letter from Plaintiff to Defendants
dated 3rd October, 1960 with draft
agreement of service.

7. Minutes of Defendants' meetings held
27th October, 1960, 11lth November,

1960, 18bth November, 1960, 9th December,

1960.

8. ILuckhoo & Luckhoofs letter written on

behalf of Plaintiff snd dated Tth
December, 1960.

S. Narain

Georgetown,
Dated lst March, 1962.

Evelyn A. Luckhoo
Solicitor to Defendants. Solicitor to Plaintiff.
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PLATHTIFRYS TVIDENCE

No.9
EVIDENCE OF CLEMENT HUGH DA STILVA

Thursday lst March, 1962, at 9,00 a.m.

Tvidence of the lst Witness - Clement Hugh
Da Silva.

CLEMENT HUGH Da SILVA on his oath sayss

I am the Plaintiff. I was the Deputy
Financial Secretary of the Colony of British
Guiana up to 14,).61. As Deputy Financial 10
Secretary my dutiss included the assessment of
industrial propesals for tax and the prenara-
tion of the Colony's 1960 - 1964 Development
Programme . I am familiar with economic
development proposals for B.G, I have deal?t
with such overseas bodies as the United
Nationg Special Fund; The International Bank
for Reconstrvction, Washington; and the
Secretary of State for the Colonies, Colonial
Office. I was also responsible for apprais- 20
ing the effects of various development schemes
on the economic development of British Guiana.

In the Daily Chronicle of Saturday,
6.8.60 there appeared an advertisement -
Exhibit “A", As a regult I obtained Exhibit
"B" from the Secretary of the B.G, Credit
Corporation. In response to paragraph 3 of
the notice I obtained Exhibit "B". ~ 4s™a
result on 24.8.60 I sent in the application”
Exhibit "C", In Exhibit "C" I stated that I 30
was applying for the appointment as General
Manager. I gave particulars of my qualifi-
cations and training. As Deputy Finencial
Secretary I was a member of the Defendant's
Board. There wag a meeting of the Board on
22:9.60 and I received this letter requesting
me to attend the meeling.

Letter dated 14.9.60. /Tendered. Objected
to by Dr. Ramsahoye.

Objection on the ground that the 40
document is not signed by the

persong stated in subsection 3 of

section 7 of the B.G. Credit Corp.

Ord. No.l3 of 1954/.
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Mr, L.A. Luckhoo says that this is a docu-
ment signed by the secretary of the Defendant
Corporation. Says that the section says the
document may be signified in a certain manner.

Dr. Ramsahoye says he withdraws his objec-
tion to the adnissibility. Objection consider-
ed. Overruled.  Letter dated 14.9,.,60 admitted
and marked "“J".

I did not attend the meeting on 22.9.60.
As a member of the Board I subsequently received
a copy of the minutes of a meeting of 22.9.60.
These are the minutes Exhivit "Dv. In these
minutes it is stated that I was, at that meeting,
appointed General Manager (witness reads extract
from the minutes as to the appointment of Mr.C.H.
Da Silva as General Manager).

I received Exhibit "D" but I do not recall
the exact day. They usually reached me about
one week after. I read the minutes and I treat-
ed them as correct.

On 26.9.60 I received Exhibit "B". (Letter
read in Court by the witness), This letter
Lxhibit “E" was handed to me by the Secretary,
Mr., L.E. Kranenburg, at the office of the Finan-
cial Secretary at the desk of the Financial
Secretary. The Financial Secretary &fid I were
speaking. Mr. Kranenburg came in with two
envelopes. He handed one to the Financial Sec-
retary saying this is Clem's appointment. (Dr.
Ramsahoye objects). He handed me this letter.
Exhibit "E" which I opened and read and the
secretary asked me how goon could I assume duty
as General Manager of the Corporation. I told
the Secretary eround the middle of December
after the Budget. The secretary left.

About a week later while speaking to the
Secretary over the telephone, he again asked me
how soon would I be going over. I wag waiting
on the Financial Secretary and I told the Secre-
tary that I was waiting on the Financial Secre-
tary and suggested to him that in the meanwhile
he should prepare the usual agreement of service.
The BSecretary informed me that he did not have
the agreement of service of the previous General
Manager and asked me to get out one of the
standard Crown Agents and Colonial Office forms
of agreement for his use as a draft.
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I I wrote the letter Zxhibit "P". I got one
of the Crown Agents and Colonial Cffice forms

and I atvempted to modify it and sent it across

to the Secretary for his use. IExhibit "F" is

dated 3.10.,60 I was at that time treating myself

as being appointed from the time T received the
Corporation's letter. I congideréd myself

appointed zs General Manager from the time T re-
ceived the corporation's letier. I considered
myself appointed as General Manager from the time 10
I received the letter of 26.9.60.

Since I received the letter of 26.,9.60 I
received no written or verbal communicationg from
the Credit Corporation relative to my appointment.
Ag a member of the Board I contirnued Lo receive
nminutes.

I see minutes of a meeting of the Defendant
Corporation held on 27.10.60, Zxhibit "G",
There is a reference made to the previous meet-
ing. There is a confirmation of the minutes 20
of the meeting of 22.9.60. The personnel of the
Board had changed since the meeting of the
22.,9.60. At item 8 in Exhibit "G" there is
reference to the appcintment of a General Manager.
(Witness reads extract of minutes). I was not
present when the item was discussed. I had re-
ceived leave to be out of attendance for the
item. I had never seen the letter which wag
referred to as a letter from the Financial
Secretary. 30

(Luckhoo says notice has been served to pro-
duce the letter No. F.S.G. 283/55 II dated
18.10.60.

Dr. Ramsahoye says that he is sending for
the letter).

I see here the minutes of 11.11.60 - Zxhibit
nGga", I see reference to the Post-Genersl
Manager. I was permitted to leave the meeting
when this was discussed. (Extract of minutes
read by witness). This is a letter F.S.G. 40
283/55 II dated 18.10.60. (Letter produced
from custody of Defendant's Solicitor). Letter
tendered, admitted and marked "K",.

So far as I know there was never a readver-
tisement for the post. I know Mr. G.E. Luck
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was an applicant for the post when it was

first advertised. I received a copy of the
minutes towards the latter part of November,
1960. I consulted Luckhoo and Luckhoo.
Bxhibit "H" dated 7.12.60 was written on my be-
half to the B.G. Credit Corporation. So far
as I am awsre there has never been a reply to
this letter.

I see the minutes of 18.11.60, Exhibit
"G3". There is reference to the post of
General Manager. J see the minutes of the
meeting of 9.12.60 ~ Exhibit "G4". I was
absent from this meeting. Item 1 is on the
appointment of a General Manager. (Extract of
minutes read). In the Sunday Graphic of
11.12.60 there wasg a photograph and statement
to the effect that Mr. G.E. Luck had been ap-
pointed General lManager of the Credit Corpora~
tion. Newspaper tendered, no objection,
admitted and marked "L". Dr. Jagan was then
Minister of Trade and Industry. Mr. G.E.Luck
was then the acting Permanent Secretary to the
Ministry of Natural Resources; he was also
acting Permanent Secretary of Trade and Indus-~
try.

These are the minutes of a meeting which I
received. They are for a meeting held on-
25.11.60, Minutes tendered, .10 objection, ad-
mitted and marked "M". These are the minutes
of the meeting of 25.11.60. A list of the
staff and particulars were prepared by the Cor-
poration's staff. (Extract read by witness).
Copies were distributed in the form attached
to the minutes.

I know as & member of the Board {that the
#11,280: per anmnum fixed. On several occas—
ions I saw the Executive Council decision and a
letter sent by the Financial Secretariat to the
General Manager informing him of the salary of
#11,280: for the post. I saw the letter for
the original salary and I saw letters whenever
the Governor-in~Council had varied the salary.

(Mr, Luckhoo says that notice to produce
%gggers from Financial Secretary during 1958/
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Dr. Ramsahoye says that there are not
letters from 1958/1959 received by the Credit
Corporation from the Financial Secretary for
those years dealing with the question of the
emoluments for the post of General Manager
either the approval of the emoluments or approv-—
al of further increases).

Da Silva continues

I see these minutes. They are for the
meeting 25/6/1959 of the Defendant Corporation. 10
(Dr. Ramsahoye objects to the admissibility of
the minutes of the meeting of 26/6/1959).

Objection overruled. Admitted and marked "N").

(Extract of minutes read by the witness
as to Draft Service Agreements).

On 26.9.1960 I received a letter from the
Defendant Corporation. On that date I was 49
years and some months. I was boran on 10.3.1911.
I was enployed in the Public Service. Nornally
I would have continued in the Public Service 20
until age 55. As a regult of the letter of
26.,9.1960 on 16.10.1860 I addressed a minute to
the Financial Secretary enclosing the Bdard's
letter of appointment and asking for either a
secondment under the law or asking that I be
allowed to retire. Under the Regulations I
could retire at age 50 voluntarily. I came
under the 1944 Pensions Ordinance. I had
understood that the procedure for voluntary
retirement at age 50 would be just a formality 30
and would not be refused. At thet time I had
leave due to me about 10 or 1l months leave.

It was possible to have this done by December.
The formality of obtaining the ayproval of the
Secretary of State for the Colonies would not
have impeded an officer going into retirement.
Sometimes 3 or 4 months after the officer goes
off on leave, sometimes 6 months the formal
approval would come.

I received no answer to the application 40
of 16.10.60. On 8.12.60 I addressed a formal
letter repeating my application to retire.

Sometime in January, 1961, I got a letter say-
ing that I may have my leave; the question
of retirement has been sent to the Colonial
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Cffice., I went off duty on 14.1.61l. About
early in February 19€1 I got the formal approval
of the Secretary of State and I had in fact
retired.

From the time I received the levbter of
26.9.60 scores of friends congratulated me on my
appointment as General Manager. I also heard a
broadcast over the radio in which the reference
to No.J or No.2 in the Financial Secretariat left
no doubt as to who was referred to. Among the
persons who congratulated me were influential men,
personal friends. When I heard of Mr. Luck's
appointment I felt very badly and I felt very dis-
gusted at the way I was treated by apparent
colleagues.

I had first been promoted to the post of
Deputy Financisl Secretary, the top of the ladder
after 284 years service and I would certainly not
have retired at the age of 50. I intended to
remain in the Public Service.

If T had remained in the public¢ service I
would have gone on leave to the United Kingdom to
Oxford University end would huve contemplated the
course for the degree of B. Litt. degree. A
valuable degree in the subjects of the Technique
of Loan Finance and the formation of a country's
cgpital resources through the use of credit funds.
I had already done one year's residence at Oxford
University when I commenced the course. I was
more than half way through the course. The
authorities at Oxford had permitted me to leave
after one year and to return to finish the course.
I do not have a basic degree without which you
cannot obtain a B. Litt. but the University
authorities admitted my experience and service in
British Guiana as the equivalent of a basic
degree. Upon my retirement my plens in this
connection fell through.

As General llanager one of the conditions of
service was a free partly furnished house.- I
had my own house in the month of September, 1960.
That house is =t B 19/20 Lama Avenue, Bel Air
Park. It was at the time rented to Dr.Diephuis.
I rented the house to him for three or four
months from about the middle of July, 1960.

After I received the letter of appointment I told
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Dr, Diephuis that I would remove into the Cor-
poration's house in Queenstown and he asked me
to allow him to remain in my house until he
left the country. I agreed. He remained in
my house until August, 1961.

I intended to take up the Corporation's
post immediately. I had to live with rela-
tives and eventually moved into a small flat.

Adjourned to 9 a.m. on 2.3.62.
Friday 2nd March, 1962 at 9.00 a.m.

Appearances as before:

Clement Hugh Da Silvs on his oath says: Contd.

I say I was appointed General Manager of
the Defendantt's corporation. I considered
myself so appointed as soon as I received the
Corporation?s letter of 26.9.60 on the 26.9.60.
In ny letter of 3.10.60 I gaid that I accept
the appointment in order to confirm the agree-
ment of employment reached hetween the Corpor-
ation and myself concluded in or by their
letter of 26.9.60. I enclosed a draft agree-
ment in my letter of 3.,10.62 in order to asgsist
the Secretary who asked me to send him a draft
Crown Agent's standard form. When in ny
letter I stated that I was enclosing a draft
agreement I was not laying down any conditions
of my employment. I could only sign the
agreement if the corporation had agreed to it.
I knew the fterms and conditions on"whitch I was
employed. I saw them in the newgpaper and I
also got a full statement from the Secretary.
Those two documents contained the terms of my
employment . It wag not necessary for me to
have an agreement before assuming duty. The
agreement was a formality.

In my draft agreement I made certain addi-
tions which were clauses in the standard Crown
Agents agreement of service which I had used as
a draft at the invitation of the Secretary to
help him. I have a copy of the Crown Agents
form. I was satigfied with the terms and con~
ditions advertised. I applied on those terus
and conditions. (Witness reads from para.6 of
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the conditions of service). I put 2 terms of 3
years. I interpreted the wording of the condi-
tions to mean that I could ask questions or make
suggestions as to my terms of service. My
suggestion of 6 years divided into 2 tours of 3
years each seemed to me to fit in with this
minimum three years and still allowed at the end
of that period for a further 3 years if the

Corporation wanted me and I wanted them. My
insertion of 2 tours was merely a suggestion. I
was satisfied to accept 3 years. I consider

that the newspaper or the document I got from
the Secretary as containing the full particulars
of my conditions of employment.

I would have taken up my duties as Genersal
Manager without signing any agreement. The
formality of signing the agreement sometimes
took place months after the officer assumed duty.
I know that that was the case of the aceountant
Mr. P.C. Yansen and Mr. L.E. Kranenburg, the~
Secretary, who signed their written agreement
about 1 year after they assumed their appoint-
ment. I was always ready and willing to take
up my appointment as General Manager on the con=-
ditions as advertised. I an still willing to
take up the appointment as advertised. I ghall
continue to be willing. Since I retired in
January, 1961, I have not been employed anywhere.

My vacation leave expired on 22.1,62. While on
pre~retirement leave I obtained the Government's
permission to accept paid employment. Leave

commenced in January 14, 1961 and ended on
22.1.62. I had endeavoured to obtain suitable
employment . I started straight away to obtain
employment, e.g. The Demerara Company Limited
for a Finance Officer; The Crown Life Insur-
ance Company for a Director of Finance; The
Chief Elections Officer during the last elec-
tions for appointment as a Returning Officer.

I was not so appointed. I have applied as
business and commercial executive in Water Street.
I also applied for employment in Trinidad and in
Grenada.

I am claiming against the Defendant the re-
lief set out in paragraph 17 of the statement of
claim more particularly 17(a) and (b) and (c).

I claim gpecial damages as shown in
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paragraph 18 of the statement of claim. I have
lost salary of £11,280: per annum for 3 years -

£33,840. There is also loss of free house for
the said period - £8,100. I have lost my leave
passages - £2,500. I now say that the loss

consequent on premature retirement is g13,550:
instead of £5,700: I claim General Damages in
addition to the Special Damages making a total

claim of #100,000. (Luckhoo seeks amendment of
Statement of Claim by ¢ 10

(a) deletion of 5,700 for loss
consequent on premature retire-~
ment and substitution therefor

of #13,550:

(b) for consequential changes

vizs
of Special Damages — delete  #50,140
insert  £57,990
General Damages - delete 49,860
insert  $42,010 20

Dr. Ramsahoye says he has no objection to
application to amend.

Amendment granted as prayed.)

Cross—examined by Ramsahoye:

When I instituted these proceedings I was
myself a member of the Board when I sued. I
cannot remember when I became a member of the
Board. My termination date was 14.1.61. The
commencement date was probably April, 1960.
When I became a member Mr, Carmichael was the 30
General Manager. I am aware of the emoluments
of Mr. Carmichael. He received a salary of
£880: plus a gratuity of F60: per month. That
was $940: per month or $11,280 per year. Eis
gratuity was settled by the Governor-in~Council
when he was first employed. I do not know
that Mr. Carmicheel's original salary was fixed
by the Governor-in-Council at £800: per month.
I know that the Governor-in-Council approved a
salary of g880: for the General Manager of the 40
B.G. Credit Corporation. Thig is a certifi-
cate from the Treasury dated 22.5.1957 showing
the salary of the General Manager as £2,200:
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Certificate tendered, no objection, admitted and
marked "OW,

I am aware of the provisions of section 6
of Ordinance 13 of 1954. I xnow that at the
conmencenment of My, Carmichael's appointment he
was granted a gsratulity of £37.10s. per quarter
by the Governor-in-Council.

From 22.5.1957 to the 6.,8.60 I know that
the Governor-in-Council did not reconsider the
salsry of the post of General Manager. So far
as I know there was no reconsideration up to
the date of the writ on 13.12.1960. My member-
ship of the Corporation was ex officio - Deputy
Financial Secretary. The Minister was the
charge officer to whom matters from the B.G.
Credit Corporation would go. As an offieial
member of the Corporation I sat at meetings at
which applicaticns for lcans were considered
and the general running of the Corporation. This
would include appcirtment of staff. On egtab-
lishment matters I would have been the most know-
ledgeable member of the Board. I gave advice
at meetings of the Board as a member on matters
of salary, leave, etc. relatiag to the staff of
the Corporation.

I must admit that I took some part in the
preparation of the advertisement for the office
of General Manager. I do not agree that the
full particulars of the advertisement were settl-
ed in the Finance Secretariat. I would say that
suggestions in draft were made by the Financial

Secretary. I saw a draft submitted to the
Corporation. I saw the draft bvefore it was sub-
mitted to the corporation. I am referring to
Exhibit "B".

The draft of the particulars which I saw as
sent by the Financial Secretary is identical with
Ixhibit "B", The originals of Exhibit "B" may
have been prepared in the Treasury at the request
of the Corporation after being approved by the
Board. I do not know for certain if the parti-
culars of which Ixhibit "B" is a copy were pre-
pared in the Treasury. The particulars of the
vacancy did not have to be submitted to the Chief
Secretary. I remember on 4.8.1960 I wrote™d
letter to the Chief Secretary enclosing copies of
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full particulars of the vacancy requesting that

the advertisement be published in the news-~

papers in Jamaica, Trinidad and Barbaddos. ™ The

letter had as enclosures a copy of Exhibit "B"

being the full particulars and also a copy of the

advertisement. On 4.8.1960 I made a reguest by

letter to the Controller of Govermment Printing

that Exhibit "A" be advertised in the local press.

The advertisement first appeared in the local

pregs in a newgpaper of 6.8.1960. 10
I was first aware that there was going to be

a vacancy for the post of General Manager of the

Corporation at the time of the farewell meeting

for Mr. Carmichael. It was probably about June,

1960. When I learned of the impending vacancy

I thought of myself as a probable candidate. I

would say that a short time after Carmichael's

party I decided that I would wish to be a candi~

date for the appointment. I would say that this

may have been about June, 1960. I did not re-~ 20

solve to apply until I saw the vacancy notice.

It was after reading or studying the vacancy

notice that I resolved to apply. It was after

reading the notice in the newspapers. When I

sent the notices to the Chief Secretary and to

the Printing Officer I had not yet resolved to

apply.

I resolved to apply because I found myself
as a deputy under a younger man. This post
suited me. Apart from the consideration that I 30
wanted to be a head there were other considera-
tions, e.g. the free partly furnished house, the
emoluments and I liked the work. Those were the
considerations which interested me. I would not
say that those considerations were present in my
mind before the advertisement appeared.

I had dealings with the International Bank.
I do not know if copies of Exhibit "B" were sgent
to the International Bank. The officers who
dealt with correspondence with the Intermational
Bank were 4 in the Finance Secretariat and about
2 or 3 in the Treasury. I did participate in
the discussions on the Board when it was decided
to issue an advertisement. I did not partici-~
pate when the applications were being dealt with.

40

When I applied for the post I did not inform
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the Public Service Commission that I had applied
for another position. I informed the Head of
ny Department that I had applied for another
position. I informed him by sending him a copy
of the application in accordance with civil
service procedure for making applications.

I applied on 24.8.60. I had already com-
pleted 1 year's work for the B. Litt. degree. I
wanted to return to Oxford to finish my degree.

I had 10 months leave to get as a member of the
Public Service. When I applied on 24.8.60 1
had not any feeling as to whether I would be suc-

cegsful. I did not know whether there was a
likslihood that I might be successful. I did
not know if I would be successful. I thought I

had a good chance and looked forward to the re-
sult. I hoped I would be succegsful. T do not
remember the date upon which I did so but I did
inform the Head of my Department that I would
wish my leave to complete the B, Litt. I do not
remember the time. It could have been after I
applied. I would say that I have informed the
Head of my Department that I would wish my leave
to complete the B. Litt. degree before and after
I had applied for the post.

I remained Deputy Financial Secretary of
B.G. until January, 1962. I served actively
until 14.1.61 and thereafter I was on leave.
Following my application I received a letter dat-
ed 26.9.1960 - Exhibit "E", In my reply on
3.10.60 I stated that I was reporting the posi-
tion to Government with a view to release from
Government as early as possible. When I receiv-
ed the letter of 3.10.60 I applied to Government
to be seconded or to be permitted to retire at
50. On 3,10.60 I was in no position to say
whether Government would grant me a secondment.
I knew that Government would allow me to retire
at 50. I say I knew this because of the assur-
ance given by the Govermment to the staff associ-
ations that voluntary retirement at 50 is a
formality. I had no personal assurance given to
me that I would be able to go at 50. It was
open to the Government to refuse my requesgt to
retire at 50 on the ground of strong public™ -
interest. I do not know if the Govermor wag
entitled to refuse my application to retire with-
out assigning a reason. The Governor could
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have delayed my leave as had been done previously.
I was in a position to take up other employment
with the permission of the Government or if I had
resigned. The Government may have refused my
application to resign but I consider that a remote
possibility. My intention was not to resign but
t0 be permitted to retire. I had applied for
permission to work during my leave. I applied
in writing and I got my reply in writing. This
is a letter dated 24.3.61 from the Financial 10
Secretary to myself - granting me permission to
accept paid employment during pre-retirement
leave. Letter tendered, admitted and marked "P"
(from custody of the Plaintiff). The Governor
ig the authority to grant permission to work dur-~
ing pre-retirement leave, The circumstances
referred to in "P" I had stated in my létter. that
a directorship of a company nceded disclosure and
gspecific approvel in writing and I had assured
Government that a directorship was not involved. 20
I have not since 24.3.61 when permission was
given taken up actual paid employment. I dia
not say in my letter seeking approval to work
that I intended to go abroad. I went abroad on
18.10.61. I returned on 18.l1.62. The lasgt

day I was a public servant was 21.1.62.

I never received any specific reply from
Government on my application for a secondment.
I could not leave that appointment of Deputy
Financial Secretary to work with the Defendant 30
Corporation on secondment unless the Government
released me. When I entered the Public Service
I do not know what was the age limit for entry.
When I applied for the post I knew that my age
was 49. I used a staff list in the Financial
Secretariat which had a mistake in that my birth
date was stated as 10,3.1012. Whereas it is
12.3.1911. That is the reason for stating 48
years in my application. I followed the list
inadvertently. VWhen I stated my age as 48 I 40
gave no thought to the procedure which might
have to be adopted for me to be released to take
up the job as General Manager of the Credit
Corporation. I have never looked at my name in
the Colonial Office Tist. The Colonial Office
List has never come to me for correction. I
have seen the B.G. Civil Service LigtT ~7I have
seen my name in that list. I thought the age
was 1911 given in that list. I do not know
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if when I entered the Public Service I gave my In the Supreme
age as 1912. I see the 1935 B.G. Staff List Court of
of the B.G. Civil Service. The date of birth British Guians

is given as 10.,3.1912. I would say that in
every official document with which I have had to PR
deal concerning my date of birth, including ny g%?éggtgf ®
application for the post of General Manager, my
date of birlh has been stated as 10.3.1912.
No.9

On 16.10.1960 was the first time I became

aware that the date of birth previously stated C.H., Da Silva

to be 10.3.1912 was inaccurate. I"disc¢dvered Cross-

the mistake when I applied to the Financial~ exanination
Secretary about my releage. I showed him the continued
error. I discovered the mistake when I was

considering secondment or retirement. I

thought secondment was the difficulty and I want-~
ed to retire. I produced e birth certificate,
found the mistake and I reported it to the
Financial Secretary. When I wrote the letter

en 3.,10.60 I was not conscious of the mistake.

I knew all along that my birth date was 1911.
When in the official documents I stated 10.3.1912
I was aware that the real date was 10.3.1911. I
was never mistaken about it. I had always known
the facts.

Adjourned to Tuesday 6.3.1962
at 9 a.m,.

Tuesday 6th March, 1962 at 9 a.m.

Clement Hugh Da Silva under cross-—examination Crosg~
gays further on his oath: examination
continted

I am aware of General Qrder No.l5. I was
not aware of that order in 1938. In the early
days of service I was not aware of it because I
did not have General QOrders. I was the Princi-
pal Egtablishment Officer in 1955 or 1956. I
was also the Chief Establishment Officer acting.
It would have been my duty to know of the provi-
sions relating to the Public Service?l” It would
have been my duty to know of the whole process
of appointment to the Public Service. My first
appointment in the Public Service was not my
first appointment after leaving school. I
worked at one place. I did not consider the
conditions on which I could enter the Public
Service when I aspplied for my first appointment
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in the Public Service. I was not at the time I
joined the service aware of any regulations re-
lating to appointments in the Public Service.
Prom my point of view there was no question
about the age at which I entered the Public
Service.

After I entered I d4id not learn that the age
limit was 21 except where the Governor gave per-
misgion. I admit that if the age limit at that
time was 21 I should never have been appointed
unlegs the Governor gave special permission. In
my career as a public servant I have not read the
whole of the first edition of the General Orders
igsued in 1938. I never had occagion to apply
to the Governor for special permission. I never
applied for entry into the Public Service. I
wag just taken on. My age on admission to the
Public Service was 22 years. I joined the ser-
vice on 2.9.33. I was born on 12th March, 1911.

I would say that I got general permission to
accept paid employment except a directorship of a
company . I would say that the permigsion I got
gave me the right to accept employment as Ge&neral
Manager of a corporation. When I got Dermission
to retire I did not at the same time get permis-
sion to accept paid employment. When I got per-
mission to retire it was permission to retire at
the expiration of my leave which was approximate-
ly 11 months. After T got permission to retire
I wrote the Governor again asking for permission
to take up paid employment. The Governor con-
gidered that request. I was notified on
243.1961 that the Governor had refused permission
in the absence of a statement of specific employ-
ment. Tetter dated 2.3.1961 (from custody of
Plaintiff). Tendered, admitted and marked "Q".

In reply to this letter dated 2.3.61 I

wrote on 9.3.61l. This is a copy of the letter I
wrote. (No objection). Tendered, aduitted and
marked "R",. In thet letter I represented that I
wanted to do secretarial work, I stated that I
wanted to set up my own practice as a secretary.
I did not do the costing of a cafering business
which I mentioned in the letter. I 4id not also
do whe work of valuing securities. I do not
fully accept the suggestion that the permission I
got was to set up a Secretary's practice. I
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would say that I got permission to accept my
employment except the directorship of a company.

I got the permission on 24.3.61. Until
then I was in a pogition to take up any employ-
nent other than as Deputy Financial Secretary
from the 14.1.0L. I mean paid employment.
Officially I was not in a position to accept
paid employment until 24.3.61.  Asstnming that
the permisgion related only to employment as a
secretary in the answer set out in para.2 of my
letter of the 9.3.6L I agree that I could not
accept paid employment generally before 22,1.62.

A%t the time I applied for the post of
General Menager in August, 1960, I was aware and
it was upper-most in my mind that at the time I
was serving in an established position under the
Crown. I also reflected on the fact that I had
years of service and pension rights preserved.

I realised that if my pension rights were to be
preserved I would have to be subject to Govern-
ment on the matter of my release or otherwise.
When I wrote that application I was not in a
position to commit myself to be available for
employment on a definite date. When I wrote
the application I did not consider myself com-
mitted to take on the job at a particular date.
In the circumstances I would not have thought it
fair for the Corporation to commit me to take on
the job on a particular date.

(Short adjournment for 10 minutes on
application of Dr. Ramsahoye).

C.He Da Silva continuess

If T had been requested by the Corporation
to turn on the job on a certain date ny reply
would have depended on whether the Government re-
leased me or whether I resigned. I+ would mean
if I resigned that I would have lost my pension
and gratuity. My gratuity was approximately
£15,000: and an annual pension of approximately
£3,400: - #3,500: per annum. Because of that
fact I decided to seek secondment or retirement.

I was Deputy Financial Secretary. There is
nothing in the General Orders about officers re-
signing and giving notice. So far as I know
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there is no requirement for notice in the case
of a public officer resigning.
ed the letter from the Corporation notifying
me of my appointment I did consider the date
of my release. The letter was received on
26.,9,60. On that day I was not in a position
to commit myself. I do not know if the
Corporation was aware of this. I wrote the
Corporation a letter on 3.10.60. When I said
that I would enter into agreement with the
Corporation on the draft I meant that I would
have entered into the terms of my draft or
alternatively if the Corporation had amended
the draft to comply with the terms of “the
advertisement I would have entered ifito such
agreement as modified by the Corporation. I
would say that the date of my assumpbtion of
duty depended on the date I was released.

That date was unknown to me on 3.10.60. I
was asgked in the letter of 26.9.60 of the time
I could take up the appointment. That gues-

tion was not answered by the letter of 3.10.60.

I would say that it was answered verbally. I
had informed the Secretary that I would be re-
leased on 16,12,60. I was not in a position
to take up the appointment on 16.12.60. I
was not released. My letter of 3.10.60 was
not an acceptance of an officer of appointment
in my mind. I used the word "accept" to
record and confirm what had happened. What
had happened was my appointment on receipt of
the Board's notification of 26.9.60. I con-
sidered myself appointed on 26.9.60 and every-~
thing was concluded. There was no need for
any accepbtance by me. I also believed that
on 26.,9.60 all the terms of my agreement had
been fully settled even though I would not
commit myself to the time for the assumption
of duty.

Sometime after 3.,10.60 I gave instruc-
tions to my Solicitors to bring proceedings.
A letter was written on 7.12.60, ILetter is
Exhibit "H". This letter reflected the posi-
tion as I explained it to my lawyers: I
would say that the letters of 3.10.60 and
712,60 reflected truthfully the position in
ny mind.

In the application of 24.8.60 mentiocn was

When I receiv-
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made that I had done work for a degree at Oxford.
It also mentioned the work I had done at the
Treasury. Also work with B.G. Airways and
Internstional Bank.

I see parsgraph 7 of IZxhibit "B".  That
paragraph calls for qualifications similar to the
work I did. I gave the draft parbticulars of the
vacancy notice to Mr, Moore, Chairmen of the Cor-
poration on 27.7.60. That was 2 days before
29.7 .60 when they were considered. I had read
over the draft particulars before it was handed
to Mr. Moore. The original draft was type-
written, it was not in handwriting. It had gaps
I think filled in in ink. I did not fill in
those gaps. The typewritten draft was not dic-
tated. It was typed directly by the draftsman.
It was after that that I read it. The draftsman
typed it after information had been given to him
by ne. I would not say that what hé Typed was
what he was told to type. The draftesman did not
know what figure to put in in the first figure in
paragraph 5 of the perticulars. I did not give
the draftsmen any of the particulars contained in
document. The assistance I gave was to furnish
an ordinance and the two fileg were to get
information for paragraph 5 of the vacancy notice.
I do not know if the files'were to provide in-
formation for paragraphs 2, 5, 6, 7 of the notice.
I had glanced through the files before. I do
not know whether they had information other than
paragraph 5. The draftsman was an officer
guperior to me in status. He was an officer who
knew fully my qualifications.

Adjourned to 1.15 p.m. On
6.3.62.

Regsumed at 1.15 p.m.

Clement Hugh Da Silva further on his oath says:

If someone prepared a draft for the vacancy
notice I would be the person to correct it for
typographical errors. If there were typographi-
cal errors I would have corrected the draft of
the vacancy notice.

I was present at a meeting of the Board on
29.7.60 when the Board considered and accepted
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the draft. At the time I had not yet resolved
to apply but I had thought myself a probable
candidate. I did not then disclose to the
Board that I thought myself a probable candidate.
The Board discussed the whole notice including
paragraph 7. I 40 not remember if the Board
discussed paragraph 7 dealing with qualifica-
tions. I remember that digcussion did take
place about age. I do not remember the Board
discussing any other subject. No reference to 10
age was made in the advertisement. There was a
suggestion by some that there should be an age
limiv. I wags in favour of an age limit. I
did not feel that I had any interest in the
matter other vhan as a member of the Board at

the time of the discussion. I agree that if I
had an interest I ought to have disclosed it.

I know that there is a provision in the Ordin-
ance No.l3 of 1954 whereby such disclosures are
necessary. I know of the provisions of sub- 20
gection 4 of section 10 of Ordinance 13 of 1954.
I went to Mr. Kranenburg because the notice in
the newspapers required that further particulars
be obtained from the secretary. I wanted to
study the conditions fully that is why I went to
Mr. Kranenburg.

I did not think that from the time I appli-
ed for the job as manager I ought to have re-
signed my appointment as a member of the Board.
I did not think that it would have appeared to 30
the public that my duty and interest conflicted.
As Deputy Financial Secretary I continued as a

member. I never discussed with other members
of the Board that I intended to make myself
available for consideration. It is correct

that no one on the Board knew that I was
interested until the Chairmaen received my appli-
cation.

In the draft I asked to be engaged for 6
years resident service. If T could have been 40
released the period would have taken me to
around 55 years. In December I heard that some-
one else had been appointed to the position of
General Manager. I did not consider whether in
the circumstances I ought to have withdrawn my
application to retire at 50. I was aware that
if I had not asgked to retire at 50 I could have
remained until I was 55. To retire at 50 it
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was purely voluntary from the point of view of In the Supreme
the officer. If I had remained as Deputy Fin- Court of
ancial Secretary I would have received a salary British Guiana

of £9,360: per snnum. It was previously
#8,160: Revised it would be a salary of $780:

per month. That would be separate from my Plaintiff's

pension rights. If I continued under the Guil- Evidence
lebaud recommendations for a period of 3 years —
my gratuity would have been 218,329: and my pen-— No.9
sion then would have been worth g4,399: per

annum. Having retired at 50 my gratuity is C.H. Da Silva
£15,625: and my pension now is £3,750:  The Cross—
difference in gratuity of 32,704: and difference examination
of pension #6493 per year, over 12% years which continued

is the longevity factor. As againgt that I would

have received a salary of $11,280¢ per annum which
is #940: per month, i.e. $140: per month more. I
would also have received a partly furnished house,
also a travelling sllowance of 225.

In my application dated 24.8.,60 I stated that
my salary allowing for increases proposed but not
implemented is not much less than the post of
General Manager. I meant that the Deputy Finan-
cial Secretary's salary plus his pension rights
were stilla bit smaller than the salary alone of
the General Manager's post.

With reference to para.l2(b) of the Statement
of Claim it is true that my home was rented before
26.9.60. It was rented in July, 1960. I had
not then resolved to apply for the job as General
Manager. I rented it for 4 months in July, 1960,
because I had applied for leave. The application
was turn down. Uncertain of the position I let
Dr. Dephuis have the house for a short time. The
application was turned down before I let the house.
I was told that it may be considered in a short
time . At first my renting of my house had noth-
ing to do with the Corporation nor with my leave
because I did not know whether I would get leave,
I rented the house for £325: per month. It was
not very profitable for me to rent the house atb
£325: It was only profitable. After the 4
month period I continued to let to Dr.Dephuis at a
rate which was profitable to me. I did not con-
tinve to live with relative. I ceased to live
with relatives in December, 1960. After Decenber
1960 I rented a small flat. I held the tenancy
until Dr. Dephuis left the country in August,1961.
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Between Augugt - October, 1961, I Went back to
my own home. VWhen Dr. Dephuis left I do not
remember 1f I negotiated for another tenant.
I know Frank Biddeck. I made negotiations with
him for renting my house. I agked him to pay
375: per month if some additional work wes done,
or $325: ag it stood. A contract of tenancy
was not concluded. I have rented my house
again. I have rented from October, 1961. It is
rented to March, 1962. It is rented at the rate
of £325: per month.

The house which is provided for the General
Manager was rented. It was rented about the
same time Dr. Dephuis rented my house. It was
rented to colleague of Dr. Dephuis. I think
it was rented to Captain Hayes. It was rented
for 225, The Ministry of Communications and
Works asked me to find out whether the Corpora-
tion would rent the house which was wvacant at the
time. I asked the Corporation and as the house
was closed for sometime and as it was a means of
revenue the Corporation agreed to rent the house
to Captain Hayes until a General Manager was
appointed.

It is correct to say that the Corporation's
house was rented for 1 year to Captain Hayes -
expilring in August, 1961 at a rental of $225:
per month. I had known since June that serious
efforts were being made to recruit a Gens¥al "
Manager. I now say that the house was rented
to Captain Hayes from month to month for g225:
until a General Menager was appointed. I was
not in charge of the rental of the Corporation's
house. I merely passed on the information.

It is not correct to suggest that I made arrange-
menss with Captain Hayes. I made arrangements
through the Ministry of Communications and Works
for the letting of my house to the United Nations
Special Fund Commission carrying out the Harbour
Siltation and Erosion investigation. The Minis-
try of Communications and Works approached me
about the letting of the Corporation's house. I
would not know if the negotiations took place in
May, 1960, with Captain Hayes.

I think the Corporation first asked me to
find out from the Government if anyone wanted to
rent the house which was closed for about 2 or
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3 months. Almost immediately after the Minis- In the Supreme

try of Communications and Works asked me the Court of

same question. I was asked because lots of British Guiana

people offered houses through the Finance Secre-~ e

tariat. I told the Ministry of Communications Plaintiff!'s

and Works that the house of the Corporation was Evidence

available. I do not remember whether I told

Hayes that he could have the house for one year

at ©225: per month. I do not know how Hayes re- No.9

mained there for one year. In January when I

resigned from the Corporation Hayes was still C.H. Da Silva

there. Crosg~-

examination

Upon my selection as General Manager 1 made continued

no enquiry about the Corporation's house. In

my draft agreement I mentioned that an allowance
in lieu should be paid because I interpreted the
vacancy notice which reads "A free partly furnish-
ed house, and leave facilities in accordance with
the Government’s General Orders and Regulations"
to mean that the house would be available to the
General Manager in accordance with the Govern-
ment's General Orders, No. 209 of which Providés
the alternative either the house or an allowance
in lieu. I thought that wording suggested that
if the Corporation wanted to keep Captain Hayes
in the house to give me an allowance instead. I
do not think that it was that I had arranged with
Captain Hayes for a year and for that reason I
put in the term.

I said that I was willing to forego my leave
to take up the appointment. It is not correct
to suggest that I did not intend to take up my
appointment until after the expiration of my 10
months leave, I did not feel confident that
from the time the wvacancy occurred that I would be
appointed General Manager and that my subsequent
conduct was based on that assumption.

I was a Government Officer in 1949 when the
Government purchased the B.G. Airways.

In the draft there was a suggestion that T
would be able to leave the service of the Corpora-
tion by giving 3 months notice in writing or by
paying one month's salary. I also suggested that
if I left the Corporation otherwise than by agree-
ment that I pay the Corporation 3 monthsg' salary
a8 liguidation damages. I adnit that these
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58.

considerations were not present in the particu-
lars of the vacancy.

I was aware that the sum of #11,280: was
arrived at by adding $10,560:, Carmichael's
salary or the salary of the post, plus £720: the
gratuity of the post.

I am aware that gratuity and salary are
treated differently in the Ordinance No,l3 of
1954, I say section 6(1) deals with salary and
6(2) deals with pensions and gratuities. The
position was that separate approval had to be
given for salary and for pension and gratuity.
When the advertisement was prepared the salary
and the gratuity were merged. I do not know
that Mr. Carmichael was not paid gratuity while
he was on leave,

10

I saw the terms of Carmichael's appointment
in a contract approved by the Governor—ine-
Council. I did not know that Mr., Luck was an
applicant before I saw the picture in the news- 20
paper. I knew that the Board which made the
appointment was going out of existence on 25th
September, 1960. Applications were considered
on 22.9.60 I do not know why the Board decided
to select a General Manager instead of waiting
until the new Board was appointed. I do not
know whether my chances for selection were better
with the old Board then with the new Board.

The o0ld Board did not interview me.

Re—-examination: 30

The members of the old Board were eligible
for re-appointment. The members of the old
Board were in operation for many years. I
would say that the old Board were outstanding men
in the community. The salary £11,280: was
approved by the Governor-in-Council. in two parts.
The first part $10,560: by letter Exhibit "O"
dated 22.5.57 and $720: approved by the Governor-
in~Council originally in 1954 as Gratuity. It
was the gratuity and salary which were combined. 40

On 16.10.60 I wrote the Financial Secretary.

I also wrote on 8.12.60. This is a copy of the
letter which I wrote. This is the reply dated



59.

12,1.61 Letter dated 8.12.60 tendered, admitt- In the Supreme
ed and marked "S1". Letter dated 12.1.61 Court of
tendered admitted and marked "S2". I had act- British Guiana
ed as Chief Establishment Officer. I have e
known of no case where an officer sged 50 had Plaintiff's
sought leave to retire and Govermment refused TEvidence

the request. Memorandum dgted 7.ll.45 tender—

ed, admitted and marked "T",

’ N009
Adjourned at.3.:30 p.ms on
Thursday 8.3.62 at 9 a.m. C.H. Da S8ilva
Re-
Thursday 8th March, 1962 at 9 a.m. examination
continued

Appearances as before:

Clement Hugh Da Silva re-examined by L.A.
Luckhoo says

The new Board of the B.G. Credit Corpora-
tion was appointed towards the end of October,
1960. I could not have resigned from the

Board. Under Section 4(7) of the Ordinance
provided for resignation of non~official mem-
bers only. In 1933 I was not aware of any age

limit at that time. I had to produce my birth
certificate in 1942 when Government checked the
ages of all persons in the service., We each
had to produce our birth certificates. I pro~
duced my birth certificate. There is an
official ‘document with my age on it. My regis-
tration with the New Widows' and Orphans' Fund.
This is a certified copy of my registration.
Tendered, admitted and marked Exhibit "U",

There was no requirement in the advertisement
for age. In order to retire at 50 the officer
would apply. His head of department would say
yes. The officer would go off. The applica-~
tion would then be sent forward to the Colonial
Office for formal approval. The answe?¥ wottld’
come back and the Government would sometimes 2,
3 or 4 months after send the formal letter tell-
ing the applicant of his formal approval. The
vacancy notice was drafted by W. D'Andrade who
was the Financial Secretary. He used the files
to draft the notice. On 27.7.60 I handed a
copy of the draft notice to Mr. Moore on the re-
quest of the Financial Secretary.

The details of the rental of the General
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60.

Manager's house were in the minutes of the Cor-
poration. In the minutes of the meeting of
26.4.60 mention is made of the rental of the
General Manager's house in Peter Rose Street.
These are the minutes of the meeting of 26.4.60 -
item 7. Tendered admitted and marked "V1",
(Item 7 read by witness). These are minutes of
10.6.60. Tendered, admitted and marked "V2",

(Witnegss reads items 6 of the minutes of 1046,60).

These are the minutes of 1.7.60. Tendeyrsd, =
admitted and marked "V3', (Witness reads item
4). These are the minutes of 6.9,.60 tenderad,
agm%gted and marked "V4', (Witness reads item
3\6 2

By the Court:

A gratuity is the pensionable part of =
salary which can be expressed in two ways.
Firstly by a pensionable salary of "X" dollars.
Secondly they could amalgamate gratuity and
salary into one sum showing the total as non-
pengionable which means that the officer draws
the salary but at the end of his service he gets
nothing more. I now say that a gratuity is the
pension of salary and is in lieu of pension.

A pension is the sum an officer receives at
the end of service calculated on the basis of
length of service in months along with other
factors. Notwithstanding the salary of
$£11,280: attached to the post of General Manager
the Governor-in-~-Council could under the provi-
sions of section 6(2) attach a grauity to the
post. All gratuities are payable quarterly and
are based upon completed quarters of service
subject to the right of the officer to elect to
wait until the end of the contract to draw the
whole sum. The £37.10.~. gratuity might have
been quarterly payments. I do not know whether
approval had ever been given for the amalgama-
tion of the salary of $10,560 - £2,200 per annum
with the gratuity of £37.1l0s. per quarter by the
Governor-in-Council. Minutes of meeting of
29.7.60 tendered, by consent, admitted and mark-
ed "W" (from custody of Defendants). I now say
that it was discussed by the Board and it was
understood that the sum of g11,280: represented
an amalgsmgtion of a salary of $10,560: per
annum and a gratuity of £37.10s. per quarter,
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Dr. Ramgahoye:

By Leave of Court:

I did not lknow that the Financial Secretary
had stated to the B.G. Credit Corporation on
11.1.61 that his impression was that I had pre-
pared the draft and that he had revised it. I
am aware that a Mr. Colin Ridley was refused per-
mission to retire at age 50 when I wag acting
Chief Egtablishment Officer. I would say that
the refusal was temporary. I was aware that
notwithstanding secondment for a definite period
the Government was gtill entitled to recall an
officer on strong grounds of public interest.

L.A. Luckhoo by leave:

Mr. Ridley was in the middle of drafting a
new complicated Drainage and Irrigation Ordin-
ance . He applied to go at age 50. At an
interview the Chief Secretary directed that the
Ordinance should be finished by Mr. Ridley.

NO., 10
EVIDENCE OF LOUIS EMILE KRANENBURG

LOUIS EMILE KRANENBURG on his Oath sayss

I am a retired civil servant. I spent 30
years in the Public Service. I retired @as
Permanent Secretary in the Ministry of Communi-
cations and Works. Prior to that I was
Asgigtant Colonial Secretary (Establishment).

I was also attached to the Local Government

Board in my early years.

I began to work with the B.G. Credit Cor—
poration on 8.8.1654. I was appointed Secre-
tary on 11.12.1956. I remained as Secretary
until 8.4.1961. I was under contract and I
served my period until 8.8.61 immediately prior
to which I was on 4 months leave. While I was
Secretary Exhibit “A" appeared in the news-
papers. This was done with the approval of
the Board. Exhibit "B" is the vacancy notice.
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This notice was approved by the Board. I gave
copies of Exhibit "B" to several persons
including the Plaintiff. I was also an applic-
ant for the post of General Menageri”™ " " 0f°
22.9.60 a meeting was held in comnection with
the appointment. The minutes Exhibit "D" are
correct. When I returned to the meeting the
Chairman informed me that Mr. Da Silva had been
gselected for the appointment. This wag done

in the presence of the whole Board. In the
presence of the whole Board I was instructed to
inform Mr. Da Silva accordingly and all applic-~
ants that the appointment had been filled. No
member of the Board objected to these instruc-
tions. I carried out these instructions. I
see Exhibit "E" dated 26.9.60. I gigned this
letter. I wrote it. I showed it to the
Chairman before I despatched it. I carried

the letter and I handed it to Mr. Da Silva on
26.9,60. At the same time I tooik another
letter to Mr. D'Andrade, Financial Secretary,
informing him of Mr. Da Silva's appointment. I
handed Mr. D'Andrade the letter personally.

When I gave Da Silva the letter Exhibit "B" I
asked him how soon he thought he could assume
duty. Da Silva said around the middle of Decem-
ber when he was finished with the Budget.
D'Andrade was in the office at the time. This
converggtion took place in D'Andrade's office.

I think I said that would be &lright.

About one week later Da Silva telephoned me.
In the course of the conversation he said that
he hoped that I would prepare the sérvite agiee-
ment for his appointment early. My recollec-
tion is that I told him that I did not have a
copy of the agreement signed by Cermichael but
that I knew it was in the form used by the Crown
Agents. I t0ld him that he could get a copy of
the form from the Colonial Secretariat. I ask-
ed him to get a copy and put up a rought dralt
of the terms of his appointment for my
consideration.

I received Exhibit "F" dated 3.10.60 from
the Plaintiff. There was a letter and a draft
agreement, I never considered the draft which
Da Silva gent. The Board never considered the
draft. As Secretary of the Corporation I con-
sidered the Plaintiff definitely appointed.

20

30

40



63.

The Board never revoked the appointment. The In the Suprene
letter of 26.9.60 ig the usual way in which Court of
letters are signed by the Secretary of the Board. British Guiana
I knew of no caces where Mr., Moore and I sign ———
%gi;igi.offgge draft was never considered as a Plaintiff's

' ° Evidence

A letter from the Financial Secretary re-

guested the Board to reconsider the appointment. No.10
Exhibit "K" is the letter. The Board congider-
ed the letter. The Board, as a result of the L.E.Kranenburg
request, considered the application again. Up Examination

t0o 15.12.1960 no person other then Da Silva was  continued
appointed. On 15.12.60 I went into office a
little after 9 otclock. I was 10ld that Mr.
Luck of the Ministry of Natural Resources was in
the General Manager's office. I went into him
and after the usual formality Luck told me that
he had come to assume duty as General Manager
and that he had agssumed duty and that he had
already reported in writing to the Chairman. I
told him that we had had no notification of his
appointment and that I shall have to report the
matter to the Chairman. I reported to the
Chairman. I returned to the office. Mr.Luck
was still there.

On 16,12,60 I went to the office. I found
that the Board Room was locked. There was no
key. After making enguiries I reported to the
Chairman who suggested that I asked Mr. Luck. I
telephoned Ifr. Luck's house. He was not there.
I reached him about 11.30 ~ 12 midday at home
and he said that he would let me have the key.

I got the key when Luck came about 2.55.p.m.
There was a Board meeting fixed fo¥ 3 p.ii. that
afternoon. The Chairman was there. -~ He was
accompanied by Mr. Humphrys of lMessrs. Cameron
and Shepherd. They went into the Board Room.
When the meeting commenced certain members
enquired who was the gentleman who was not a mem-
ber of the Board. The Chairman explained that
he wag Humphrys of Cameron and Shepherd, Solici-
tors of the Corporation, whom he had invited to
explain certain aspects of the case which Da
Silva was bringing against the Corporation. The
members then objected as they had not invited
Humphrys and they asked that he be asked to leave.
Humphrys withdrew and he was asked to wait. The
members said that they were not there to discuss
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Mr., Da Silva's case or to listen to advice about
it but that they had come specifically to
appoint a General Manager. INr., Luck was then
invited into the meeting and was agked by
certain members of the Board to prepare his
letter of appointment which he did. It was
typed read over and I was asked by Mr. Andrew
Jemes, who wag Deputy Chairman, To s8ign the ™
letter. I refused to gign the letler explain-
ing that the letter as typed, which I wag asked 10
to sign, was not in accordance with the terms
set out in a letter received by the Financial
Secretary that moraing notifying the conditiouns
under which Mr, Luck was being seconded to the
Corporation as General lanager. That letter
was torn up by Mr. Luck, A new letter in the
terms of the letter from the Financial Secrebary
wes redrafted and actually typed by Mr. Luck and
it was pregented to me again with a requegt that
it be signed. I said that I would sign it 20
under protest which I did. I explained that I
had already signed a letter appointing a General
Menager., That was the letter of 26.3,60 -
Exhibit "EY, That letter which I signed on
16.12.60 under protest was a letter appointing
Mr, Tuck. I alone signed that letter, I was
then Secretary of the Corporation.

Croggs—examined by Ramsahoye:

I do not remember whether the age limit for
entering the service in 1933 was 21. I know 30
of the 1938 General Orders. I 4o not remember
what exigted in 1933. I am aware of section 7
(3) of Ordinance 13 of 1954. I would not know
whether a service agreement should be signed in
the manner set out in 7(3)., I remember a
Service Contract so signed. I have applied”
section 7(3) only when advised. I signed an
authority with a Mr. Yerakadoo.

Mr. Carmichael received a salary of £2200:
p.a. or $840: per month. In addition he 40
received £€37.10s. as gratulty for each period
of 3 months completed service. I do not know
when the gratuity of Mr. Carmichecl was fixed.
I see Exhibit "O" I have never seen Exhibit "O"
before today. This is a signed copy of lebtter
which I wrote on the 22.4.,1960 to the Manager,
Barclays Bank. Tendered, admitted and marked
"X" .
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T remember writing a letter 26,2,1958 - In the Supreme
This is it. Tendered, admitted and marked "Y". Court of
This is an order on the Corporation on the Bank British Guiana

requesting the payment of Mr. Carmichael's
gratuity dated 7.4.1960, Order tendered,-admitted AP
and marked "Z1", and "Z2", i.e, Order with Plaintiff's

. Evidence
receipt.

The adverbtisement for the appointment was No.10
prepared at a place other than the Corporation's
place of businecg, I was not consulted on its L.E.Kranenburg
terms. I see Exhibit "B". I firgt saw Cross—
Exhibit "B" at the meeting of the Board when it examination
was discussed and approved. The Chairman pro- continued

duced it, i.e. Mr. Moore, I do not remember if
Da Silva was present. If the minutes state that
Da Silva was present then the minutes must be
correct. I would say that the draft was Jjust
put, read and approved. I do not remember any
dissenting voice. I do not remember anyone
criticising the draft. I did apply for the
appointment. I do not know huw the draft had
been prepared elsewhere. It did not worry me.

I did not ask why it was done that way. Normally
posts were not advertised.

Adjourned to 1l.15 p.m.

Resumed at 1.15 p.m. on 8.3.62.

LOUIS EMILE KRANENBURG on his oath says under
cross-~examinations:

Mr. Da Silva did say he could assume duty
about the middle of December. I do not think
that this appears in the minutes. He told me so
on 26.9.60, I was present ab the Board meetings
subsequent to 26.9,.60. I cannot say whether
there was a meeting on 27.10.60. I never report-
ed what Da Silva saoid to a meeting of the Board.

I asked Da Silva to prepare a rough draft of the
agreement . There was no reason why I could not
get the form and prepare the agreement except

that he was on the spot and could easily get it.
The draft agreement was submitted with a letter of
3,10.60 which I showed to the Chairman.  The
draft agreement was with the letter. The Chair-
man read it, noted it and gave it back to me.

The letter of 3.10.60 wzas put before ameeting
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of the Board. It was put up with a letter from
Da Silvats lawyers. The letter and the draft
agreement were put before the Board. The
minutes of 27.10.60 are correct. I now say that
Da Silva's letter and the draft agreement were
submitted with a letter from the Financial Secre-
tary. I know that in December, 1960 until
January 1962 Da Silva held the office of Deputy
Financial Secretary. Mr. Moore regigned as
Chairman on 18.3.61. Mr. Fisher resigned on
24,3.61. Letter dated 6.4.61 from Financial
Secretary to Secretary, Credit Corporation, tend-
ered, admitted and marked "AA", The duties of
the Official member were the same as those of
every other member. There is provision for mem-
bers other than official members to resign. The
Governor could have revoked the appointment of a
member. I was a contract officer.

10

The paragraph about pension scheme clause
6 means that the Corporation was congsidering a
contributbtory pension scheme. It was likely that
the General Manager would have been eligible for
contribution to a Pension Scheme if ever it was
introduced. In November I was told that the
Board sat and selected Mr. Luck for appointment.
I was not present.

20

Re—examination:

Mr. Luck was never informed. The gelection
was to be reported to Government for approval in
the first instance before he was informed. Yihen
I was appointed in 1954 I had no agreement. I
was appointed Secretary on 11.12.56. In July,
1959, I signed a service agreement. It was &
considerable time after the appointment. It had
retrogpective effect. I signed the service
agreement and the General Manager signed.
body else signed.

30

No-

By the Court:

I presume that the sum £11,280: was made up
of the salary of £2,200: per annum and the
gratuity of £37.10s. per quarter. I have no
recollection of the Board considering the salary
in relation to the gratuity. I was ware that
the Governmor-in-Council had to approve of a
salary above £480: I do not know whether the

40
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Board asked for the approval of the sum of
#11,280: I was instructed to ask the Governor-
in-Couneil for approval of Mr. Luck's appoint-
ment. I would agree that the Board could have
recommended a gratuity to the holder of the

post of General Manager quite apart from the
salary of 311,280: offered. The Corporation
did not consider provision of section 6(1) of
Ordinance 13 of 1954 in relation to this appoint-
ment . I would say that the Governor-in~Council
had already assigned a salary in excess of four
thousand eight hundred dollarsg a year.

By Mxr. Luckhoo:

The previous General Manager received $880:
per month and 180: every three months. It
would be worth $940: each month to the General
Manager. That had the sanction of the Governor-
in-Council.

CASE FOR THE PLAINTIFF CLOSED.

DEFENDANT 'S EVIDENCE

NO.11
EVIDENCE OF JAISAY GIRDHAR

JAISAR GIRDHAR on his oath says:

I am acting Chief Accountant of the B.G.
Credit Corporation. I have been employed since
November, 1955, I dealt with staff salaries
including the salary of Mr.Carmichael. When
Mr. Carmichael was General Manager I wrote up
the cash book. These are Minutes of a Meeting
of the Corporation of 26.3.57. Tendered and
marked "BB". It deals with a recommendation
in Mr. Carmichael's salary to increase from
£2,000 to £2,200: In May 1957 the approval
was given by letter BExhibit "O". DMr. Car-
michael received Z880: per month up to July,
1960. The last payment was £3,420: for 4
months, April, May, June and July, 1960. Mr.
Carmichael received gratuity up to March, 1960.
Mr. Carmichael worked in April. He received
none. During May, June and July he was on
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68.

leave. The gratuity was payable for every com-
pleted quarter of service. As he had only
worked for April Mr. Carmichael would not get
the gratuity.

I know there was an advertisement for a
General Manager. There was no communication
from the Government on the guestion of salary
after Exhibit "O", i.e. in May, 1957. No fur-~
ther communication was received after May, 1957.

Cross-examined by Luckhoo:

In June -~ July 1960, I was a Grade A Clerk
until September, 1961. After that I was made
accountants (acting). In 1960 the Accountant
wag R. Yerrakadoo. In 1860 Mr. Yansen was
Chief Accountant. They would be better
acquainted with what happened in 1960 than I
would.

In March, 1957, a gratuity of £37.1l0s. was
being paid for every completed 3 months service.

Re—~examination:

Declined.

CASE FOR THE DEFENCE CLOSED.

N0,12
JUDGES NOTES OF COUNSEL'S ADDRESSES

Dr. P.W.H. Ramsahoye:

Contract ultra vires.

Even if there wag a concluded contract the
contract was ultra vires.

Figure of £11,280: was unauthorised merger
of gratuity and salary or unauthorised figure.

Refers to section 6 of Ordinsnce 13 of
1954,

Advertisement shows not only payment of
salary but also of pension.
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Submits that there was no concluded con-
tract because bthere was no intention on the
parties to create legal relationships.

Plaintiff was not capable of committing
himself to a time of assuming duty.

In mind of plaintiff the Defendant's offer
was in their letter of 26.9,60.

submits that the Plaintiff made a counter
offer in terms different from those offered.

Submits that the counter offer destroyed
the offer and the Plaintiff has not accepted
the offer to this day.

Crossley v. Maycock (1374) 18 Ex. C.180.
Jones v. Daniel (1894) 2 Ch. 332.

Cheghire & Fifoot, Low of Contract 4th
Rdition p.3l.

Question of Mutuality:

Plaintiff wag not in a position to bind
himself to the Corporation.

Refers to Halsbury - 3rd Edition Vol.8
p.69 para. 118 note (b).

Booker v. Palmer (1942) 2 All E.R. 674
P.67T.

L.A. Luckhoo:

Asks for an adjournment to Monday 12.3.62.
at 9 a.m.

Monday l2th March, 1962 at 9 a.m,
L.A. Luckhoo, G.C. replies for Plaintiff:

Case of an individual against the Credit
Corporation which is aulonomous. Not a case
of Clement Da Silva and the Government.

(1) Is Plaintiff's story to be.accepted.

(2) Was there a valid contract.
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70

(3) 1If there was, who is responsible for
the breach.

(4) The Defendant had the power to appoint
a General Manager and if they did was
the salary assigned shown to be ultra
vires

(5) Rule of Estoppel and Conditions
Precedent.

(6) Consideration of the Defence.

(7) Question of Damages. 10
Were the terms of a valid contract in existence.

Anson's Law of Contract.

Exhibit "A" shows an invitation to the
public.

In Exhibit "B" all the details of the con-
tract. Refers to section 4 of Exhibit "B".

Appointment under section 6 of Ordinance
13 of 1954.

The Plaintiff in Exhibit "C" says that in
response to Exhibit "B" he applied for appoint- 20
nent.

Refers to para.5 of Statement of Claim.

The Plaintiff's offer was accepbted in the
clearest possible manner.

Only communication was required to make the
contract complete.

Test of acceptance is objective. It is
not a subjective tesgt.

Upton-on~-Severn Rural Council v, Powell
(1942) T EIT E.R. 270,

Letter of 26.9.60 is the communication. 30

Powell v. Lee (1908) 99 L.7. 284.

If no time is stated then, a reasonable
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time is to be inferred. In the Supreme

Court of
Halsbury, 3rd Edition Vol.8, 163, para.278. British Guiana

If the law principles are established then No.12

the contract is complete.

at p.514.

the Plaintiff to turn on immediately.

as

Hillas & Co. v. Arcos (1932) 147 L.T. 503 g?dgiinggf?:

Addresges
12th March 1962
continued

No suggestions that the Defendants required

Time not of the essence of the contract.

Rossiter v. Miller (1878) 3 A.C. 1124.

Refers to letter of 3.10.60. Never treated
counter offer or a repudiation of the offer.

P.1150
Branker v. Cabarra (1947) 2 A1l E.R. 101.

Refers to IZxhibit "B" para.6.

Repudiation is operative only if it comes

from the one side and is communicated to the
other.

Morrison on Repudiation of Contracts.

Ch. 4 p.34 p.37

Byrne v. Van Tienhoven (1880) 5 C.P.D. 344.
There was a good and binding contract.
Point (3): New Board met on 27.10.60.
Refers to Exhibit “X".

Refers to letter of 18.10.60.

Refers to Exhibit "G1".

Refers to Exhibit "G2" of 11.11.60.

Point (4)

Operation of Omnia Praesumuntar.
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Refers:
Broom's Legal Maxims ~ 9th Edition 611.

It cannot be questioned whether the Govern-
or-in-Council.

Adjourned to 1.15 p.m.

Resumed at 1l.15 pele

Luckhoo, Q.C. continues:

Presumption is that the issue of the
particulars had the full sanction of the Law.

The vacancy note was typed and prepared by
a member of the Governor—in-~Council.

The letter of Appointment was in terms of
the advertisement.

Subsequently the Governor-in-Council con-~
sidered the whole of the matter. The letter
does not raise the question of the right to
appoint but only raises the guestion of the suit-
ability of the appointee. Only conclusion is
that the salary was approved by the Governor-—in-~
Council.

Minutes of 25.,11.60.

Financial Secretary not called,

Chairman of the Corporation not called.

Refers to Order 17 Rule 1l4.

The letter of the Financial Secretary was
by implication approval of the salary of
S{l,280:

R. v. Reynolds (1893) 2 Q.B.

Refers to para.l9 of the Defence. Salary
and Gratuity.

The gross amount of the salary advertised
was approved by the Governor-in-Council in two
different parts.
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Attorney General v. Great Eastern Railway

(18807 5 £.C. 473, p.478.

Says that the combination of the salary and

gratuity should be considered as intra vires.
Royal British Rank v, Turquand, 119 E.R. 886.

The Claim of Br. of warranty of authority

could have been raised by the Plaintiff is the
question of ultra vires.

Stankie v. Bank of England (1903) A.C. 114.

Br., Rugsian Gazette v. Associated Newspapers

(1933 7 X.5. 616.

The Defendants by their conduct are precliuded”
from denying the existence c¢f a valid contract
between the Plaintiff and the Defendants.

Refers to the several minutes of the

Defendant Corporatiom.

Plaintiff does not have to plead a condition

precedent.

There could have been oral approval given by

the Governor-in—Council to the Chairman through
the Financial Secretary.

212.

182,

Mayne on Demages.
Contract of Employment p.322.
Lindsey Queen's Hotel Limited (1919) 1 K.B.

Monk v. Redwing Aircraft (1942) 1 K.B.D.
156,

Hayward v. Pullinger (1950) 1 All. E.R.581.

Refers to statement of claim.
Loss of salary.
Loss of House Rent.

Loss of Leave Passage.
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19th March 1962

T4.

Powell v. Lee

Refers to Independence of Corporation.
Ramgahoye: In reply:
On question of damages.

Plaintiff was holding employment as Deputy
Financial Secretary.

Plaintiff suffered no logs.

Adjourned to Monday 19th March,
1962 for Decision.

Monday 19th March, 1962. 10
Appearances as before.

Written Judgment delivered.

The Actlon is dismissed. The Plaintiff
is ordered to bear his own costs and to pay one
half of the taxed cogtg of the Defendant Cor-
poration certified fit for counsel.

Luckhoo applies for stay of execcution for
6 weeks.

No objection by Ramsahoye.

Stay of execution granted for 6 weeks, 20

H.A. FRASER
19.3.62.
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NO.13 In the Supreme
Court of
(Title as No.l) British Guiana
JUDGMENT No,l13
ent
"The law of Contract," Chitty said, "is {ggﬁgmh
"concerned with those undertakings between man 1362

"and man which the law will, if necessary, en-
"force in case either of the parties fails to
"carry out his bargain in order that the legiti~
"mate expectation of the other in the realiza-—
"tion of his object may not be defeated."

That precise statement of the law accurately
describes both the ancient and the modern concept
of the right of each individual to be his owh ~
legislator; but the growth of society and the
development of commerce have created an artifi-
cial Jjuristic person in the form of a corpora-
tion which, although inanimate, has perpetual
succeggion and is invested witin the capacity of
acting in several respects as an individual
according to the powers conferred upon it by the
instrument of its creation. The principles of
law upon which the ligbility of a corporation is
to be decided,as far as it is necessary for the
decision of this case, are very clear and well
settled, although, perhaps, in practice, not al-
ways steadily kept in view.

The Defendant is a statutory corporation
established by the British Guiana Credit Corpor-
ation Ordinance, 1954 - No.l3 of 1954. The
Plaintiff, at the time the Writ was filed, was
an official member of the Defendant Corporation.
He then held the office of Deputy Financial
Secretary in the public service of this country
and continued to hold that office until 21st
January, 1962, when he retired after 28 years
service. He now receives a pension and is not
employed. He is Bl years old.

The Plaintiff seeks a declaration that he
is the General lMenager of the Defendant Corpora~
tion by virtue of his appointment to that post
by the Board of the Corporation. Alternatively,
the Plaintiff claims from the Defendant Corpora-
tion the sum of $100,000: as damages for breach
of a contract to employ him as its General
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Manager. There is no claim for specific
performance because an ordinary contract for
personal services is not so enforceable;

but it seems that the claim for a declaration
in the terms sought by the Plaintiff is
intended to achieve the purpose of a decree
of specific performance and I should say at
once that the Court will not make a declare—
tory order in those circumstances.

When the hearing commenced on 28th
February, Dr. Ramsahoye submitted that the
interrogatories answered by Mr. J.H. McB.Moore,
a former Chairman of the Defendant Corporation,
should be removed from the record on two
grounds. Firstly, he submitted, the order
directing the interrogatories made by Mr.
Justice Bollers, was bad for want of form and
was therefore a nullity; and, secondly, Mr.
Moore had ceased to be a member of the
Defendant Corporation for several months be-
fore he actually answered the interrogatories.
I do not agree with the submission. Mr.
Moore had resigned from the Board on 18th
March, 1961. The interrogatories were
answered on 26th October, 1961. Agsunming,
without deciding, that the Order made by Mr.
Justice Bollers was defective in form objec-
tion could have been taken on summons at
time under the provisions of Order 26 Rule 1l
of the Rules of the Supreme Court, 1955.

With regard to the second limb of the submis-
sion the position is that the Court has
Jurisdiction to meke the order if the person
ordered is an officer of the corporation at
the time of the making of the Order - see

The Madrid Bank -v— Bayley (186A) 2 {.B. 37.
Once that order is made it must be complied
with unless varied and I have seen no author-
ity that allows the exemption of an~dfficer™
who retires before compliance. Quite apart
from this however, the solicitor for the
Defendant Corporation, subsequently to Mr.
Moore's retirement, made two applications on
the ground of illness for an exhension of
time for Mr. Moore to answer the interroga-—
tories. Both applications were granted.
Decision on this submission was reserved and
there being no merit I made no order; but it
is not without interest to recall that no
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reference whatsoever was made to the interroga-
tories by either counsel throughout the trial.

I now turn to the case. The issues are
not involved. hey fit narrowly into two pro-
positions and I cannot but comment on the length
of time devoted to evidence in a situation that
fully justified an agreement on the facts except
proof of damage. The two propcsitions are
these: (1) Whether there was mutuality in the
contract; and (2) Whether the contract was
ultra vires the Defendant Corporation.

On the question of mutuality it was sub-
mitted that the Plaintiff's acceptance was not
final in that he made a counter offer to the
Defendant Corporation and that in any event
there was no intention between the parties to
create legal relations by the correspondence
exchange. On this issue the facts are as
follows :~ pursuant to an advertisement appear—
ing in the Daily Chnronicle on 6th August, 1960,
the Plaintiff obtained from the secretary of the
Defendant~Corporation particulars of the vacancy
of the post of General Manager- In the State-
ment of particulars the salary and allowances as
well as the conditions and duration of service
were get out. By letter dated 24th August,
1960, the Plaintiff applied for the post.. In
all there were 26 applicants for the posdtiy™ At
a properly constituted meeting of the Board held
on 22nd September, 1960, the Plaintiff who was
not in attendance was selected for appointment.
It is important to reproduce the record of what
occurred. The minutes read :-

"(iid) Appointment of a General Menager,
vice Mr. W.0. Garmichael: Ag the
secretary was one of the applicants
for the position, he withdrew from
the meeting while this item was be-
ing considered.

All applications which had been
recelved as a result of the adver—
tisement published locally and in
the West Indies were then carefully
considered, and Mr., Clement H. Da
Silva, now Deputy Financial Secre-
tary and Official Member of the
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Board, was chosen for the appoint-
ment . It was decided that Mr. Da
Silva be notified and Government
be advised of the appointment;

all the unsuccessful applicants to
be notified that the position had
been filled.

burg, the secretary of the corporation handed
the Plaintiff personally a letter in these
termss

"26th September, 1960C.

Mr.C.H. Da Silva
etec.

Dear Sir,

With reference to ycur letter of 24th
August, 1960, applying for the vacant post
of General Manager of this Corporation I
am pleased to inform you that a meeting of
the Corporation held on Thursday, 22nd
September, 1969, you were uelected for the
appointment on the terms and conditions as
advertised; and I shall be glad to be
informed as early as possible, how soon you
would be able to take up the appointment.

Yours faithfully,

L.E. Kranenburg
Secretary"

On 3rd October, 1960, the Plaintiff replied in
these terms:

"3rd October, 1960.
Dear Sir,

Appointment as General Manager

I thank you for your leite¥ of~ 26th
September informing me of my selection for
appointment as General Manager. I enclose
a draft agreement of service which I shall
enter in with the Corporation. I accept
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the appointment. In the Supreme
Court of
I am reporting the position to the British Guiana
Government with a view to reledgse 8% Barly ——
ag possgible., Meanwhile I would ask that No.13
no official announcement be made by the *
Corporation. Tudgment
. 19th March 1962
Yourg Sincerely, continued

C.H.Da Silva".

Attached to this letter there was a draft agree-
ment of service which included some terms which
had not appeared in the statement of particulars
of the vacancy supplied to the plaintiff by the
secretary, and others which varied some of the
terms in the statement. The Plaintiff explain-
ed the circumstances of his sending the draf?t
agreement . I believe him; but those circum-
stances have no relevance to the legal effect

of the documents sent by the Plaintiff on 3rd
October.

Dr. Ramsahoye cited two cases which are
precisely on the point and prima facie might ap-
pear to resolve the issue. = In the case of
Joneg v. Daniel (1894) 70 L.T. (n.s.) 588 the
letter of acceptance by the vendor's solicitor
stated that the vendor had accepted the offer
and that a contract was enclosed for signature
by the purchaser. The contract carried terms
which were not in the offer made. In an action
for specific performance it was held that there
was no contract between the partiesg.” “Similarly
in the case of Crossley v. Maycock (1874) L.R.
18 Egq., C 180, the vendors wrote to the intending
purchasers as follows:

"eeesesssWhich offer we accept and now
hand you two copies of conditiong of
sale and therewith enclosed a formal
agreement with conditions of a special
character."

It was held that the acceptance was conditional
and therefore there was no contract.

In congidering this aspect of the matter I
wish to say that in my view a contract between
parties is subgstantially a matter of intention
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and behaviour and while Jjudicial authority pre-
scribes the principles to be applied it is un-
safe to adopt and apply a conclusion drawn from
a set of facts in one case to those of another
case even though apparently similar. In this
case there is a feature which I consider rele-
vant and which in my mind creates a difference.
The Plaintiff's letter of 3rd October was read
at a meeting of the Board on 27th October, 1960.
According to Mr. Kranenburg the draft agreement
was attached to it at the time but it does not
appear from the minutes that the terms of the
draft were considered. The reason for this
was, it seems, that immediately after the Plain-~
tiffts letter was read the Chairmen read another
letter dated 18th October, 1960, from the
Financial Secretary to the Chairman of the
Corporation. That letter was as follows:

"18th October, 1960.
Sir,

With reference to the Secretary's
letter of 26th September and our subse-~
quent conversetions on the subject of
filling the vacant post of General Manager
of the Corporation, I am directed to in-
form you that the matter was considered by
the Governor-in-Council.

2. I amn to agk the Board of the Corpor-
ation to re-examine the recommendation
made as the Government is anxiolis™that™
the best person available be obtained for
the post. If the Board wishes to have
the qualifications of any of the candi-
dates residing in the West Indies further
invesgtigated, the Chief Secretary would
be glad to enligt the aid of the Govern-
ment of the territory in which the candi-
date ig residing. If the Board is not
satigfied that any of the persons who
have so far applied is suitable, the
vacancy should be re-~advertised over a
wide field.

3. I should be grateful if you would
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put the matter to your Board accordingly. In the Supreme
Court of
I have etc. British Guiana
W.A. D'Andrade No.l3

Financial Secretary.
. . Judgnment

After the two letters were read it was decided
to congider the matter at a special meeting to Loth March 1962
be held on 4th November. It is not clear
whether the mabtter was considered at that meetb-
ing but in the minutes of a meeting held on
11lth November it is recorded ag follows:

continued

"10. Appointment of a General Manager:

The matter was considered in terms of
the Financial Secretary letter No. F.S.G.
283/55 II dated 18th October 1960, (see
paragraph 8 of the minutes of Members
Meeting, 27th October 1960.)

The qualifications training and experi-
ence of all the candidates were reviewed
exhausgtively by the Board who unanimously
agreed that Mr. G.E. Luck, Permanent Sec—
retary, Ministry of Natural Resources,
British Guiana, was suitable for the post
and should be appointed.

It was decided, however, not to
offer Mr. Luck the appointment until the
Governor-in-Council had been informed of
the decision and had approved the
gelection."

It seems clear that the Plaintiff's letter of
3rd October had made no impact on the Board
either as an acceptance of an offer or as a
conditional acceptance. By 27th October,
except for the Chairman and a single member,

a new crew had manned the decks of the Board,

a sight was taken on a new tangent and the ship
had altered its course. The Plaintiff's ap-
pointment was not a matter of momert at the
meeting of 27th October and I am satisfied

that the form of his acceptance was not consid-
ered by the Board then or at any time afterwards
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The Plaintiff said that the revised terms
included in the draft were not intended as a
counter~offer. He conceded however that he
wished that the hopes he expressed in that
form might be fulfilled. He said he was quite
prepared to take the appointment on the terms
set out in the statement of particulars. Mr.
Da Silva had hoped to retire. He expected a

atuity of £15,625: and an annual pension of

3,750. In addition, his own house was let 10
for #325: and by virtue of his appointment as
General Manager he wag likely to obtain the
facility of a free partly furnished hous€ of a
rental value of £225:  Above all thie he was
to receive an ammual salary $11,280: as General
Manager. In these circumstances can it be
sald that he was making a counter-offer? I
think not. I believe his evidence on this
point. The whole web of the defence on this
aspect arose ex pogt facto and had no factual 20
bearing on the behaviour and intentions of the
Board on 27th October or subsequently.

Dr. Ramsahoye also urged that the Plain-
tiff was in no position to accept the post of
General Manager because he did not intend to
resign and his secondment or retirement depend-
ed upon a number of factors over which he had
no control. I do not think there is much
weight in this submission. If there was a
contract which the Plaintiff could not perform 30
he may have been liable for a breach but the
probability or the inevitability of a breach of
contract has no causal influence on an inten-
tion to create legal relations; if it did, it
will be impossible to establish a breach of
contract unless it can be shown that the party
in breach was able to perform at the time the
contract wag made. The whole fabric of the
law of contract would become weakened and a
wide door would be left open for dishonourable 40
dealing. In the absence of a stipulation as
to time of performance a reasonable” timé must
be presumed and the circumstences of "@ach case
must determine what is a reasongble time.

In paragraph 19(b) of the defence it is
pleaded that the Secretary was not legally
entitled to write the letter of 26th September,
1960. I construe this to mean that if the
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letter of 26th September 1960 is considered to In the Supreme

be the Defendant Corporation's offer then the Court of
secretary had no authority to sign it or alter~  British Guiana
natively that the purported offer of the e
Defendant Corporation was not made in accord- No.13

ance with the Ordinance. If this is so, the

Defendent Corpcration would be entitled to con- Judement

tend that thers was an absence of mutuality. A l9t§éMarch 1962
velled suggestion of this was made in the cross-— continﬁed
exanination of Mr. L.E. Kranenburg and copies

of two letters were tendered to show the manner

in which documents are executed by the corpora~

tion on a gpecial authority. Dr. Ramgahoye did

not address on this aspect of the defence but it

must nonetheless be considered.

At common law a corporation could only bind
itself by contract under the common seal except
in some elight metters of service, e.g. the
employment of a cook or gardener. It is however
not necessary to use the common seal if the in-
corporating statute specifically provides for an
alternative method of signifying assent. As T
understand the position the common seal can al-
ways be used on the proper authority being given
but the absence of the seal will not affect the
element of mutuality if the contract is executed
strictly in accordance with the formalities pre-
scribed in the Ordinance ~ see The Queen v. The
Justices of Cumberland, (1847) I7 Q.8. 102. In
the case of Brnest v, Nicholls, (1857) 6 H.L.C.
401, Lord Wensleydale said at p.419:

"All persons, therefore, must take notice
of the deed and the provisions of the Act.
If they do not choose to acquaint them-
selves with the powers of the directors,
it is their own fault, and if they give
credit to any unauthorised persons they
must be contented to look to them only,
and not to the company at large. The
stipulationg of the desd, which TesgtTict
and regulate their authority, are obliga-
tory on those who deal with the company;
and the directors can make no contract so
as to bind the whole body of shareholders
for whose protection the rules are made,
unless they are strictly complied with."

In the case of Fountaine v, Carmarthen Railway
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Co,, (1868) 5 L.R. 316 Sir W. Page Wood, V.C.
gaid at pp.321 - 332:

M eesesoes Where there is merely a power
vested in directors to act for the com-
pany in certain special emergencies, the
Court is obliged to congsider all acts of
directors by which it is sought to bind
the company as being the acts of agenls
soeeeo and in the casge of companies where
directors are the special agents of the
company, and do not possess The power of
affixing the corporate seal except under
certain prescribed rules, a person who
deals with the directors is taken to have
notice of the rules .e0.. and if there be
anything to be done which can only be
done by the directors under certain limit-
ed powers, the person who deals with the
directors must see that those limited
powers are not being exceeded."

In Chitty on Contracts, 21st Edition, page 35
it is stated:

"The lagt requisite to the agreement
of the parties is that the assent should
be mutual, This may mean cne of at
least two things: either {a) that the
parties must be agreed on the same thing
in the same sense; or (b) that there-
must be, in a simple contract at lease,
obligations on both sides and not on one
gide only. There must be reciprocity of
obligation."

And at page 36:

"Lack of Mutualitys Whenever it appears
that, if the contract were not binding
on both parties at the time it was madle,
thig want of mutuality would 1&8ave& one
party without a valid and available con-
sideration for his promise, then the
contract will be void."

It has long been settled that in order to bind
a corporation the agreement must be under seal
or executed in the prescribed menner.
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Section 7 of the British Guiana Credit
Corporation Ordinance reads as follows:-

"7(1) The seal of the Corporation
shall be kept in the custody of the
Chairman cr the Deputy Chairmen or the
Szcretary of the Corporation and may be
affixed to instruments pursuant to a
resolution of the Corporation in the pre-
sence of the Chairman or Deputbty Chairman
and the Secretary.

(2) The seal of the Corporation shall
be authenticated by the signature of the
Cheirman, or Deputy Chairman and the
Secretary.

(3) All documents, other than those
required by law to be under seal made by,
and all decisions of, the Corporation may
be signified under the hand of the Chair-
man or Deputy Chairman or General llanager
and the Secretary.

Section 13 of the Ordinance ag repealed and re-
enacted by section 2 of the Eritish Gulana
Credit Corporation (Amendment) Ordinance, 1955-
No.1l3 of 1955 ~ provides as follows for the
execution of documents:

13. Any transport, mortgage, lease,
asgignment, transfer, agreement, or other
document reguiring to be executed by the
Corporation, or any cheque, bill of
exchange or order for the payment of money
requiring to be executed by the Corpora-
tion shall be deemed to be duly executed
if signed by a person or persons speclally
or generally authorised by resolution of
the Corporation so to sign."

Having considered thoge two sections the posi-
tion seems to me to be this: In order to
bind the Defendant Corporation the letter of
26Tth September should bear the commoii seal in
menner provided by section 7 or chould be sign-
ed by some person or persons specisally or
generally authorised by a resolution of the
corporation. There is nothing to indicate
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that Mr. L.E. Kranenburg as secretary was
ever alone specially authorised to sign for
the corporation. On the contrary the copies
of the two letters tendered by the Defendant
Corporation show that the Secretary and the
Chief Accountant were given special authority.
In the case of A.R.Wright and Son Ltd. v.
Romford Corporation i
there wag an agreement in writing but not

under seal, signed by the borough engineer on 10
behalf of the corporation and being made in
accordance with the corporation's standing

orders, it was contended that it was valld by
virtue of section 266(2) of the Local Govern-

ment Act, 1933, which required a contract to

be so made, and becauge the corporation could
appoint and had validly appointed the borough
gurveyor to execute the written contiratt on

their behalf under section 74(2) of the Law

of Property Act, 1925. In giving judgment 20
Lord Goddard said at p. 788:

eesveees "out section 74(2) of the Act of
1925 cannot, in my opinion, in any way
validate an agreement which is not under
seal and does not fall within the recog—
nised exceptions, unless, indeed, it be
made under some authority conferred by
statute on the particular corporation.
Although it may be distasteful to give
effect to a technical defence of this 30
description, it is a valid defence in
law, and it accordingly follows that the
action cennot be maintained."

This principle was also considered in the
case of Cope v. The Thames Have+n Dock and
Railway Co. (1649) 3 &x. E. 841, The head-
note reads as follows:

A Railway Company was incorporated by an

Act of Parliament, one gechtion of which
enacted, that the directors should have 40
power to use the common seal on behalf

of the Company, and that all contract

relating to the affairs of the Company,

signed by three directors in pursuance

of a resolution of a court of directors,
should be binding on the Company,. ~The
following sectvion enacted, +that the
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directors should have full power to employ
all such menagers, officers, agents,
clerks, workmen, and servants as they
should think proper.

By resolution of the board of direce
tors, signad by their chairman, the
plaintiff was appointed agent to negotiate
with another railway for the lease of the
line t=—

Held, thet the contract was not binding on
the Company, it not having been sealed, or
executed with the required formalities.

For the reasons given I must find that there
was a lack of mutuality between the parties on
the gole ground that no enforceable offer or
acceptance was made by the Defendant corpora~
tion for the reason that the document dated
26th September, 1960 was not executed by the
corporation in the manner required by section 7
or section 13 of the Ordinance.

I now turn to the second proposition and
that is whether the conlract was ultra vires
the Defendant Corporation. I propose to deal
with this matter on the assumption that my
finding on the first proposition is wrong and
that therefore the contract is in other regpects
validly enforceable. This proposition is
pleaded in paragraph 19(d&) of the statement of
defence.

Sub~sections 1 and 2 of section 6 of the
Ordinance reads as follows:

Appointment 6(1) The Corporation shall

of General appoint and employ at such re-
Manager, muneration and on such terms and
Secretary, conditions as they think fit a
Officers General Manager, a Secretary and
and such other officers and such
servants. servants as they deem necessary

for the proper carrying out of
the provisions of this Ordinance:

Provided that no salary in
excegs of the rate of four
thousand eight hundred dollars
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per annum shall be agsigned to any

post under this subsection without

the prior approval of the Governor-—
in-Council.

(2) No provigions shall be made
for the payment of any pensions,
gratuities or other-like benefits to
the General Manager, the Secretary,
other officers, servants or to other
persons by reference to their ser-
vice without the prior approval of
the Governmor-in-~Council,.

On behalf of the Plaintiff it is contended
that the Defendant Corporation has the power
to appoint and that the stipulation regarding
assignment of the salary does not affect the
power to appoint. In the light of the
authorities that contention is untenable. The
appointing process necegsarily itnvolves the™
assigmment of a salary. Subsection (1) does
not permit an appointment to be made without
remuneration and it has long been egtablished
that the powers of a corporation are only such
as are conferred vy the statute. It cannot
therefore be contended that a corporation can
do anything which is not specifically pro-
hibited by the statute. It is true that by
virtue of section 6 of the Defendant Corpora-
tion has unfettered power to contract for
matters like a free furnished house, for
travelling allowance and for leave; but how
effectively can the corporation exercige that
power if the power to fix the salary is
fettered by a condition precedent? The power
cannot be exercised unless the condition pre-
cedent is fulfilled. In the case of Attorney
General v. Lord Mayor of City of Sheffield
(1912) 106 L.T. 367 hve, J. said at p.370:

"One must look at the transaction
as a whole, and the fact, if indeed it
be a fact that the Defendants have power
to do a part of the act will not legalise
the act if its completion involves at any
stage a step ultra vires of the
corporation.”

I wish to adopt what was said in Hattersley v.

10

20

30

40



10

30

40

89.

The Earl of Shellburne (1862) 31 L.J.R. 873.
Vice Chancellor Xindersley said at p. 878:

"But it is clear, that all the matters
that are specifically agreed to be done
by this agreement are all component parts
of one design, and for the purpose of
accomplishing one single end. They are
different wheels and levers and springs
of one complete machine, by which the
object of that machine is to be worked;
and if it were not for accomplishing that
one object none of these details would
have been agreed upon or made the subject
of any stipulations.”

Before dealing with the facts in the case before
me there are two other cases to which I wish to
refer, The first is the case of Davig v. Cor-
poration of Leicester (1893) 2 Ch. D.208. The
facts as set out in the headnote were these:

In March, 1888, a municipal corpora—
tion offered for sale by auction, in lots,
some of their corporate land, subject to
special conditions restricting the right
of each purchaser to build on his lot.

At the auction none of the lots were sold.
In June, 1888, the Plaintiff entered into
a contract to purchase two of the lots,
subject to the conditions. The proper
steps were taken to obtain the approval of
the treasury, which is required by sects.
108 109, of the Municipal Corporations
Act, 1882, to enable a municipal corpora-
tion to sell their corporate land; and
that approval was given in the ordinary
way by two Lords of the Treasury joining
in the conveyance to the Plaintiff. The
conveyance contained a covenant by the
Plaintiff in the terms of the restrictive
conditions, but there was no reference to
those conditions, or to the previous
abortive sale. There was no covenant by
the corporation binding them by the condi-
tions as regarded the unsold lots, and the
Treasury were not, before they gave their
approval, informed that the corporation
would be liable to any such restriction.
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The Corporation afterwards contracted with
the trustees of a church to sell to them
two others of the lots, and authorised
them to build on those lots in a manner
inconsistent with the conditions:-

Held, by North, J., and by the Court
of Appeal, that, if the corporation had
been ordinary individuals, they would have
been bound by the original building scheme,
and that they, and the trustees, wno had 10
purchased with notice of the scheme, must
have been restrained from building or
permitting building on the lots purchased
by the trustees, in a mammer inconsiztent
with the conditions:

But held, that the Treasury had only ziven
their approval to what was to he found in

the conveyance, and that they had not

sanctioned the digposition by the corpora~

tion in favour of the Plaintiff of any 20
right over other land than that which was
conveyed to him, and consequently that

neither the corporation nor the trustees

could be restrained from violating the
conditions.

In delivering judgment Kay, L.J., said at
235:

"Therefore the case is reduced to this,

that the Plaintiff is now seeking to

bind the corporation and the other 30
Defendants who have purchased other lands

from the corporation by an implied agree-

ment from the building scheme, which he

says was a term and condition of the dis-
position of the land t0 him which he

bought, which alleged implied agreement

and which terms and conditiorns have never

been submitted to the Treasury, and, of

course, have not been approved by them.

The answer is that such a thing would be 40
ultre vires of the corporation, because,

as 1 read sect. 109, such terms and

conditions attached to the sale of the
particular lands which the Plaintiff

bought could not be made valid &nd ™~

binding upon the corporation without

the approval of the Treasury."
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The other case is Pacific Coast Coal Mineg, Lim.
v. Arbuthnot (1917) 86 L.J .P.C. 172. In that
case a company incorporated under the Companies
Acts of British Columbia entered into an agree-
ment which was admitted to be ultra vires, and
obtained a private Act of the provincial Legis—
Lature to validate it. The Act "validated,
ratified, and confirmed" the agreement, "sub-
ject to the same being adopted by a resolution
passed by 75 per cent of the shareholders of

the Company present personally or by proxy, &b
any meeting of the shareholders:of the said
Company called for that purpose, and Tor the
purpose of authoriging the issue of the gaid ‘
debentures, after the 14th day of Februvwary,1911V,
which was the date of the petition for the pass-
ing of the private Act:—~  The Privy Council
held that the condition imposed by the statute
was not one of internal management only, the
non~observance o which could be cured by the
acquiescence of the shareholders, but was a con-
dition of the agreecment becoming inter vires;
and unlesgs it was literally and in reality ful-~
filled the agreement remained ultra vires of

the company, and incapable of being carried out.
In delivering the judgment of the Court Viscount
Haldane said at p.l76:-

"But the case stands quite otherwise when
the act is one which has not, by the
congtitution of the corporation, been put
within its power excepting on the fulfil-
ment of a condition. In that event the
persons dealing with the corporation are
bound to ascertain whether the condition
has been fulfilled. The question which
alternatively applies is, of course, one
of congtruction of the statute authoris-
ing the act. Their Lordships are com-
pelled to dissent from the view taken by
the Judges of the Court of Appeal on this
point, and to hold, with Mr. Justice
Clement, who tried the action, that unless
the condition prescribed by the words™ -
cited from the private Act was literally
and in reality fulfilled the agreement
remained, what it undoubtedly was apart
from the Act, ultra vires of the
appellant company."

I might perhaps also mention an Irish Case the
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report of which I have not seen but it is re-
ferred to in The Doctrine of Ultra Vires by
Street. It is the case of Holmes v, Trench,
(1898) 1 Ir. 319 in which an Asylum Board
entered into a contract for the purchase of
land without first obtaining an Order in
Council. It was held that the whole tran-
saction was a nullity and not capable of rati-
fication.

The proviso to subsection 1 of section 6
of the Ordinence states:

"Provided that no salary in excess of the
rate of $4,800 per annum shall Le &s-
signed to any person under this sub-
section without the prior approval of
the Governor in Council."

I construe this provision as a condition pre-
cedent to the exercise of the power conferred
by subsection (1) to fix remuneration and
appoint. It is not permissive it is impera~
tive. It prohibits the assignment of a
salary until approval is given by the Gover-
nor-in-Council and it indicates, in my judg-
ment, that the Govermor-in-Council was %o
have the means of satisfying himself as to
the conduct of the Board, and, if he thought
proper, of contesting the intended provision
of salary.

There is no doubt whatever that the
Governor-in~Council never approved of the
salary of $11,280: which the Defendant Corpor-
ation assigned to the post of General Manager
in the advertisement of 6th August, 1960, and
in the statement of particulars. Mr. Luckhoo
submitted that the salary of £11,280: was an
amalgamation of the approved salary £10,560:
per snnum and the approved gratuity of $L80:
per completed quarter of resident service.
Alternatively, he submitted that the Court
should presume that approval was given because
the documents of the Defendant Corporation
refer to the salary of the post as #I1;280:
per annum. These submissions bear little
relation to the meat of the Plaintiff's case
and it seemed to me that up to the time when
his examination-in-chief was finished the

10

20

30

40



10

20

30

40

93.

Plaintiff genuinely believed that specific ap-
proval had been given by the Governor-in-
Council for a salary of £11,280: (quite apart
from gratuity) during Mr. Carmichael's tour of
office., In examination-in-~chief on the morn-
ing of lst March the Plaintiff said in reply to
Mr. ILuckhoo:

"I know as a member of the Board that the
salary of the post of General Manager
was $11,280: per annum (fixed): "~~~ 'On
several occasiong I saw the Executive
Council decision and a letter sent by the
Pinancial Secretariat to the General Man~
ager informing him of the salary of
#11,280: tor the post. I saw the letter
for the original salary and I saw letters
whenever the Governor-in-Council had
varied the salary."

Barly in his cross-examination on the following
day 2nd March, the Plaintiff said:

"I am aware of the emoluments of Mr.Car-
michael. He received a salary of $880:
plus a gratuity of g60: per month. This
was $940: per month or 11,280 per year.
Hig gratuity was settled by the Governor-
in-Council when he was firgt employed. 1
do not know that Mr. Carmichael's original
salary was fixed by the Governor-in-Council
at #800: per month. I know that the
Governor-in-Council approved a salary of
£880: for the General Manager of the
British Guiana Credit Corporation. This
ig a certificate from the Treasury dated
22nd May, 1957 showing the salary of the
General Manager as £2200: (£10,560).

I am aware of the provision of section
6 of Ordinance 13 of 1954, I xnow that at
the commencement of Carmichéel's” appdint-
ment he was granted a gratuity of £37.10s.
(£180:) per quarter by the Governor—in-
Council.

From 22nd May, 1957 to the 6th August,
1960 I know that the Governor-in-Council
did not reconsider the salary of the post
of General lManager. So far as 1 know
there was no reconsideration up to the date

of the writ on 1l3th December, 13960
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Towards the end of his cross-—examination the
Plaintiff said:

"I was aware that gratuity and salary
are treated differently in the Ordinance,
No.13 of 1954, I say section 6(1) deals
with salary and 6(2) deals with pensiens
and gratuities. The position was that
separate approval had to be given for
salary and for pemsion and gratuity.
When the advertisement was prepared the 10
salary and the gratuity were merged."

In re~examination the Plaintiff said:

"The salary £11,280: was approved by ‘the
Governor-in~Council in two parts, The
first part $10,560: by letter Exhibit "O"
dated 22nd May, 1957 and #720: approved
by the Governor-in-~Council originally in
1954 as gratuity. It was the gratuilty
and salary which were combined.,"

In answer to the Court the Plaintiff later 20
said that he did not know if the Governmor-in-
Council had given approval for the amalgama~

tion of the salary of £2,200 per annum

(810,560) and the gratulty of £37.10s. per

quarter (£180). His evidence as to the

absence of approval by the Governor-in—Council

is supported by Jaisar Girdhar, the zeting

Chief Accountant of the Defendant Corporation.

He said that no communicatior had been receiv-

ed by the Defendant Corporation from the 30
Governor-in-Council on the question of salary

since 22nd May, 1957. Mr. Kranenburg said

that the Defendant Corporation did not consid-

er the provision of section 6(1) in relation

to the appointment of the Plaintiff.

It is easy to understand what happened.
The Plaintiff mistakingly believed the salary
of the post was £11,280: and had been approved
by the Governor-in=Council. At that meeting
of 29th July, 1960, no one remembered the 40
necessity to fulfill the condition precedent
prescribed by the Ordinance. It was urged
that the approval of a gratuity of £37.10s.
per completed quarter of service and the
approval of a salary of £2,200 per annum as
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stated in the letter of 22nd May, 1957, shotild
be treated as an approval to pay a salary’of
£11,280: or at least emoluments of £11,280:

To accept this proposition is to do violence to
the plain words of the Ordinance in which a
salary is dealt with in a provision to sub~sec—
tion (1) and a gratuity is dealt with in sub-
section (2). Moreover, both the Plaintiff and
Mr, Kranenburg agreed that even if the salary
of £11,280: had been approved the Governor—in-
Council wag at liberty to approve a gratuity in
addition. I nced only refer to what Brett
L.J. said in R. v. Postmaster General (18785 3
Q.B.D. 428 at p, 4313

"That annual emolument is the value of his
appointment +....... 1f he receives a
salary and something additional by way of
remuneration, the value of the appointment
must be the salary and anything which he
gains by the remuneration."

A clear distinction must be drawn between, re-
muneration, salary, gratuity, and emoluments.
The emoluments are the gross value of the
appointment and comprise salary, gratuity and
remuneration. Salary is the reward monthly or
annually for the service to be rendered, and
includes reward during periods of leave.
Gratuity is an acknowledgment of service and is
the pensionable element of a galary which in
this case can only accrue on completed quarter-
ly periods of service. - Remuneration includes
free furnished quarters, travelling allowances
and other benefits of a money value.

Mr. Luckhoo urged that the Defendant Cor-
poration did not plead the failure to perform
the condition precedent and therefore by virtue
of rule 14 of Order 17 of the Rules of the
Supreme Court, the performance of that condi-
tion must be implied. This proposition is
without merit. There is a world of difference
between a condition precedent to the existence
of a cause of action and a condition precedent
to the exercise of a right of action. The
former is a matter of substantive law and the
latter a matter of adjective law. The one a
matter of substance in the formation of a per-
sonal right the other a matter of procedure in
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the vindication of the right in a court.

This view is supported by the Annual Practice
in a note on rule 14 of Order 19 which is the
game in working as rule 14 of Order 17. It
is there stated:

"But an allegation which is of the
"eggence of the cause of action is not
"a condition precedent within the mean-
"ing of this Rule, and must still be
"pleaded in the statement of claim."

I must find that the contract, if it
was made, is ultra vires the Defendant Cor-
poration and is therefore void and wholly un~-
enforceable for the reason that the prior
approval of the Governor-in-Council was not
obtained for the assignment of the salary of
£11,280 per amnum to the post of General
Manager as prescribed in the proviso to sec-
tion 6(1) of the Ordinance. The condition
precedent was not fulfilled.

On the question of costs I should have
felt constrained to deprive the Defendant cor-
poration of its costs if the Plaintiff was a
person unconnected with the corporation. The
facts disclose a miserable lack of courtesy
on the part of the Defendant Corporation.

They disclose a disregard for administrative
propriety. No replies had been sent to the
Plaintiff's letter nor to the letter by the
Plaintiff's solicitor. Indeed, the last
communication received by the Plaintiff was
the letter informing him of his selection for
the post of General Manager. These circum-
stances are, however, not meet to be consid-
ered in awarding costs unless they can be

said to have contributed to the Plaintiff's
position. The Plaintiff was a member of the
Defendant Corporation throughout ™the material
period and was in part responsible for its
omissions. It was his duty to ascertain
whether the condition had been fulfilled -
see Pacific Coagt Coal Mines v, Arbuthnot,
sSUPpre. To gay that the Plaintiff was entitl-
ed to assume that things were properly done is
to misjudge the position. Wright, J., said
insgiggett v. Barclay Bank (1928) 1 K.B. 48 at
P.56:
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"Whatever may be the exact scope of
the rule in Turquand's case I think it
is quite clear on principle and on the
authorities I have already referred to
that it can never be relied upon by a
person whe is put on enquiry."

Having regard however to the issues raised
and to the presentation of those issues before
the Court I consider that justice would be
served by disallowing a portion of the Defend-
antt's costs.

The action is therefore dismissed. The
Plaintiff is ordered to bear hig own costs and
to pay one half of the taxed costs of the De-
fendant Corporation certified fit for counsel.

H.A. Fraser

Puisne Judge
Dated this 19th day of March, 1962.
SOLICITORS:

Zvelyn A, Luckhoo for the Plaintiff
Sage Narain for the Defendant.

NO.l4
(Title as NO.1)
FORMAL JUDGMENT

BEFORE THE HONOURABLE MR.JUSTICE FRASER.
Monday the 19th day of March, 1962.
Entered the Tth day of April, 1962.

THIS ACTION having come on for hearing on
the 28th day of PFebruary, the lst, 2nd, 6th,8th
and 12th days of March,1962 and on this day AND
UPON HEARING Counsel for the Plaintiff and for
the Defendant and the evidence adduced and the
Court having ordered that judgment be entered
for the Defendant for one half (%) costs of De-
fence THEREFQORE IT IS THIS DAY ADJUDGED that the
Plaintiff recover nothing against the Defendants
and that the Defendants do recover against the
Plaintiff one half (%) of their costs of Defence
to be taxed certified fit for Counsel.

BY THE COURT

ADITY4A T. SINGH
DEPUTY REGISTRAR.
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In the Federal NO. 15
Supreme Court

NOTICE OF APPEAL

No, 15
IN THE PEDERAL SUPREME COURT
Notice of
Appeal APPELLATE JURISDICTION

28th April 1962
Territory: BRITISH GUIANA

CIVIL APPEAL NO.25 of 1962.

BETWEEN s CLEMENT HUGH Da SILVA (PLAINTIFF)

APPALLANT
- and -
BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT
CORPORATION (DEFENDANTS) 10
RESPONDENTS .

NOTICE OF APPEAL

TAKE NOTICE +that the Appellant (Plaintiff)
being dissatisfied with the whole decision in
action numbered 2079 of 1960, Demerara, more
fully stated in paragraph 2 hereof of the Supreme
Court contained in the judgment or order of the
Honourable Mr. Justice Fraser dated the 19th day
of March, 1962, doth hereby appeal to the Federal
Court upon the grounds set ocut in paragraph 3 and 20
will at the hearing of the appeal seek the relief
set out in paragraph 4.

AND the Appellant further states that the
names and addresses including his own of the
persons directly affected by the appeal are those
set out in paragraph 5.

2. Decision complained of: The whole decision,
namely $-

(a) that there was a lack of mutuality be-
tween the parties in that there was no 30
enforceable offer or acceptance made by
the Defendant Corporation;
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(e)

(a)

99.

that even if there was a contract, the
said contract was ultra vires the
Defendant Corporation and was void and
wholly unenforceable;

that the Plaintiff should pay one half
of the taxed costs of the Defendant
Corporation certified fit for Counsel.

GROUNDS OF APPEAL

The learned trial Judge erred in finding
that there was a lack of mutuality be-
tween the parties on the ground that no
enforceable offer or acceptance was made
by the Defendant Corporation for the
reason that the document dated 26th
September, 1960 was not executed by the
Corporation in the manner required by
section 7 or section 13 of the Ordinance,
because:

(1) the Respondent (Defendants) in the
document of Admissions tendered by
consent accepted paragraph 5 of the
Plaintiff's Statement of Claim
except for the word unanimously and
therefore admitted and acdepted ~
that the Plaintiff was selected for
the said post as their General Man-~
ager and further that it was their
decision that the Plaintiff be noti-
fied of his said appointment and all
unsuccessful applicants were to be
notified that the said vacancy had
been filled.

(i1)In the answers to the Interrogator-
ies made by the Defendants' Chairman,
the Defendants admitted that the
Board acquiesced that the Plaintiff
was selected. There was no objec-
tion by anyone. The selection of
the Plaintiff was a decision of the
Board. The said meeting decided
that all unsuccessful applicants be
notified that the position had been
filled.

(1ii)The appointment made by the
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Defendants on the 22nd September,
1960, as minuted by the Defendants
was not an offer to the Plaintiff
but was an acceptance by the
Defendants of Plaintiff's offer
and the minutes of the Defendants
Board reads as follows:-

"(1ii) Appointment of General
Menager, vice Mr., W.G.
Carmichael: As the
secretary was one of the
applicants for the position,
he withdrew from the meet-
ing while this item was
being considered.

All applications which
had been received as a re-
sult of the advertisement
published locally and in
the West Indies were then
carefully considered, and
Mr. Clement Hugh Da~Silva,
now Depubty Findan€ial Secre=
tary and Official Member of
the Board, was chosen for
the appointment. It was
decided that Mr. Da Silva
be notified and Government
be advised of the appoint-
ment ; all the unsuccess-
ful applicants to be noti-
fied that the position had
been filled."

These said Minutes were confirmed by the Defen-~
dants' Board and signed by the Chairman and the

Secretary.

(iv) In the circumstances of the case

(v)

the Defendants' lettcr of accept-
ance could not be avoided because
it did not bear the seal of the
Defendants and the Pleintiff could
not in law be prejudiced thereby.
The said letter of appointment

was an authorised communication
authorised by the Board.

Section 7 of the Ordinance No.
13 of 1954, does not make it
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obligabtory for all documents In the Federsal
issued by Defendants to carry the Supreme Court
seal.
' No.1l5
(vi) The Secretary of the Defendants
Corporation gave evidence and stat- Notice of

ed that the Board meeting of the Aopeal
22nd September, 1960, directed and  pATp April 1962
authorised him to issue the said continﬁed
letter, Such special authority
10 issued by the Board would not
necegsitate the placing of a seal
on the letter which the Secretary
wrote.

(vii) The acceptance of the Plaintiff's
services as General Manager was-~an
acceptance by the Board which the
Defendents have not challénged or
guessioned and in law it is not
permissble for the Defendants to

20 gset up or rely on any technical
defect or omission (if there has
been such an omission) such as the
placing of a seal on a letter
intimating the Board's acceptance.

(viii) There was no necessity for the

letter of the 26th September,
1960, to be executed in any
particular manner, since this
letter was not a formael contract

30 and was a letter of acceptance
or appointment duly authorised
be a Meeting of the Board held
on the 22nd September, 1960, with
authority to the Secretary to
communicate to the Plaintiff the
decision reached.

(b) The learned trial Judge erred in finding
that the appointment was ultra vires the
Defendant Corporation, because:

40 (i) Section 6(1) of Ordinance, No.l3
of 1954, gives full and unfetter-
ed powers to the Board to appoint
a General Manager. The only
provision is that no salary in
excess of the rate of foutr thousand
eight hundred dollars (#4,800:)
per annum shall be agsigned to any
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post without the prior approval
of the Governor-in-Council.

The Defendants never raised in
their defence nor at any stage
gought an amendment to their
defence to challenge the legality
of the Salary which was advertis-
ed by the Defendants, and were,
and having regard to the circum-
stances estopped from raising any
such issue of the case.

On the pleadings and on the evid-
ence the galary advcrtised by the
Defendants must be presumed to be
regular and intra vires and the
Defendants have failed to show
anything to the contrary.

The vacancy document which sets

out particulars of the post was
drafted by a Member of the
Governor-in-Council and it must

be presumed that such salary
stated therein was duly authorised.

The Governor-in-~Council by letter
dated 18th Octover, 1960, had
received and considered "the ap=
pointment of the Plaintiff to the
post of General Manager and had
seen and congidered the terms
under which the Plaintiff was
appointed as General Manager and
the Governor-in-Council did not
object to or question the salary
and must be presumed to have
approved of the salary.

The Defendants did not plead any
failure to perform any condition
precedent and by virtue of rule
14 Order 17 of the Rules of The
Supreme Court the performance of
any such condition must be
implied.

There was approval by the Governor-
in-Council to pay the gross amount
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of $11,280:per annum and this was
the amount advertised as salary.
The - amalgamation of two amounts
£10,560: per snmnum approved salary,
and $180.00, per quarter approved
ratuity giving the gross sum of
%11,280:- “non pensionable" did not
affect a basic difference to make
the gross sum offered ultra vires.

(viii)In the absence of positive evidence
to the contrary, and there is no
such positive evidence, the Court
must presume that approval was duly
given and authorised for the pay-
ment of the gross amount of
#11,280.00 per annum as salary.

(ix) The Plaintiff stated that to the
best of his knowledge he did not
know if the Governor-in-Council
had given approval for the amalgam~
ation of the salary and gratuity,
and the Defendants' witness Jaisar
Girdhar was in no position to give
any evidence from which the con-
trary could be inferred as he was
not at the material times the
Chief Accountant or the Chief
Clerk.

(c) The learned trial Judge on the admission

(a)

on the pleadings and on the evidence led

was bound in law to find that there was

a legally enforceable contract between

the Plaintiff and the Defendants and
that the Defendants had committed a
breach thereof and/or a breach of warr—

anty of authority and that the Plaintiff

was entitled to damages in respect
thereof.

The learned trial Judge erred in finding
that the Plaintiff was in part respon-
sible for the Defendants' omissions and

ordered that he should pay one half of

Defendants' costs because -

(i) the Plaintiff did not partiecipate in
any matters dealing with his appoint-
nent;
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(ii) the Plaintiff left the meeting or
absented himself wheéhever there wasg
any discusgioh relating to the
appointment of General Menager and
was not shown to have been blame-
worthy in any way whatever.

4, That the Judgment of the Court below be set
agide and Judgment be entered in favour of the
Appellant, (Plaintiff).

5. Persons directly affected by the Appeal. 10
NAMES ADDRESSES
1. Clement Hugh 196 Camp and Murray
Da Silva Streets, Georgetown.

2. The British Guiana 41 Brickdam,
Credit Corporation Georgetown.

DATED AT GEORGETOWN, DEMERARA,
THIS 28TH DAY OF APRIL, 1962.

Vivian C. Diag

SOLICITOR FOR APPELLANT
(PLAINTIFF) 20

Lionel Tuckhoo
OF COUNSEL.

To: The Respondents (Defendants)
- and -
To: Sase Narain, Esq.,
Lot 217 South Street, Lacytown,

Solicitor for the Respondents (Defendants).
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No. 16. In the
British
NCOTICE OF LEAVE TO RESPCNDENTS TO ARGUE Caribbean
GROUNDS CF APPEAL Court of
Appeal
Take notice that the (Defendants) No.l6.
Respondents have been granted leave to argue the
following :- Notice of
Ieave to
1. That there was no concluded contract Respondents
in that:- to argue
Grounds of
10 (a) There was no consensus ad idem; Appeal
(b) The (Plaintiff) Appellantts letter 18th June,
of the 3rd Cctcber 1960, was a 1963.
counter-offer which destroyed the
offer contained in the letter of
26th September 1960: the letter of
the 3rd October 1960 having intro-
duced terms and conditions which
were not part of the advertisement.
Georgetown, Demerara,
20 Dated this 18th day of June, 1963.
S. Narain
Solicitor to{Defendants)
Respondents.
OF COUNSEL
C.A.F. HUGHES.
No.17. No.1l7.
Judgment
JUDGMENT 19th July,
1963.

This is an appeal from the decision of a
judge of the Supreme Court of British Guiana who
3C dismissed an action by the appellant in which he

asked inter alia for a declaration that he is the
General Manager of the respondent Corporation, and
in the alternative damages in the sum of $100,000
for breach of contract.
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The grounds of appeal may be summarised thus:i-
That the learned trial judge -

(a) erred in finding that there was a lack
of mutuality between the parties on the ground
that no enforceable offer or acceptance was
made by the defendant Corporation for the reason
that the document dated 26th September, 1960,
was not executed by the Corporation in the
manner required by section 7 or section 13 of
the Ordinance. '

(b) erred in finding that the appointment
was ultra vires the defendant corporation based
on his conclusion that there was no doubt that
the Governor-in-Council never approved the
salary of $11,280 which the defendant corpora-
tion assigned to the post of General Manager
in the advertisement of 6th August, 1960.

(c) on the admission on the pleadings and
on the evidence led was bound iii law to find
that there was a legally enforcsable contract
between the plaintiff and the defendant
Corporation and that the Corporation had been
in breach thereof.

(d) erred in finding that plaintiff was in
part responsible for the defendant corporation's
omissions and thereby ordered that he should
pay one half of the defendant Corporationts
costs.

It was urged by Counsel for the appellant that
section 7 of the British Guiana Credit Corporation
Ordinance, 1954, did not make it obligatory for a
seal to be affixed on a document but that the section
was only directory, and further that the corporation
was a trading one and as such was exempted from
putting a seal on contracts and other documents. He
referred to section 14 which sets out the general
functions and orders of the Corporation and to section
15 which deals with the general powers of the
corporation to transact business.

In view of the conclusion at which I have
arrived on this latter issue it is unnecessary for
me to discuss the arguments advanced for and against
the contention that a true interpretation of sections
14 and 15 would place the respondent corporation
under the head of trading corporations and so relieve
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the Corporation of the necessity to use the seal. In the
British
Section 7 of the Ordinance is as follows:~- Caribbean
Court of

"7, (1) The seal of the Corporation shall be kept Appeal
in the custody of the Chairman or the

Deputy Chairman or the Secretary of the No.17.
Corporation and may be affixed to instru-
ments pursuant to a resolution of the Judgment
Corporation in the presence of the Chair- 19th July,
man or Deputy Chairman and the Secretary. 1963.

(2) The seal of the Corporation shall be Continued.

authenticated by the signature of the
Chairmen, or Deputy Chairman and the
Secretary.

(3) All documents, other than those required
by law to be under seal made by, and all
decisions of, the Corporation may be
signified under the hand of the Chairman
or Deputy Chairman or General Manager and
the Secretary.®

Section 13 of the Ordinance as amended
is as follows:-

wl3. Any transport mortgage, lease, assignment,
transfer, agreement or other document
requiring to be executed by the Corpora-
tion, or any cheque, bill of exchange or
order for the payment of money requiring
to be executed by the Corporation shall
be deemed to be duly executed if signed
by a person or persons specially or
generally authorised by resolution of
the Corporation so to sign.®

The judge having considered section 7
which deals with the affixing of the seal of the
Corporation to instruments, and section 13, said:-

"Having considered those two sections the
position seems to me to be this: In order to bind
the defendant Corporation the letter of 26th
September should bear the common seal in manner
provided by section 7 or should be signed by some
person or persons specially or generally authorised
by a resolution of the Corporation. There is
nothing to indicate that Mr. L.E. Kranenburg was
ever alone specially authorised to sign for the
Corporation. On the contrary the copies of the
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two letters tendered by the defendant corporation
show that the Secretary and the Chief Accountant
were given special authority.®

The reference to the two letters is
irrelevant for those were letters to the Manager of
Barclays Bank authorising the Bank to transfer some
money from the Corporationts Account to the current
account of Mr., W.G. Carmichael who was then General
Manager of the Corporation.

The first case A.R. Wright and Son limited
v. Romford Corporation All, Be.R..
referred to by the learned judge is equa.ly inappro-
priate; there was in that case an agreement not
under seal which was executed not accordiug to the
provisions of the statute but in accordance with
the corporationts standing orders. The language of
Lord Goddard at p. 788 quoted by the trial judge in
support of his contention does not help heres

M, .uess but section 74 {2) of the Act of 1925
cannot in my opinion in any way validate an agree~
ment which is not under seal and does not fall with-
in the recognised exceptions, unless, indeed, it be
made under some authority conferred bystatute on the
particular corporation.® The particular power
under standing orders was not authorised by statute.
The second case Cope v. Thames Kaven Dock and Rajl-
way Company (1849) 3 Ex, R. 841 is in no better
category.

In the case now under review the statute
specifically provides that a document shall be deemed
to be executed by the Corporation if signed by a
person Or persons specially or generally authorised
by resolution so to sign.

The confirmed minutes of the meeting of 22nd
September, 1960, record:-

"(iii) appointment of a General Manager, vice
r., W.G. Carmichael: s the Secrstary

was one of the applicants for the position,
he withdrew from the mesting while this
item was being considered. All appli-
cations which had bheen received as a
result of the advertisement published
‘locally and in the West Indies were then
carefully considered, and Mr. Clement H,
Da Silva, now Deputy Financial Secretary
and official Member of the Board, was
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chosen for the appointment. It was decided that In the
Mr, Da Silva be notified and Government be advised British
of the appointment; all the unsuccessful appli- Caribbean
cants to be notified that the position has been Court of
filied."® Appeal
What better authority is required for the - No.17.
purpose of communicating to Mr, Da Silva the informa-
tion that he was selected? Further evidence is - Judgment
that of Mr. Kranenburg, the Secretary who stated:- %82? July,

"l was also an applicant for the post of
General Manager. On 22.9.60 a meeting Continued.
was held in commection with the appoint-
ment. The minutes Exhibit "D" are correct.
When I returned to the meeting the Chair-
man informed me that Mr. Da Silva had
been selected for the appointment. This
was done in the presence of the whole
Board. In the presence of the whole Board
I was instructed to inform Mr., Da Silva
accordingly and all applicants that the
appointment had been filled. No member
of the Board objected to these instruc-
tions. I carried out these instructions.

I see Exhibit "E" dated 26.9.60. I
signed the letter. I wrote it. I showed
it Eo the Chairman before I despatched
it.?

It is my opinion that the Corporation resolutely
determined that appellant had been selected for

the appointment, and that it was with the unanimous
approval of the members of the Corporation at that
meeting that the Secretary was charged with the
duty of conveying the news to the appellant; this
he did. This is in compliance with the statute, I
have dealt with this on the assumption that the
letter had to be signed in accordance with the
terms of section 13 to be effective. On the other
hand I am not convinced that the statute could be
interpreted to mean that a letter by the Secretary
under proper direction at a meeting of the Corpora-
tion conveying information of a result of a ballot
or intimation that someone was selected for appoint-
ment or any other such information, should be under
seal or would require a resolution strictly formal,
Such a letter would not in my view fall within the
ambit of section 7 or 13. If it did, then as
stated above the requirements of the statute have
been satisfied.
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The information brought an acceptance by
the appellant in his letter dated 3rd October, 1960.
The text is:~

n"64 Brickdam,

British Guiana.

3rd Cctober, 1960.
"Dear Sir,

Appointment as General Manager

I thank you for your letter of 26th Septem-
ber, informing me of my selection for appointment
as General Manager. I enclose a draft agreement
of service which I shall enter in with the
Corporation. I accept the appointmeut.

I am reporting the position to the
Government with a view to release as early
as possible. Meanwhile I would ask that no
official announcement be made by the Corpora=-
tion.

Yours sincerely,
C.H. Da Silva."

A draft agreement was attached; this agreement
carried a schedule of terms.

Counsel for the defendant corpora tion
submitted that the appellant was selected on the
terms and conditions as advertised and that the
schedule contain terms which are of variance with
the terms advertised. He urged that the letter
having regard to the circumstances and the
correspondence could only be regarded as a
counter or a conditional offer; the acceptance
was not unreserved.

The paragraphs attacked in the schedule
of terms as derogating from the advertisement
are three in number, paragraph 1, 3, and 5; the
cogrgsponding ones in the advertisement are 6
an .

Advertisement

paragraph 5

"5, The post carries a salary of B.W.I1.
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$11280 (equivalent at the current rate
of exchange to £2,350 sterling) per
annum, a free, partly-furnished house
and leave facilities in accordance
with the Govermmentt!s General Orders
and Regulations in force at the time

(now five days leave for each completed
month of resident service, accumulative

to a maximum of six months, with leave

passages to a maximum of B.W.I. $2500).

O 8 @ 86000080007 000000 0QEN SO PINEOReENSISIIINSOEN

The apgointment is non-pensionable
and will normally be for thres years
in the first instance, but the
duration of the initial contract is
subject to variation to meet in-
dividual circumstances. The
Corporation has under consideration
a contribubtory pension scheme for
its employees."”

Schedule

(1) The engagement of the person
engaged 1s for a period of six
yearst! resident service com-
prising two tours of three
years each commencing from the
date of agsumption of duty
which term may be extended as
provided for in clause 8.

(2) ©v00s0sssreessenssssssetneeS

A free, partly-furnished house
will be provided or an allowance
in lieu.

(1) The Corporation may at any time
determine the engagement of the
person engaged on giving him
twelve monthst notice in writing
or on paying him six monthst
salary.

(2) The person engaged may, at any
time after the expiration of
three months from the commence~
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ment of any residential service,
determine his engagement on giving
the Corporation three monthst! notice
in writing or on paying to the
Corporation one monthts salary.

(3) If the person engaged terminates
his engagement otherwise thaa in
accordance with this agreement he
shall be liable to pay the Corpora-
tion as liquidated damages three
monthst! salary.

Before the merits of the submission are considered
reference will be made to the circumstances which
prompted the appellant to submit a draft agreement.
They are found in the evidence of the appeilant
(Da Silva) and the Secretary of the Corporation,
Mr. Kranenburg. Counsel for respondsnt urged that
only the documentary evidence should be considered
and the oral testimony of appellant and Mr.Kraner-
burg should be avoided. This attempt to exclude
from consideration admissible evidenre received

at the trial and which is relevant must be
rejected.

Da Silva stated:

"About a week later (i.e. after the 26th
September, 1960,) while speaking to the
Secretary over the telephone, he again
asked me how soon would I be going over.
I was waiting on the Financial Secretary
and suggested to him that in the meanwhile
he should prepare the usual agreement of
service. The Secretary informed me that
he did not have the agreement of service
of the previous General Manager and asked
me to get out one of the standard Crown
Agents and Colonial Office forms of
agreement for his use as a draft. I
wrote the letter exhibit "F", I got one
of the Crown Agents and Cclonial Office
Forms and I attempted to modify it and
sent it across to the Secretary for his
use.

LI B BN BN B A 2 BN A BF B BN BB BRI B U EE N B K N B NI B B B IR AN Y N B J

In my draft agreement I mucde certain
additions which were clauses in the
standard Crown Agents agreement of
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service which I used as a draft at the
invitation of the Secretary to help him.
I have a copy of the Crown Agents form.

Under cross-examination

I wrote the Corporation a letter on
3.,10.60, When I said that I would enter
into agreement with the Corporation on
the draft I meant that I would have
entered into the terms of my draft or
alternatively if the Corporation had
amended the draft to comply with the
terms of the advertisement. I would
have entered into such agreement as
modified by the Corporation.?

Kranenburg stated:

"When I gave Da Silva the letter Exhibit
HEM T asked him how soon he thought he
could assume duty. Da Silva said around
the middle of December when he was
finished with the Budget. DtAndrade was
in office at the same time. This con~
versation tock place in D!'Andrade's
office. I think I said that would be
all right.

About one week later Da Silva tele-
phoned me. In the course of the con-
versation he said that he hoped that I
would prepare the service agreement for
his appointment early. My recollection
is that I told him that I did not have
a copy of the agreement signed by
Carmichael but that I knew it was in the
form used by the Crown Agents. I told him
he could get a copy of the form from the
Colonial Secretariat. I asked him to
get a copy and put up a rough draft of
the terms of his appointment for my
consideration.

Re~Examination

I was appointed Secretary on 11.12.56,
In July, 1959, I signed a service agree-
ment. It was a considerable time after
the appointment. It had retrospective
effect,"
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The testimony of the appellant and the Secretary
of the Corporation discloses the reason for the
draft which accompanied the appellantt?!s letter
of 3rd October, 1960, and that it was specially
requestad from him by the Secretary for use as a
guide. It is manifest that it cannct sensibly
be considered as containing a counter offer or
as a document purporting to impose conditions
alien to those in the advertisement. Again the
word fshall™ which is used there with the first
person expresses simple futurity, whereas if
"ywill" had been employed instead that might have
tended to express a resolute determination or a
fixed intention. An examination of paragraph 1
of the schedule shows that it is not repugnant
to paragraph 6 of the advertisement; for the
latter states that the duration of the initial
contract is subject to variation to meet in=
dividual circumstances. The complaint made
against paragraph 3 of the schedule is that it
refers to an allowance in lieu of a free, partly
furnished house, since there was not mentioned
an alternative in the advertisement. Paragraph
5 of the advertisement stated that the post
Carries .OC..O..D.l............‘l"..l."l...

"g free partly furnished house and leave faci-
lities in accordance with the Government?s
General Orders and Regulations in force at the
time .l....l....f'

General Order 209 states:-

7209, A House allowance is an allowance
granted to an officer who is
entitled, by virtue of the appoint-
ment he holds, to free quarters,
but for whom quarters are not
available,®

This objection is therefore untenable. It is
not disputed that at that time the General
Managerts house was occupied by a tenant.

The last complaint is about paragraph 5
of the schedule which refers to determination of
the engagement. It is not suggested that a
termination of engagement clause is not required
nor Ehat such a term is not in the Crown Agentst
model,

I have taken pains to refer to the
objections and to compare the terms in the
advertisement with the terms in the schedule,
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The objection in my opinion cannot find support

in a comparison of the two documents. In the

light however of the evidence my conviction is

that the letter did not contain a counter offerbut is
in effect an unqualified acceptance. Several

cases were cited on the question of conditional
acceptance of an offer and on a counter offer in

a letter of acceptance by an cfferee but the facts
in those cases are fundamentally dissimilar to
those giving rise to this case.

Counsel for respondent corporation
asked leave to submit that the proviso to section
6(1) of the Ordinance was not complied with by the
Corporation andi therefore any contract entered
into, if at all, between the Corporation and the
appellant would be ultra vires.

Appellantts counsel submitted that the
first time this question was raised was by the
respondent?s counsel during his final address at
the trial; that the respondent did not plead it
and that should preclude any argument on that
basis as there was no compliance with Order 17
rule 14 of the Rules of the Supreme Court, 1955.
The leave sought was granted.

The respondent corporation in the
defence pleaded that the plaintiffts appointment
was ultra vires the provisions of the British
Guiana Credit Corporation Ordinance, 1954, and
before us counsel endeavoured to sustain that
plea on the basis of seetion 6(1) of the Ordinance
which reads as follows:-

"6(1) The Corporation shall appoint and
employ at such remuneration and on
such terms and conditions as they
think fit a General Manager, a
Secretary and such other officers
and such servants as they deenm
necessary for the proper carrying out
of the provisions of this Crdinance:

Provided that no salary in excess
of the rate of four thousand eight
hundred dollars per annum shall be
assigned to any post under this sub-
section without the approval of the
Governor~-in-~-Council.®

This plea found favour in the Court below and the
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trial judge expressed his acquiescence in these
terms:

#T must find that the contract, if it was made, is
ultra vires the defendant corporation and is there-
fore void and wholly unenforceable for the reason
that the prior approval of the Governor-in~Council
was not obtained for the assignment of the salary
of $11280 per annum to the post of General Manager
as prescribed in the proviso to section 6(1) of
the Ordinance. The condition precedent was not
fulfilled.®

The approach to this question may be better
appreciated if a chronological account of events
vertaining thereto is shown.

The Financial Secretary in a letter under
date 22nd May, 1957, to the General Manager of the
Corporation said,

"With reference to your letter dated 4th
April, 1957, in connection with increases
in the salaries of the General Manager,
the Secretary and the Chief Accountant,

I have to inform you that the Governor
in Council has approved the revised
salaries as follows:-

(a) General Manager ~ £2200 per annum
with effect from 29th January,l1957.

(b) Secretary " 90000 evecsR0tseronssOS
(C) Chief Accountant eccescscscsccesose'

In addition, from March, 1957, a gratuity of £37.10s.
was paid to the General Manager for every completed
3 monthst! service, thus making the total annual
emoluments (£2200 + £150) £2350 i.e. $11280,

On 4th August, 1960, a letter was written
by the Deputy Financial Secretary to the Chisf:
Secretary, who was a member of the Governor-in-
Council, asking him to cause to be published in
newspapers in Jamaica, Trinidad and Barbados,
advertisement for the post of General Manager of
the Corporation. This advertisement had previously
been drafted by the Financial Secretary, a member
of the Governor-in-Council.

On 6th August, 1960, an identical advertise~
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ment appeared in the local press for the post of In the

General Manager. The text of this advertisement British

was drafted by the Financial Secretary who was a Caribbean

member of the Bxecutive Council, Court of
Appeal

Paragraph 5 of the advertisement stated

that the post "“carries a salary of B.W.I. $11280 No.17.

{equivalent at the current rate of exchange to

£2350 sterling) per annum, a free, partly- Judgment

furnished house Leave facilities in accordance 19th July,

with the Governmentts General Orders and Regula- 1963.

tions in force at the time (now five days leave

for each completed month of resident service, Continued.

accumulative to a maximum of six months, with
leave passages to a maximum of B.W.I. $2,500).

A motor car allowance of $25 a month for official
Jjourneys within the limits of Georgetown and

of 28 cents a mile for official journeys outside
of Georgetown will be paid. An overseas candidate
will be provided with not more than five free sea
passages to British Guiana for himself and his
wife and children (under 18 years) if any, and

on satisfactory completion of service return
passages to his country of recruitment.”

- Paragraph 6 stated. "The appointment
is non-pensionable and will normally be for three
years in the first instance, but the duration of

the initial contract is subject to variation to
meet individual circumstances.?

Paragraph 7 dealt with qualification:
"Candidates for the post must have experience in
business administration, banking or public ad-
ministration, preferably on the industrial side.
They must be capable of appraising the effects of
the Corporationts policies on the economic
feasibility and general loan worthiness of projects
for which loan proposals are made."

Cn 24th August, 1960, the appellant as
an applicant offered his services to the Corpora-
tion in the capacity of General Manager. At a
duly constituted meeting of the Corporation on
22nd September, 1960, the appellantts offer was
approved and he was chosen for the appointment as
General Manager. It was decided that appellant
should be notified and the Government be advised
of the appointment. This was done. The unsuccess-
ful candidates were also notified. It is
interesting to note that there were 26 applicants;
23 were eliminated and three remained from whom
the choice was made - Messrs., Da Silva, Persaud
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and Luck. Da Silva received 5 votes, Persaud 2
and Luck none.

Da Silva was later notified by the
following letter bearing date 26th September,
1960, signed by the Secretary -

"With reference to your letter of
24th August, 1960, applying for the
vacant post of General Manager of this
Corporation, I am pleased to inform you
that a meeting of the Corporation held
on Thursday, 22nd September, 1960, you
were selected for the appointment on the
terms and conditions as advertised: and
I shall be glad to be informed as early
as possible how soon you would be able
to take up the appointment.”

The Secretary delivered the letter in person.
On 3rd October, 1960, appellant signified his
acceptance of the appointment by letter of that
date already set out above.

By letter dated 12th October, 1960,
from the Financial Secretary, the Chairman was
informed that the membership of the Corporation
had been re-constructed. The period of office
of the previous members expired on 25th
September, 1960; the members were eligible for
re-appointment. Only three of the old members,
the Chairman, the Deputy Financial Secretary
and Mr. Gobin Biragie were re-appointed and
Messrs. Andrew H., James, Peter Anderson, Joseph
Jardim, Ivan Remington, Oswald H. Fisher, Jacob
Bowman, and Muntaz Ali were the new members.
Mr. Andrew James was to be Deputy Chairman of
the Corporation.

The Financial Secretary wrote to the
Chairman of the Corporation on 18th October,
1960, the following letter -

"With reference to the Secretary'!s
letter of 26th September and our subse-
quent conversation on the subject of
filling the vacant post of General
Manager of the Corporation, I am
directed to inform you that the matter
was considered by the Governor in
Council.
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I am to ask the Board of the Corpora- In the
tion to re-examine the recommendation British
made as the Government is anxious that Caribbean
the best person available be obtained for Court of
the post. If the Board wishes to have Appeal
the qualifications of any of the candidates
residing in the West Indies further inves- No.17.
tigated, the Chief Secretary would be
glad to enlist the aid of the Government Judgment

10 of the territory in which the candidate 19th July,
is residing. If the Board is not satis- 1963.
fied that any of the persons who have so
far applied is suitable, the vacancy Continued.
ghogld be re-advertised over a wider
ield.

I should be grateful if you would put
the matter to your Board accordingly.®

Appellantt!s letter of 3rd October was

read at a meeting of the Corporation on 27th

20  October, 1960, It was the first meeting attended
by the new members. At the same meeting the
Financial Secretaryts letter of 18th October, was
read to the newly constituted body when it was
unanimously decided to reconsider the matter at a
later date, Mr. James asked and it was agreed that
members be furnished with (a) an up to date state-
ment of the Corporationts financial positionj and
(b) particulars of the staff including pay and
conditions of service.

30 The information requested by Mr. James

was supplied and recorded in the minutes of the
meeting of 25th November, 1960 as follows:-

"British Guiana Credit Corporation
Authorised Establishment

A, Head Office Staff Salary Scale

General Manager $11280 p.a.(fixed)

® 00 Q00000 oo oG ..‘..‘..........."

0686 63800 eO Bt S 2O D SO P OSSO OSSOSO NS

The delay in supplying the information was
40 due to the illness of the Secretary.

At a meeting on 1llth November, 1960, MNr.
Iuck who had received no votes at the previous ballot
when the appellant was selected, was considered suit-
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The minutes record:-

"The qualifications, training and ex-
perience of all the candidates wers
reviewed exhaustively by the Board who
unanimously agreed that Mr. G.E. Luck,
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Natural
Resources, British Guiana, was suitable
for the post and should be appointed.

It was decided, however, not to offer
Mr, Luck the appointment until the
Governor-in-Council had been informed of

the decision and had approved the selection.™”

By letter to the Corporation under date

7th December, 1960, appellantts solicitors wrote
inter alia:~-

"On the 3rd October, 1960, our client by
letter of that date accepted the appoint-
ment. He intimated that he was seeking a
release as early as possible from Government
to take up the appointment which he had
accepted,

On the basis of the offer which had been
made by the Corporation and following upon
his acceptance our client treated his
appointment as being truly made and effected
and proceeded to make the necessary arrange-
ments for his early take over as General
Manager of the Corporation sscceceesesces
Since the letter of offer and the acceptance
by our client for the post of General
Manager, our client has received no further
communication or intimation from the
Corporation and it was not until late in
November when he received a copy of the
minutes of the meeting held on the 1llth
November, 1960, that for the first time he
became aware of efforts to replace him by
another person for the post of General
Manager.

It is our client's claim that he is the
duly appointed General Manager of the
British Guiana Credit Corporation. He is
ready and willing to take over and assume
the responsibilities of his post within
a reasonable short time svevececeass

10

20

30

40



10

20

30

40

121'

No acknowledgement or reply to this letter was ever
made.,

At a meeting of the Corporation on 9th
December, 1960, the Chairman informed the members
of the receipt and the contents of the latter from
the solicitors; the meeting decided after dis-
cussion that the letter be sent to the Financial
Secretary for his information,

At the same meeting members were informed
by the Chairman of the text of a statement
"regarding the appointment of Mr. G.E. Luck as
General Manager of the Corporation, which the
Minister of Trade and Industry intended to release
on 10th December, 1960, at his usual Saturday
morning Press Conference."

On 1llth December, 1960, there appeared
in a newspaper, the Sunday Graphic, a picture of
the Minister of Trade and Industry and Mr. Luck
in a handshake, with comments indicating that the
Minister was congratulating Mr. Luck on his new
appointment.

The writ in this action followed on 13th
December, 1960. On 16th December, 1960, the
Secretary signed Mr. Luck?!s letter of appointment
on the direction of the Corporation.

I revert to the subject of the objection
raised by appellantts counsel.

Paragraph 19 of the defence is as follows:-

w(19) The defendants will contend that any
purported selection of the plaintiff for
appointment as General Manager of the
Defendant corporation was invalid and
bad in law because:-

(a) The advertisements for appoint-
ments were inserted in the news-
papers in August, 1960, without

the prior approval of the Governor-~

in-Council.

(b) The Secretary of the Corporation
was not legally entitled to write

the letter of 26th September, 1960,

to the plaintiff.
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(¢) No approval of the purported appoint-
ment of the plaintiff as a Civil
Servant by the Governor-in~Council
was ever obtained by the defendants;
and

(d) The plaintiffts alleged appointment
was ultra vires the provisions of
the British Guiana Credit Corpora-
tion Ordinance No. 13 of 1954"

It is to be observed that it was not pleaded that
no-approval of the salary was given by the Governor-
in~Council. The gravamen of the complaints

?el?g?d to other aspects (a) (b) (c) and summed up
in .

Order 17 rule 14 of the Rules of the Suprems
Court states:

"Any condition precedent, the performance
or occurrence of which is intended to be
contested, shall be distinctly specified in
his pleading by the plaintiff or- defendant,
as the case may be, and subject thereto,an
averment of the performance necessary for
the case of the plaintiff or the defendant
shall be implied in his pleading.™

The note of the trial judge of the address
by respondent?!s (defendant'sg counsel is as
follows ~

"Contract ultra vires. Bven if there
was a concluded contract the contract was
ultra vires.

Figures of $11280 was unauthorised
merger of gratuity and salary or
unauthorsed figure.

Refers to section 6 of Ordinance 13
of 1954, Advertisement shows not only
payment of salary but also of pension.®

The judge found for the respondent on this
issue and pronounced the contention for the
appellant that on failure to comply with order
17 rule 14 the performance of the condition
precedent must be implied, to be without merit.
He purported to fortify this view thus:~
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"There is a world of difference between In the
a cendition precedent to the existence: British
of cause of action and a condition pre- Caribbean
cedent to the exercise of a right of Court of
action. The former is a matter of Appeal
substautive law and the latter a matter
of adjective law. The one a matter of No.17.
substance in the formation of a perscnal
right, the other a matter of procedure Judgment
in the vindication of the right in a 19th July,
court® 1963.
He referred to the note to rule 14 of Order 19 in Continued.

the Annual Practice (English R.S.C.).

I do understand that ¥an allegation
which is of the essence of a cause of action is
not a condition precedent within the meaning of
the rule and must still be pleaded.® In this
instance I am of opinion that even if there was
want of approval of the sum of $11280 that would
not be the essence of the cause of action: the
Corporation is empowered to make a contract with-
out reference to the Governor-in-Council and does
not need any approval for an appointment; it
is only in respect of an excess in remuneration
over $4800 that approval from the Governor-in-
Council is needed. A sum exceeding $4800 had
already been approved since 1957.

Moreover I do not understand counsel
for respondent to say in the court below or
before us that the appellant had failed to plead
that prior approval had been obtained but on the
contrary appeared to rest respondent?s case on
this, that the evidence established that the
approval had not been obtained; that there was no
authority for merging the salary $10560 with the
gratuity $720, that was the burden of his conten-
tion and was supposedly grounded on the evidence
he sought to elicit from the appellant and to
submit through the defence witness at the trial.
Respondent tacitly accepted that the onus was on
the defence to prove absence of authority and
essayed to do just that.

That was the course the trial took
and that fact is evidenced by the following obser-
vations by the judget "There is no doubt whatever
that the Governor-in-Council never approved of the
salary of $11280, which the defendant corporation
assigned to the post of General Manager in the
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advertisement of 6th August, 1960, and in the
statement of particularse. ¢ o+ o ¢« o ¢ o o & &

I must find that the contract, if it was mads,
is ultra vires the defendant corporation and is
therefore void and wholly unenforceabls for the
reason that the prior approval of the Governor-
in-Council was not obtained for the assignment
of the salary of $11280 per annum to the post of
General Manager as prescribed in the proviso to
6(1) of the Ordinance. The condition precedent
was not fulfilled.®

I think it was right for respondent?s
counsel to be permitted by this Court to address
on the question as to whether the approval was
not given by the Governor-in-~-Council especially
as there was some evidence on that subject ad-
mitted in the Court below without objection by
appellant!s counsel., I am howsver of opinion
that in the circumstances as there was no aver-
ment by the appellant and in the absence of any
allegation by the respondent that the approval
was not obtained, the burden was on the respon-
dent to establish that approval was not given.

I regret that I do not share the certainty of
the learned judge that it was proved that the
Governor-in-Council never approved of the salary,
The sum total of the appellantts evidence viewed
from any angle was that he did not know whether
a salary of $11280 was approved by the Governor-
in-Council for the post of General Manager; he
knew that hitherto a salary of $10560 and a
gratuity of $720 had been approved; in his
view the two sums were "merged" but that was
all., This guess was no doubt based on the fact
that the two sums aggregate $11280. The
learned judge misunderstood the appellant's
evidence to be that there was absence of
approval by the Governor~-in-Council, and found
that fact to be supported by Jaisar Girdhar,

the acting Chief Accountant of the Corporation.
A reference to Girdharts evidence discloses that
he said in examination-in-chief: "I know there
was an advertisement for a General Manager.
There was no communication from the Government
on the question of salary after exhibit "O" i,.e.
in May, 1957%,

Under Cross~examination he said:~

"In June - July 1960, I was a Grade A
Clerk until September, 1961, After that
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I was made accountant (acting). In In the
1960 the accountant was R. Yerrakadoo. British
In 1960, Mr. Yansen was Chisf Accountant., Caribbean
They would be better acquainted with Court of
what happened in 1960 than I would. Appeal
In March, 1957, a gratuity of £37.10s. No.17.
was being paid for every completed 3
months of service.," Judgment
19th July,
I would unhesitatingly say the evidence shows 1963.
with irresistible clearness that the view of the
learned judge in that respect is mistaken and his Continued.

finding cannot be supported.

The question whether approval had been
obtained or not is one purely of fact. The
knowledge on that score was peculiarly with the
Corporation and the Governor-in-Council; the
former, a party in the action, could easily have
called the Financial Secretary, the Chairman of
the Corporation or the Chief Accountant to depone
positively that no approval was given; the
Corporation avoided this but elected to present
one who was only a grad A Clerk, a junior officer
at the material time., He had perforce to confess
he could not speak with any certainty or authority
and to admit that the persons more qualified by
knowledge on that score would have been the Chief
Accountant or the Accountant. This attitude of
the defence is in character with the flexible
integrity mirrored by the Corporation and may be
others actively concerned with the shaping of its
administration. Why was the Financial Secretary '
not called? Could this be due to an unfortunate
timidity? He was the Governmentts Financial
adviser, He was a member of the Governor-in-
Council and used as the channel of communication
or liaison officer between the Governor-in-Council
and the Corporation. He personally drew up the
vacancy notice for advertisement with the aid of
files at his disposal, perhaps secret ones for it
is common and certain knowledge the Governor-in-
Council!s decisions are secret until revealed by
words or action.

It is to be remarked that in 1957 the
General Manager wrote to the Financial Secretary
about his salary and that of other officers; he
received a reply stating that the Governor-in-
Council approved certain sumsg but in 1960, action
moved from the Governor-in-~-Council through the
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Financial Secretary to the Corporation and the
result was reflected in the draft advertisement.
The Financial Secretary sent the draft advertise~
ment for the appreciation of the Corporation. He
was the person who inserted the salary to be paid,
$11280 per annum: he stated in paragraph 4 of
the advertisement, "the General Manager is the
chief executive officer of the Corporation appointed
under section 6 of the Ordinance®. He must have
been acutely aware of the proviso. It was from
his department a request with a copy of the
vacancy notice was sent to the-Chief Secretary,
another member of the Governor-in-Council, to
advertise abroad. The Financial Secretary sent
the copy of the advertisement with salary in-
serted to the Corporation for acceptance; the
Corporation approved. In essence that was the
way the prior approval of the Governor~-in-Council
was signified. It was the fons et oriéo of the
whole affair. It was the same Financial Secretary
who after receiving the letter of the Corporationts
Secretary advising the Government of appellant's
selection for appointment wrote to the Chairman
"I am directed to inform you that the matter was
considered by the Governor-in-Council. I am to
ask the Board of the Corporation to re-examine
the recommendation as the Government is anxious
that the best person available be obtained for
the post," and also stated that if the persons
who had so far applied had not been suitably
qualified the vacancy should be re-advertised
over a wider field. It is significant the re-
advertissment was to be on the same terms including
salary. Why had the word "recommendation® found
a place in the Financial Secretaryts letter? Was
it by inadvertence or by design? The evidence

is that intimation of the selection was sent and
not a "recommendation".lt was a necessary courtesy
by the Corporation to intimate and nothing else,
At whose direction was this letter sent? The
obvious conclusion is that it expressed the view
of the Governor-in-Council.

Between the 22nd September, 1960, when
the Corporation at a meeting selected the appellant
by a majority of votes as the most suitable can-
didate, and the 27th October the next meeting of
the Corporation several events had occurred. 4ll
the members of the Corporation went out of office
as stated earlier, three were re-appcinted and
Seven new ones were appointed.
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The Financial Secretaryt!s letter of 1l2th In the
October, 1960, was followed by another on 18th British
October, 1960, to which reference has already been Caribbean
made. The members were informed of both of these Court of
letters at the meeting of 27th October. At this Appeal
meeting it was decided that a special mseting should
be fixed for a reconsideration of the appointment No.17.
in terms of the Financial Secretary!s letter.

Judgment

It is noteworthy that the post of General 19th July,
Manager was not re-advertised nor were any new 1963.
applications solicited. At a meeting of the 1llth
November it was unanimously agreed that Mr. Luck Continued.

was suitable for the post and should be appointed.
"It was decided however, not to offer Mr. ck the
appointment until the Governor-in-Council had been
informed of the decision and had approved the
selection." The Corporation has full power to
appoint a General Manager without any approval of
the Governor~in-Council and one loocks in vain in
the Ordinance to find anything which says the
Governor-in-~Council must approve the selection.

The appellant was never at any stage
told that his appointment was cancelled or that
steps were being taken or had been taken to review
the question of the appointment of a General
Manager. Added to this curious attitude by the
Corporation no reply was afforded to the letter
of the appellantts solicitors. In these times,
sparse though the occasions may be when moral
standards seem to be honoured, one immutable
principle one would expect to prevail in the
dealings of a corporation of such connexions is
the observance of strict ethical conduct by which
only, in my view, confidence can be maintained.
ghis ﬁrinciple the Corporation has honoured in the

reach.

The pleadings did not raise the question
of approval of the salary by the Governor-in-Council
as stated in the proviso to section 6(1). That
seemed to be a closed chapter, in other words it
was already settled and within the knowledge of
the Financial Secretary, the mouthpisce of the
Governor-in-Council for he was the author of the
text of the advertisement which included the
salary. The raising of the question at the hearing
in the course of the address by counsel or in the
late stages of the case seems only an afterthought.

Further the evidence is clear that a salary
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of $10560, a sum in excess of $4800, had already
been approved for the post of General Manager;
the statutory requirements had therefore been
complied with; the salary is attached to the
post and not the officer. The respondent never
sought to suggest that the approval had been
revoked but the effect of the complaint was,
that authority to call the $720 salary was not
approved by the Governor-in-~Council. It seems
idle to contend that that is the essence of a 10
cause of action; +this contention is more like

a frantic search by an ill fated passenger in a
dark and dismal night in stormy seas for a plank
in a shipwreck, On an analysis of the estab-
lished and admitted facts the conclusion that
the Governor-in-Council did approve of the
salary is inescapable.

On the question of damages 1t was
submitted on behalf of the appellant that he
must be placed in the same position as if the 20
contract had been performed as far as money can
do ity counsel amplified this by saying, that
was equivalent to the amount appellant would
have earned had the contract been observed,
subject to a deduction in respect of any amount
accruing from any other employment which the
appellant in minimising damages could reasonably
have obtained.

The claim, he submitted, should be
calculated on the basis of the normal period 30
of first employment, 3 years, as stated in the
advertisement, in respect of the following
items: -

(a) Salary for that period at $11280
per annum

(b) Pree partly-furnished house
estimated at the rental value
proved, $2700 per annum

(¢c) Leave passages as advertised and
in accordance with the General 40
Orders - $2500

{d) Injury done to the appellant!s
reputation which had resulted
and may result in pecuniaify loss
by difficulty in getting employ-
ment.
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It is convenient first to deal with the last item., In the
This claim is in the teeth of a principle which is British
inveterate and has been hallowed by authority. The Caribbean
principle was clearly enunciated in Addis v. Court of
Gramophone Co. 1909 A.C. 488: 78 L.J.K.B. 1122. Appeal

In this class of case, breach of contract No.1l7.
claims based on injury to reputation causing
diminution of a claimant?!s chances to obtain new Judgment
employment never as a rule sound in damages; there 19th July,
may be exceptional cases but the evidence has not 1963.
disclosed anything that may be deemed exceptional
to take this case out of the rule; the conduct of Continued.

the respondent corporation might have left much to
be desired but in a case of breach of contract
damages are not awarded or aggravated for mere
transgression of a moral code.

Respondentt's counsel submitted that appell~
ant was not in a position to take up his appoint-~
ment about the middle of December as he had informed
the Secretary, because he was not released from
service in the Government,

Appellant had written to the Financial
Secretary on 1léth October, 1960, following his
letter of acceptance of the new post dated 3rd
October, 1960, but had received no reply. On
8th December he wrote to the Secretary, Public
Service Commission {through the Financial Secretary)
adverting to his previous letter and also for
permission to accept paid employment during his
pre~retirement leave Mas is usual®. He received
a reply to this letter on 1l2th January, 1961l. The
Financial Secretary wrote then saying that his
application for leave was approved as from 1l6th
January, 1961, and that the request for permission
to retire at the age of 50 years was under con-
sideration. This permission was later given as
was reasonably and correctly anticipated. On 7th
November, 1945, the then Colonial Secretary of
British Guiana, Mr. W.L. Heape wrote to the British
Guiana Civil Service Association in these terms:-

"3, The Secretary of State agrees that
the provisions of section 2 of the
1944 Ordinance, which amends
section 8 of the Principal Ordinance
of 1933, may be interpreted to
provide for voluntary retirement
at 50 with the approval of the
Secretary of State. The view taken
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by this Government is that an
application to retire at 50 should
normally be granted and not refused
except for strong reasons of public
interest and the Secretary of ...
State endorses that view."

On 7th December, 1960, through his
Solicitors appsellant wrote to the respondent
corporation emphasising his willingness and
readiness to enter upon his new duties within a
reasonably short time; this was an opportunity
for the respondent corporation, if in doubt as to
its truth, to take him at his word and test the
genuineness of the statement. There was no
response, and the repudiation by the respondent
corporation of its obligations became progressively
apparent and insistent. Is it open to the res-
gondent who deliberately kept the appellant at

ay despite his efforts to fulfil his part of
the agreement in the known circumstances to submit
in argument that the appellant was not in a
position totake up his duties? I think not;

such a submission in my view is of specious
acceptaulity.

The appellant in his evidence stated
that he had endeavoured to obtain suitable
employment in and out of the Colony and had
failed, He enumerated some of his efforts.

This evidence was not contested. It was urged
for the respondent, though with not much warmth
or seriousness, that the appellant could have
even at that late stage withdrawn his application
for leave to retire in order to mitigate the
damages.

Indeed the appellant recognised his
duty to mitigate damages and endeavoured to
satisfy this requirement by seeking employment
elsewhere. The dis was already cast so far as
his employment in the Civil Service was concernsd
for he had already taken the final step.

The principal ground requiring active
attention is what is a reasonable period within
which the appellant would secure employment of
a status not too distantly removed from the one
of which he was deprived or in short when a man
in his position could find reasonable employment.,
From the date indicated by the appellant that he
would have been ready to take up employment, which
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by mischance was the time Mr., Iuckt's letter of
appointment was signed (16th December, 1960), to
the time decision in the case was delivered, 19th
March, 1962, the efforts of the Plaintiff to secure
other employment had proved unrewarding even though
some 15 months had expired. Avenues of like em-
ployment in the business world in these parts
appear to be rare if one may judge from the

failure of the appellant, a man undoubtedly well
qualified for the purpose, who had occupied the
High office of Deputy Financial Secretary in the
Government of this colony. I think it would be a
just appraisal to set the period for necessary
compensation to 2 years with the following result:

(a) Salary at $11280 per annum - $22,560

(b) In lieu of partly- furnished
quarters at $2700 per annum -~ 5,400

(c) The equivalent of leave
passages - 2,500

Total $30,460

Counsel for respondent contended that
whatever damages, if any, may be awarded should
be reduced by the sum appellant received from his
accumulated leave, a benefit which had been pre-
dously earned but had to be deferred on account
of the exigencies of the service. I do not
accept this contention. It does not comment
itself to me any more than it would if the sub-
mission included the absorption of the sum the
appellant received as gratuity after his 28 years?
service.

For the reasons I have given I would
allow the appeal, reverss the judgment and order
appealed from, and order that judgment be entered
for the plaintiff (appellant) in the sum of
$30,460 with costs here and in the Court below.

Sgd. Donald Jackson
PRESIDENT

I concur.

Sgd. J.A. Luckhoo
JUSTICE CF APPEAL

I agree.

Sgd. W,A. Date
JUSTICE OF APPEAL
Dated this 19th day of July, 1963.
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No. 18,

ORDER
BEFORE:s
THE HONOURABLE THE PRESIDENT
THE HONOQURABLE SIR JOSEPH LUCKHOO: and
THE HONOURABIE MR, JUSTICE DATE
DATED THE 19TH DAY OF JULY, 1963
ENTERED THE 24TH DAY OF JULY, 1963

UPON READING the notice of appeal filed
on behalf of the appellant on the 28th day of
April, 1962 and the judgment hereinafter
mentioned and the judget!s notes herein:

AND UPON HEARING Mr. L.A. Iuckhoo, Q.C.
and Mr. J. Carter, Q.C. of counsel for the
appellant and Mr. F.H.W. Ramsahoye of counsel
for the respondents;

IT IS ORDERED that this appeal be
allowed and that the judgment of the Honourable
Mr, Justice Fraser dated the 19th day of March,
1962 in favour of the respondents be set aside
and that judgment be entered for the appellant
in the sum of $30,460.00:

AND IT IS FURTHER CRDERED that the

respondents do pay the appellant his costs both
in this court and in the court below.

BY THE COURT
G.A.S5. Van Sertima

DEPUTY REGISTRAR (AG.)
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No, 19, In the
British
ORDER_GRANTING CONDITIONAL IEAVE Caribbean
TO ADPEAL TO HER MAJBSTY IN COUNCIL Court of
Appeal.
BEFORE THE HONQURABLE SIR DONALD JACKSON (IN No.19.
CHAMBERS)
DATED THE 6TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 1963 Order
granting
ENTERED THE 12TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 1963 conditional
leave to
appeal to

UPON the petition of the abovenamed
petitioners (respondents) dated the 22nd day of
July, 1963, for leave to appeal to Her Majesty
in Council against the judgment of the Court
comprising the Honourable the President, the
Honourable Sir Joseph Luckhoo and the Honourable
Mr. Justice Date delivered herein on the 19th day
of July, 1963:

AND UPON READING the said petition and
the affidavit in support thereof sworn to by their
golicitor on the 25th day of July, 1963 and filed

erein:

AND UPCN HEARING Mr, F.H.W. Ramsahoye of

Counsel for the petitioners (respondents) and Mr.
L.A. Luckhoo, Q.C. of Counsel for the respondent
(Appellant):

THE COURT DOTH ORDER that subject to

Her Majesty
in Council.

6th
Segtember,
1963

the performance by the said petitioners (respondents)
of the conditions hereinafter mentioned and subject
to the final order of this Honourable Court upon due
compliance with such conditions leave to appeal to
Her Majesty in Council against the said judgment

of the British Caribbean Court of Appeal be and

the same is hereby granted to the petitioners
{(respondents).

AND THIS COURT DOTH FURTHER ORDER that
the petitioners (respondents) do within ninety
days from the date hereof enter into good and
sufficient security to the satisfaction of the
Deputy Registrar of this Court in the sum of
$2,400.00 with one or more sureties or deposit
into Court the said sum of $2,400.00 for the due
prosecution of the said appeal and for the pay-
ment of all such costs as may become payable by
the petitioners (respondents)in. the event of the
Petitioners (Respondents) not obtaining an
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order granting them final leave to appeal or of
the appeal being dismissed for non-prosecution

or for the part of such costs as may be awarded
by the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council

to the respondent (appellant) on such appeal as
the case may be.

AND THIS COURT DOTH FURTHER ORDER that
all costs of and occasioned by the said appeal
shall abide the event of the said appeal to Her
Majesty in Council if the said appeal shall be
allowed or dismissed or shall abide the result
of the said appeal in case the said appeal shall
stand dismissed for want of prosecution.

AND THIS COURT DOTH FURTHER CRDER that
the petitioners (respondents) do within four (4)
months from the date of this order in due course
take out all appointments that may be necessary
for settling the record in such appeal to enable
the Deputy Registrar of this Court to certify
that the said record has been settled and that
the provisions of this order on the part of the
petitioners (respondents) have been complied
with.

AND THIS COURT DOTH FURTHER ORDER that
the petitioners (respondents) be at liberty to
appeal at any time within five (5) months from
the date of this order for final leave to appeal
as aforesaid on the production of a certificate
under the hand of the Deputy Registrar of this
Court of due compliance on their part with the
conditions of this order.

AND THIS COURT DOTH FURTHER CRDER that
Judgment not including costs of this Court and
the Court below be stayed pending the hearing
and determination of this appeal to Her Majesty
in Council.

AND THIS COURT DOTH FURTHER CORDER that

the costs of and incidental to this application
be the costs in the cause.

LIBERTY TO APPLY,

BY THE COURT
S. Mansoor Nasir

DEPUTY REGISTRAR (AG.)
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No. 20,

ORDER GRANTING FINAL LEAVE TO
TO_HER STY IN COUNCIL

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT
APPELLATE JURISDICTION
CIVIL
TERRITORY: BRITISH GUIANA
CIVIL APPEAL No. 25 of 1963
BETWEEN:
10 CLEMENT HUGH DA SILVA,
Respondent
&Appellant)
Plaintiff)
- and -~
BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION,
a body corporate, incorporated by
Ordinance No.1l3 of 1954 whose office
is situate at lots 20 and 21 Water
Street, Georgetown, Demerara.
20 Petitioners

{Respondents)
Defendants)

BEFORE THE HONOURABLE SIR DONAID JACKSON (IN
C RS)

DATED THE 22ND DAY OF NOVEMBER, 1963
ENTERED THE 25TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 1963

UPON the application of the abovenamed British

Guiana Credit Corporation preferred unto this
Court on the l4th day of November, 1963 for final

30 leave to appeal to Her Majesty in Her Majesty's
Privy Council against the judgment of this Court
dated the 19th day of July, 1963:

AND UPON READING +the said petition and
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the order of this Court dated the 6th day of
September, 1963:

AND UPON HEARING Mr. C.A.F. Hughes of
Counsel for the petitioners and Mr. V.C. Dias
solicitor for the respondent and upon being
satisfied that the terms and conditions imposed
by the said order dated the 6th day of September,
1963 have been complied with:

THIS COURT DOTH ORDER that final leave
be and is hereby granted to the said petitioners

to appeal to Her Majesty in Her Majesty!s Privy
Council.

BY THE COURT
S. Mansoor A, Nasir

DEPUTY REGISTRAR (AG.)

E X HTI B I T S

it T“

Extract from letter Colonial Secretary
to Secretary, British Guiana Civil
Service Association

7th November, 1945,
€.101/7/1/5:

Sir,

XX XX XX XX XX XX

3. The Secretary of State agrees that

the provisions of section 2 of the 1944 Ordinance,

which amends section 8 of the Principal Ordinance
of 1933 may be interpreted to provide for volun-
tary retirement at 50 with the approval of the
Secretary of State. The view taken by this
Government is that an application to retire at

50 should normally be granted and not refused
except for strong reascns of public interest
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and the Secretary of State endorses this view.
XX X% XX b X% XX

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Sgd) W.L. Heape
Colonial Secretary.

The Honourary Secretary,
British Guiana Civil Service Association,
Georgetown,

g

CIRCULAR CF B.G. CREDIT CCRPCRATION
FOR VACANCY CF GENERAL MANAGER.

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPCRATION

Vacancy for General Manager

sk sfoksleslesiedkeslesk

The Corporation wishes to consider
applications by suitably qualified persons for
appointment as General Manager.

2. The constitution and functions of the
Corporation are laid down in the British Guiana

Credit Corporation Ordinance, No, 13 of 1954.

Its purpose broadly is "to promote the economic

development of the Colony and with that object
provide financial credits where necessary and

desirable and to stimulate and facilitate private

investment in the Colony by local and external

capital®., The Corporation consistsof a Chairman,
Deputy Chairman, one official member and not less
than five other members appointed by the Governor.

3. The Corporation's present capital
resources of $11l mn. are being expanded. The

staff is 100 and the Head Office is in Georgetown.
There are 26 branch offices throughout the Colony.

Its credit activities now include loans for
housing and for agricultural and industrial

Plaintiff's
EBxhibits
iTi
Extract
from letter
Colonial
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to Secretary
B.G. Civil
Service
Association
7th November
1945,
Continued.
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development. It will be increasingly concerned
with the stimulation of industrial development.

4. The General Manager is the chief
executive officer of the Corporation appointed
under section 6 of the Ordinance. He is
responsible to the Corporation for the day-to-
day management of its business in accordance
with the provisions of the Ordinance and its
administrative directions. He has the duty of
advising the Corporation in its functions. 10

5. The post carries a salary of BWI $11,280
(equivalent at the current rate of exchange to
£2350 sterling) per annum, a free, partly-furnished
house and leave facilities in accordance with the
Government?!s General Orders and Regulations in
force at the time (now five days leavs for each
completed month of resident service, accumulative
to a maximum of six months, with leave passages
to a maximum of BWI %2,5005. A motor car allowance
of $25 a month for official journeys within the 20
limits of Georgetown and of 28 cents a mile for
official journeys outside Georgetown will be paid.
An overseas candidate will be provided with not
more than five free sea passages to British Gulana
for himself and his wife and children (under 18
years) if any, and on satisfactory completion of
service return passages to his country of
recruitment.

6. The appointment is non-pensionable and
will normally be for three years in the first 30
instance, but the duration of the initial contract
is subject to variation to meet individual
circumstances. The Corporation has under con-
sideration a contributory pension scheme for its
employees.

7. Candidates for the post must have
experience in business administration, banking
or public administration, preferably on the
industrial side. They must be capable of
appraising the effects of the Corporation's 40
policies on the economic development of the
country and assessing the economic feasibility
and general loan-worthiness of projects for which
loan proposals are made.

8. The applicant should give full
particulars of his qualifications, training and
experience.
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9. Applications should be addressed in plain
sealed envelopes marked "Confidential - Application
for appointment as General Manager® to the Chairman
the British Guiana Credit Corporation, 20-21 Water
Street, Georgetown to reach him not later than
Thursday, 15th September, 196C.

HRRI

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF BRITISH GUIANA
CREDIT CORPORATION

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX

STAFF MATTERS: The salary of Mr. W.G. Carmichael
General Manager, and his conditions of service and
the salaries of Messrs. Kranenburg and Yansen,
Secretary, Chief Accountant, respectively were

reviewed and it was unanimously decided to recommend

to the Governor-in-~Council.

(1) +that the salary of the General Manager be
increased from £2,000: to £2,200: per annum and
that his present contract which expires on the
28th May, 1958 should be renewed for a further
period of three years as from the 26th March,
1957. The increase of salary to be payable as
from the 29th January, 1957, the date when he took

over full executive responsibility from the retiring
Three monthst leave in the United Kingdom,

Chairman.
excluding travelling, to be given in 1958 and three
months at the end of the contract. Gratuity to be
the same as that in the first contract, that is
£37.10s.0d. for each three months completed service.
An acknowledgment of the very efficient service
rendered by the General Manager since the formation
of the Corporation was placed on record.

(2) that the salary of the Secretary be increased
from £1,000: to £1,150: per annum, the increase to
be payable as from the 1llth December, 1956, the
date when he was appointed Secretary.

(3) that the salary of the Chief Accountant be
increased from £1,000: to £1,150: per annum,the
increase to be payable as from the 1lth November,

Plaintiff's
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1956, the date when he was appointed Chief
Accountant.

The sterling work of the Secretary
and the Chief Accountant was referred to in
appreciatory terms by the Members.

(4) It was also agreed that a gratuity of £200:
be given to Mr. Yansen for his work in connection
with the Corporationts accounts.
XX X XX XX XX X
Confirmed 10

J.H. McB. lMoors.
Chairman.

4th June, 1957.

it Oﬂ
CERTIFICATE FINANCE SECRETARIAT
(TREASURY; FIXING SAIARY OF
GENERAL MANAGER.

FINANCE SECRZTARIAT,

Public Buildings,

Georgetown, Demerara. 20

BRITISH GUIANA

22nd May, 1957.

II
No. F.S.G.283/55

Sir,

With reference to your letter dated
4th April, 1957, in connection with increases
in the salaries of the General Manager, the
Secretary and the Chief Accountant, I have to
inform you that the Governor in Council has
approved the revised salaries as follows:~- 30

(a) General Manager - £2,200 per annum
with effect from 29th January, 1957;

(b) Secretary - £1,150 per annum with
effect from 1lth December, 1956: and
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{(c) Chief Accountant - £1,150 per annum with
effect from 1llth December, 1956,

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,

C.M, Fraser
Financial Secretary.

The General Manager,
B.G. Credit Corporation,
20-21 Water Street,
Georgetown.

'i!YTT

IETTER B.G. CREDIT CORPCRATION TO
BARCIAYS BANK, D.C.0.

26th February, 1958.
LEK/ep
The Manager,
Barclayts Bank, D.C,O.,
Water Street,
Georgetown.
Dear Sir,

You are hereby requested to arrange for
the sum of $880 to be transferred on the last

business day of each and every month commencing on

the 28th February, 1958, from this Corporationts
general account with your Bank, to the credit of
Mr. George William Carmichael's current account
with your Bank, until otherwise instructed.

Yours faithfully,

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CCRPORATION

2%

e esrsvsoserc0ePrs0arses?”®

By Special Authority

29

...O"..“..'...........

By Special Authority

Plaintiffts
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11 O"
Certificate
Finance
Secretariat
Fixing
salary of
General
Manager.
22nd May,
1957.

Continued.

1{] Y"
Letter
B.G. Credit
Corporation
to Barclay!s
Bank D.C.O.
26th February
1958,
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Extract from
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B.G. Credit
Corporation
26th June,
1959.
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Wy
EXTRACT FROM MINUTES B.G. CREDIT
CORPORATION

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPCRATION

Executive Committee Meeting, 2.30 p.m, Friday,

26th June, 1959,

PRESENT :
Mr. J.H. Mc.B.Moore, Chairman
Mr, W.P. DtAndrade,
Deputy Financial Official
Secretary Member

Mr. C.P.B. Melbourne,M.B.E.
Mr, V.,H, Willems,

Mr. W.G. Carmichael, General Manager,
with
Mr . L.E. Kranenburg, Secretary
xx X% X% XX XX

9. Staff: The Draft Form of Service Agree=-
ment for the Secretary and the Chief Accountant,
embodying the conditions of employuent approved
by the Committee at the meeting of 12th and 19th
September, 1958, was approved with retrospective
effect as from lst July, 1958,

XX XX XX XX XX

Confirmed,
J.H. McB. Moore.

Chairman.,
3rd JUJ'YD 1959u

10

20



143,

LVARY Plaintiffts
Exhibits
ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF GRATULTY
' : nyin
BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION,
Order for
Apr. 30 payment of
Gratuity.
CHEQUE REQUISITION. 7th April,
1960.
BRANCH
ACCOUNT Head Office, Salaries A.
DATE DETAILS AMCUNT
1960
10 Apr.7 Cheque in favour of
W.G.Carmichael for
Gratuity payment to
31.3.60
Seven Hundred and Twenty
Dollars .o e $720,00
P.Y.
Cheque No. F. 17455
Date 1.4.,60
D. Forbes
20 Entd. C.B. 175,
tlzzﬂ "ZZH
RECEIPT FOR GRATUITY Receipt for
Gratuity 7th
Georgetown, Demerara, April, 1960

7¢h April, 1960,

Received from the British Guiana Credit
Corporation 20-21 Water Street, George-
town, Cheque No. F 17455 for the sum of
Seven Hundred and Twenty dollars in
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1] Z 2"
Receipt for
Gratuity 7th
April 1960.
Continued.

iIX"
Ietter
B.G. Credit
Corporation
to Manager,
Barclays
Bank, D.C.C.
22nd April,
1960.

144,
respect of Gratuity payment to 31.3.60,

Signature: W.G.Carmichael.

$720,00

nyn

IETTER, B.G. CREDIT CORPCRATION
TO MANAGER, BARCIAYS BANK, D.(C.O.

22nd April, 1960.

IEK/ep

The Manager,

Barc¢lays Bank D.C.C.,
Water Strest,
Georgetown.

Dear Sir,

With reference to our lethber to you

of

26th February, 1958, you are hereby requested to

transfer immediately from the British Guiana

Credit Corporation'!s current account to Mr. W.G.
Carmichael!s current account with your Bank, the

sum of $3,530 representing the tran:fers which

would normally have been made at the end of the

months of April, May, June and July, 1960.

With this transfer, the instructions
contained in our letter of 26th February, 1958
referred to above, is to cease.

Yours faithfully,
BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATICN

27

® 6000 00 OB OS S s et oo

By Special Authority

27

® ® @9 @0 P S0 S5 00 0O OSSOSO SO

By Special Authority

?
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ny1n
CORPORATION

CREDIT

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CCRPORATICN

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the
Members of the Corporation held at Head Office,
20-21, Water Street, Georgetown, on Tuesday,
26th Aprll 1960, commencing at 9.30 a.m.

PRESENT:

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr,
Mr.,
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

J.H, McB. Moore, 0.B.E.
W.M. Green,

Vincent Roth, 0.B.E,
C.P.B. Melbourne, M.B.E.
Gobin Biragie

V.J. Willems

E.C. Rodrigues

C.H. Da Silva, Acting

Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Official

Deputy Financial Secretary Member

with
Mr, W.G. Carmichael General Manager
Mr, L.E.Krananburg & Secretary
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX

7. General Managert!s House, 274 Peter Rose

Street,

Queenstown:

1t was agreea that

pending the appointment of a new General
Manager, the house should be rented.

8. General

Managerts motor~cars:

XX XX XX XX XX

August, 1960.

Confirmed:

Chairman.

" V2"

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF B.G.

CORPCRATION

It was agreed
that the car should be advertised for sale.

XX XX

CREDIT

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPCRATICN

Plaintiffts
_Exhibits

nylw

Extract from
Minutes of
B.G. Credit
Corporation
26th April,
1960.

11 V2ﬂ
Bxtract from
Minutes of
B.G. Credit
Corporation
10th June,
1960,
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Plaintiffts Bxecutive Conmittee Meeting, 2.30C p.m, Friday,

Exhibits 10th June, 1960.
wyzmn PRESENT ¢

E;tract from Mr., J.H.McB.Moore, 0.B.E. Chairman.
Minutes of Mr, W.M. Green, Deputy Chairman.
B.G. Credit Mr., C.P.B.Melbourne, M.B.E,
Corporation. Mr. C.H, Da Silva, Acting
10th June, Deputy Financial Secretary
1960. with

Mr. L.E. Kranenburg, Secretary.
Continued.

XX XX XX XX o4 XX XX

5. Appointment of a General Manager:  The
Chairman informed the meeting tihat the
question of a successor to Mr. W.G.
Carmichael was still under consideration
by His Excellency the Governor.

6. General Managerts Quarters: Referring to
the question of renting these quarters
Mr. Da Silva explained that Government
would definitely like to have them for a
member of a Mission of Experts who will be
arriving in the Colony shortly, and would
be prepared to pay the Corporation an
economic rent for it.

Members pointed out however, that until
the question of the appointment of a new
General Manager of the Corporation was
settled, it would not be possible to enter
into a Tenancy Agreement- for the quarters
other than on a month-to-month basis.

XX XX AX XX XX XX XX

June, 1960,
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wy3w Plaintiffts
Exhibits
EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF B.G. CREDIT
CORPORATION ny3n
Extract from
BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPCRATION Minutes of
' B.G. Credit
Executive Committee Meeting, 3.30 p.m. Friday, lst Corporation.
July, 1960 lst July,
1960,
PRESENT:
Mr. W.M. Green, Deputy Chairman

Mr., E.C. Rodrigues,

Mr. C.H. Da Silva, Deputy

Financial Secretary, (ag.) Official Member
with

Mr. L.E., Kranenburg, Secretary.

In the absence from the Colony of the Chairman
(Mr. J.H. McB. Moore, O.B.E.) Mr. Green the Deputy
Chairman, presided.

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX

4. General Managert!s Quarters: Mr. Green
informed Members that the General Managerts
house at 274, Peter Rose Street, Queenstown,
had been let temporarily with effect from
23rd June, 1960, at a rental of $225 a month,
and that he had authorised the expenditure of
$400 for the provision of same necessary bed-
room furniture. This was approved,

XX XX ple's XX xX XX XX
Confirmed:
Chairman.,

July, 1960,
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Extract from
Minutes of
B.G. Credit
Corporation
and annexure
29th July,
1960.
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Wy

EXTRACT FRQOM MINUTES COF B.G. CREDIT
CORPORATION AND ANNEXURE

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION

Confidential Minutes of part of the proceedings
of a meeting of the BExecutive Committee, held at
Head Office, 20-21 Water Street, Georgetown, at
2.30 p.m. on Friday 29th July, 1960, and forming
part of the business transacted at that meeting.

- v g B Bt Qs s Gk Gy e ot

PRESENT:
Mr. J,H. McB. Moore, C.B.E. Chairman
Mr, W.M. Green, Deputy Chairman
Mr. C.H. Da Silva, acting Official
Deputy Financial Secretary Member

Mr. E.C. Rodrigues
Mr. Gobin Biragie
with
My, L.E. Kranenburg, Secretary.

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX

1. Appointment of a General Manager: The
attached draft of a notice inviting
applications for the vacant ponrt of CGeneral
Manager, and setting out the terms and
conditions attaching to the appointment
was considered and approved. It was further
agreed that Government should be requested
to advertise the vacancy in British Guiana,
Barbados, Jamaica, Trinidad and the United
Kingdom immediately.

XX XX X XX XX XX XX

Confirmed:

J.H. McB. Moore
5th August, 1960. Chairman.
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BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CCRPORATION

Vacancy for General Manager

sieslesiesieniestieslesiesksiesiesksk

The Corporation wishes to consider
applications by suitably qualified persons for
appointment as General Manager.

2, The constitution and functions of the
Corporation are laid down in the British Guiana
Credit Corporation Ordinance, No. 13 of 1954.

Its purpose broadly is "to promote the economic
devegopment of the Colony and with that object
provide financial credits where necessary and
desirable and to stimulate and facilitate private
investment in the Colony by local and external
capital™®, The Corporation consists of a Chair-
man, Deputy Chairman, one official member and not
less than five other members appointed by the
Governor.

3. The Corpourationts present capital
resources of $11 mn. are being expanded. The
staff is 100 and the Head Office is in Georgetown.
There are 26 branch offices throughout the Colony.
Its credit activities now include loans for
housing and for agricultural and industrial
development. It will be increasingly concerned
with the stimulation of industrial development,

4, The General Manager is the chief
executive officer of the Corporation appointed
under section 6 of the Ordinance. He is res-
ponsible to the Corporation for the day-to-day
management of its business in accordance with the
provisions of the Ordinance and its administrative
directions. He has the duty of advising the
Corporation in its functions.

5. The post carries a salary of BWI $11,280:
(Bquivalent at the current rate of exchange to
£2,350 sterling) per annum, a free, partly-
furnished house and leave facilities in accordance
with the Governmentts General Orders and Regula-
tions in force at the time (now five days leave
for each completed month of resident service,
accumulative to a maximum of six months, with
leave passages to a maximum of BWI $2,500). A
motor car allowance of $25 a month for official
journeys within the limits of Georgetown and 28

Plaintiffts
Exhibits

e
Extract from
Minutes of
B.G., Credit
Corporation
and Annexure
29th July,
1960.

Continued.
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and Annexure.
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Continued.

o

Application
by C.H. Da
Silva for
appc ntment
as General
Manager.
24th August,
1960,

150,

cents a mile for official journeys outside
Georgetown will be-paid. An overseas candidate
will be provided with not more than five free
sea passages to British Guiana for himself and
his wife and children (under 18 years) if any,
and on satisfactory completion of service
return passages to his country of recruitment.

6. The appointment is non-pensionable
and will normally be for three years in the
first instance, but the duration of the initial
contract is subject to variation to meet in-
dividual circumstances. The Corporation has
under consideration a contributory pension
scheme for its employees.

7 Candidates for the post wmust have
gxperience in business administration,  banking
or public administration, preferably on the
industrial side., They must be capable of
appraising the effects of the Corporation?!s
policies on the economic development of the
country and of assessing the economic
feasibility and general loan-wortiiness of
projects for which loan proposals are made.

8. The applicant should give full
particulars of his qualifications, training
and experience.

9. Applications should be addressed in
plain sealed envelopes marked "Ccufidential ~
Application for appointment as General Manager®
to the Chairman, the British Guiana Credit
Corporation, 20-21 Water Street, Georgetown
to reach him not later than Thursddy 15th
September 1960, late applications will not
be considered.

o

APPLICATICN BY C.H. Da SILVA FOR
APPOINTMENT AS GENERAL MANAGER,

Finance Secretariat,
Public Buildings,
Georgetown.
24th August, 196C.
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151.

British Guiana Credit Corporation,

Sir,

Application for appointment as

General Manager

In response to your advertisement in the
Press, I hereby apply for appointment as General

Manager.

2. Particulars of me are as follows:-

10 Qualificationss

Training:
20

Experience:

30

40

Cambridge School Certificate
(Hons.) Distinction and 6
Credits.
Associate Member of the
Chreacerad Institute
Secretaries Intermediate
Certificate of the Association
of Certified and Corporate
Accountants.

Completed one year of Oxford
University'!s residential 2
year course for the B, Litt.
degree in Public Finance and
the techniques of Loau-
Capital and fixed capital
development (Professor J.R.
and Mr. U.K, Hicks.)

My public administration
experience includes service in
senior administrative posts
such as Private Secretary to
the Governor, Clerk to the
Legislative Council,Clerk to
the Executive Council, District
Commissioner, Chief Establish-
ment Office and Deputy Financial
Secretary. {as Chief Establish~
ment Officer, a staff of some
60 came under my control for
some years.)

My present duties include the
assessing of industrial
proposals for tax and customs
duties concessions. These
include projects for stockfeed

Plaintiffts
Exhibits
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by C.H. Da
Silva for
appointment
as General
Manager,
24th August,
1960.

Continued.



Plaintiffts
Exhibits

Experience
contd

" C"
Application
by C.G. Da
Silva for
appointment
as General
Manager.
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1960.
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manufacture, metal and aluminum
furniture, shirts and various
others. This involves an economic
profit assessment which is the

same technique that would be used
in ascertaining the loan-worthiness
of proposals put to the Corporation
for loans.

In 1949 I was specially appointed
as Government Iiaison Officer to
Messrs. B.G. Airways Ltd. which
then had lost over $250,00 a year
on its operations, I improved
the business administration and
developed the Companyts operations
to a point where four years later,
the Company was making a substan-
tall profit, before the Government
purchased the undertaking.

My present duties include the
preparation of the Colonyts 1960-
1964 Development Programme, which
was publicly commended in the
Legislative Council by the Financial
Secretary. An extract of Hansard

of 11th Novmber, 1959, is reproduced:

"Further work was done by Mr, Da
Silva of my office and he too has
done an excellent job. He in
particular had the task of re~
writing and rearranging the lay-
out of the paper, following the
advice given by Mr. Berrill eceoo"

I am thus thoroughly familar with
the economic develcpment proposals
of the country and the Government?s
policy. I have also dealt
successfully with overseas bodies
such as the Colonial Office, the
United Nations Special Fund and
the International Bank for
Re~construction and Development.

I am accustomed to appraising the
effects of the various Government
Development Schemes on the economic
development of the country and have
done this in respect of very large
drainage and irrigation and land

10
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development projects.
Ages 48 years.

3. I believe that the Corporation is the most
successful instrument for capital formation in the
country and that its sound policies have already
borne much fruit. My present salary (allowing for
pensionability and increases proposed but not yet
implemented) is not much less than that of the
post of General Manager. However, I would prefer
to have a hand in the development of the Corpora-
tion into the big national institution which it is
destined surely to become.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,

C.H, Da Silva

Y40

EXTRACT FRCOM MINUTES CF B.G. CREDIT
CORPORATION

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPCRATION

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the
Members of the Corporation, held at Head Office,
20-21, Water Street, Georgetown, on Tuesday,

6th September, 1960, commencing at 9.30 a.m.

PRESENT:

Mr,., J.H. McB. Moore, O.B.E. Chairman
Mr., W.M. Green Deputy Chairman
Mr. Vincent Roth, 0.B.E.
Mr, C.P.B. Melbourne, M.B.E,
Mr. Hamid Rahaman
Mr. E.C. Rodrigues
Mr. Gobin Biragie
Mr. C.H. Da Silva, Deputy
Financial Secretary, Official Member
with
Mr, L.E. Kranenburg Secretary.

Plaintiffts
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24th August,
1960.
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1l4th
Segtember,
1960.
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ABSENT:
Mr, E,C. Grieve - Not in the Colony.
Mr. V.J. Willens - On leave.

XX XX XX XX b'w'd XX

3. Matters arising out of the Minutes:
{e) GCeneral Managert!s residence, 274
eter Rose Street, Queenstown:
It was reported that the house had been

rented on a month-to-month basis at $225 a month
with effect from 23rd June, 196C. 10

Mr. Green stated that he had learnt that
throughout the period of Mr. Carmichaelts
tenancy of the house a night watchuan had been
employed and his wages paid out of Corporation
Ffunds. He was not aware that this arrangement
was known to Members or had their approval. He
suggested that the amount paid in watchmants
wages for the period Mr. Carmichasl had actually
occupied the house should be ascertained, and a
motion by him, seconded by Mr. Roth, that the 20
matter be referred to the Corporationts Auditors
for their comments, was carried: the voting
being - 6 in favour and 2 against.

XX XX XX XX XX XX
Confirmed
J.H, MeB, Moore

Chairman
22nd September, 1960.

.

IETTER SECRET&'HY B.G. CREDIT CORPORATION 30
T0 C.H. Da SILVA

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPCRATION
(Incorporated by Ordinance No. 13 of 1954)

20-21 Water Street,
Georgetown, British Guiana.
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14th September, 1960.
LEK/SeMc

C.H. DaSilva Esq.,

Deputy Financial Secretary,
Finance Secretariat,

Public Buildings,
Georgetown.

Dear Sir,

You are invited to attend a meeting of
the Members of the Corporation, to be held at
Head Office at 9.30 a.m. on Thursday, 22nd
September, 1960, to consider the application
received for the vacant post of General Manager
of the Corporation,.

Yours faithfully,
L.E., Kranenburg
Secretary.
Not attended by me

C.P.

uwp

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES CF B.G, CREDIT
CORPCRATICN

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the
members of the Corporation, held at Head Office,
20~21, Water Street, Georgetown, on Thursday,
22nd September, 1960, commencing at 9.30 a.m.

- o 0t - Bt D R

PRESENT
Mr, J.H. McB. Moore, 0.B.E.
Mr. W.M. Green,
Mr. Vincent Roth, O.B.E.
MI‘. CoPoBo :Melbou.rne, MoBoEo
Mr. Hamid Rahaman,
Mr. E,C. Rodriguss,

Chairman
Deputy Chairman

Plaintiffts

Exhibits
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letter
Secretary
B.G. Credit
Corporation
to C.H, Da
Silva
14th
September,
1920.
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Plaintiffts Mr. Gobin Biragise,
Exhibits with
Mr. L.E. Kranenburg, Secretary.
"DW

Extract from ABSENT¢
Minutes of

B.G. Credit Mr., B.C. Grieve - Not in the Colony
Corporation Mr, V.J. Willems - On leave of absence
22nd Mr. C.H. DaSilva - who asked to be
September, Deputy Financial excused fram attending.
1960. Secretary.

e s Bt B A S M G L o T T an = S S U B

1. The Minutes of the previous meeting held on
Tuesday, 6th September, 1960, were taken as
read and were duly confirmed.

XX XX XX. XX XX XX

3. (iii) Appointment of & General Manager
vice Mr. W.G. Carmichael: As the Secretary
was one of the applicants for the position,
he withdrew from the meeting while this item
was being considered.

All applications which had been received
as a result of the advertisement published
locally and in the West Indies were then
carefully considered, and Mr, Clement H. Da
Silva, now Deputy Financial Secr.tary and
Official Member of_the Board, way chosen for
the appointment. <t was decided that Mr, Da
Silva be notified and Government be advised
of the appointment; all the unsuccessful
applicants to be notified that the position
has been filled.

Confirmed
Jo.H, McB., Moore
Chairman.

27th October, 1960.
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SISt

IETTER SECRETARY B.G. CREDIT CORPCRATION
TO C.H. Da SILVA

Telephone: C 204 & C 205

Telegraphic Address: Credit,
Georgetown, B.G.

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION
(Incorporated by Ordinance No.l3 of 1954)

20-21 Water Street,
Georgetown, British Guiana.
LEK/ep 26th September, 1960.
Mr. C.H., Da Silva,
c/o Finance Secretariat,
Public Buildings,
Georgetown.

Dear Sir,

With reference to your letter of 24th
August, 1960, applying for the vacant post of
General Manager of this Corporation, I am
pleased to inform you that at a meeting of the
Corporation held on Thursday, 22nd September,

1960, you were selected for the appointment on

the terms and conditions as advertised; and I shall
be glad to be informed as early as possible, how
soon you would be able to take up the appointment.

Yours faithfully,

L.,BE, Kranenburg
Secretary

"F"
IETTER C.H. Da SILVA TO B.G. CREDIT
CORPCRATION AND DRAFT AGREEMENT OF
SERVICE

64 Brickdam,
British Guiana.

3rd October, 1960,

Plaintiffts
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Dear Sir,

Appointment as General Manager

I thank you for your lettar of 26th
September, informing me of my selsction for
appointment as General Manager. I enclose
draft agreement of Service which I shall enter
in with the Corporation. I accept the appoint-
ment.

I am reporting the position to the
Government with a view to release as early as 10
possible, Meanwhile I would ask that no
of ficial announcement be made by the Corporation.

Yours sincerely,
C.H., DaSilva,

BRITISH GUIANA

Agreement made the day of
19 Between the British Guiana Credit
Corporation, a statutory body set up by the
British Guiana Credit Corporation COrdinance
No, 13 of l9§4 (hereinafter called "the 20
Corporation?' K2 and ® 0 2 &0 0600000 aCE O8O O SSe
@ 9 0 6060 08 90w 688500008 30 cuOEeOS RS (hereinafter
called "the person engaged®)

1. The Person engaged agrees and under-
takes that he will diligently and faithfully
perform the duties of General Manager of the
Corporation for the term of his engagement,
and will act in all respects according to the
instructions or directions given to him by the
Corporation, 30

2. The salary of the office is at the
rate of Eleven Thousand, two hundred and eighty
dollars ($11,280) a year fixed.

3. This Agreement is subject to the con-
ditions set forth in the Schedule hereto
annexed, and the Schedule shall be read and
construed as a part of the Agreemeant.

As witness our hands theday and year
above written.
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Signed by LK 2N B BB B BE B B BN BN BN B B BN )

(on behalf of the Corporation in the presence of

of the Office of the Corporation.

Signed by LN 2R BN BN BN BN BN BN BN N BN BN AR BN BN AN AN ]
in the presence of

Sign here
across a
sixpenny
postage and
revenue stampe.

Signatl]re o ® ¢ ¢ 06 00 08 ¢ 0 SO P OO DN
Address

Occupation 0 S v 06800 odo s e

¢ 0 0688 0800480888000

SCHEDULE

1. (1) The engagement of the Person engaged
is for a period of six years resident service
comprising two tours of three years each
commencing from the date of assumption of duty,
which term may be extended as provided for in
Clause 12,

(2) The term of the engagement shall be
deemed to be completed on the date on which any
leave granted to the person engaged in respect
of such period of service expires.

2. The duties of the person engaged shall
be those of the chief executive officer of the
Corporation. The person engaged shall be res~
ponsible to the Corporation for the day-to-day
management of its business in accordance with
the provisions of the British Guiana Credit
Corporation Ordinance No. 13 of 1954, and its
administrative directions. His duties include
advising the Corporation on its functions.

3. A free, partly furnished house will be
provided or an allowance in lieu.
4, (1) 1If the person engaged shall be compelled

by reason of ill~health (not caused by his own
misconduct) to resign his office, or if at any
time it shall be certified by a duly qualified
medical officer employed by the Government that

he is incapable, by reason of any infirmity of mind
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or body, or rendering further efficient service,
the Corporation shall pay him his salary up to
the date of such resignation or certificate.

(2) A Certificate signed by a duly
qualified medical -officer employed by the
Government shall be conclusive evidence on the
question whether or not the.person engaged was
compelled to resign his office by reason of ill~
health within the meaning of this clause.

5. (1) The Corporation may at any time determine
the engagement of the person engaged on giving him
twelve monthst! notice in writing or on paying him
six months! salary.

(2) The person engaged may, at any time
after the éexpiration of three months from the
commencement of any residential service deter~
mine his engagement on giving to the Cormration
three months?! notice in writing or on paying to
the Corporation one monthts salary.

(3) If the person engaged terwminates his
engagement otherwise than in accordance with this
Agreement he shall be liable to pay to the
Corporation as liquidated damages three months!?
salary.

6.  The person engaged shall not be entitled
as of right to any leave of absence. But he
will be eligible for leave under this Agreement
in accordance with the Govermmentts Gencral
Orders and Regulations in force at the time (now
five days leave for each completed month of
resident service, accumulative to a maximum of
six months, with leave passages to a maximum of
BWI $2,500$, provided that his work and conduct
have been satisfactory.

7. A motor car allowance of $25 a month for
official journeys within the limits of Georgetown
and of 28 cents a mile for official journeys
outside Georgetown will be paid. =

8. Three months prior to the completion of

the period of service, the person engaged shall
give notice in writing to the Corporation whether
he desires to remain in its employment, and the
Corporation shall thereupon decide whether it
will offer him further employment. If the
Corporation offer him further employment the
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9. The marginal notes are for convenience Da Silva to
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IETTER FINANCIAL SECRETARY TO Letter
CHAIRMAN, B.G. CREDIT CORPORATION Financial
Secretary
Finance Secretariat, to Chairman
Public Buildings, B.G. Credit
Georgetown, Corporation.
ERM. BRITISH GUIANA, %ggg October
I .

I
No. F.S.G. 283/55

18th October, 1960.
Sir,

With reference to the Secretary's letter
of 26th September and our subsequent conversation
on the subject of filling the vacant post of
General Manager of the Corporation, I am directed
to inform you that the matter was considered by
the Governor in Council,

2. I am to ask the Board of the Corporation
to re-examine the recommendation made as the
Government is anxious that the best person avail-
able be obtained for the post. If the Board
wishes to have the qualifications of any of the
candidates residing in the West Indies further
investigated, the Chief Secretary would be glad
to enlist the aid of the Government of the
territory in which the candidate is residing.

If the Board is not satisfied that any of the
pPersons who have so far applied is suitable, the

ggcigcy should be re-advertised over a wider
ield.

3. I should be grateful if you would put
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the matter to your Board accordingly.

I have the honour to be,
Sir, '
Your obedient servant,

W.P. DtAndrade
Financial Secretary.

The Chairman,

The B.G. Credit Corporation,
20-2]1 Water Street,
Georgetown.

1 G1se

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES CF B.G.
CREDIT CURPCRATION

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPURATION

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the
Members of the Corporation held at Head Uffice,
20-21, Water Street, Georgetown, on Thursday,
27th October, 1960, commencing at 9.30 a.m.

1. MEMBERSHIP

The Chairman intimated that he had received
a letter dated 12th October, 1960, from the
Hon. The Financial Secretary, notifying him
of -

(a) the re-appointment of the Deputy
Financial Secretary and Mr. Gobin Biragie as
Members of the Corporationg

(b) the appointment of Mr. Andrew H, James
as a Member and Deputy Chairman of the Corpora-~
tion: '

(c) the appointments of Mr. Peter Andersen,
Mr. Joseph Jardim, Mr. Ivan Remington, Mr.
Oswald H. Fisher, Mr. Jacob Bowman and Mr.
Muntax Ali, as Members of the Corporation:

and that the re-appointment and appointments
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were for 2 years beginning 26th September, 1960.

He welcomed the new Members and expressed
the hope that they would co-operate with him in
carrying out the functions of the Corporation.

All members of the Board were present.

2. DECLARATION OF SECRECY:

Section 9 of the British Guiana Credit
Corporation Ordinance (No. 13 of 1954) was read,
and the new Members, Mr. James, Mr. Andersen, Mr.
Jardim, Mr. Remington, Mr. Fisher, Mr. Bowman and
Mr. Muntaz Ali made the necessary Sworn Declara-
tions before Mr. Herman DeFreitas, Commissioner
of Oaths.

The Chairman also directed Memberst
attention to the provision of Section 10 of
Ordinance No. 13 of 1954,

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES:

The Minutes of the previous meeting held

on 22nd September, 1960, were read by the Secretary

and were confirmed by the Chairman. It was noted
that of the Members present, only Messrs. Moore
and Biragie were at the last meeting.

7. At this stage of the proceedings Mr, C.,H. Da
Silva was granted permission to leave and the
Secretary withdrew temporarily.

8. APPOINTMENT OF A GENERAL MANAGER

The Chairman read (a) C.H. DaSilvats
letter dated 3rd October, 1960, accepting the
Board!s offer to him of the post of General
Manager, and (b) a letter dated 18th October,
1960, from the Financial Secretary intimating
that it was the wish of the Governor in Council
that the Board re-examine the recommendation made
for filling the post of General Manager.

It was unanimously decided that the
matter should be considered at a special meeting
to be called for the purpose; the date of the
special meeting to be fixed when the Board meet
on Friday, 4th November, 1960.

9. Mr. James asked, and it was agreed, that
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Members be furnished with (a) an up-to-date
statement of the Corporationts financial
position: and (b) particulars of the staff,
including pay and conditions of service.
Confirmed:
(sgd) J.H. Mc B. Moore
Chairman.

4th November, 1960.

it G’2"
EXTRACT FRCM MINUTES OF B.G.
CREDIT CORPCRATION

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION

Minutes of the proceedings at a mesting of the
Corporation, held at Head Office, 20-21 Water

Street, Georgetown, on Friday, 1lth November,

1960, commencing at 3.00 p.nm.

S e s v v tas G Sen e a0y

PRESENT :

Mr, J.H. McB. Moore, 0.B.E.

Mr, A.H, James

Mr,. P. Andersen

Mr, M, Ali

Mr., J. Bowman

Mr. O.H., Fisher

Mr, J. Jardim

Mr. I. Remington

Mr. C.H, DaSilva, Deputy

Financial Secretary
with

Mr. E.S. Douglas, Assistant to
the Secretary

Mr. L.E. Kranenburg (indisposed)

ABSENT:

Chairman
Deputy Chairman

Official
Member

Mr. Gobin Biragie
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XX XX xx xx b'o'd Xx
2. The Minutes of the previous meeting held on
Friday, 4th November, 1960, were confirmed and
signed by the Chairman after the following amend-
ments had been made:-

(a) the insertion of "on 29th October,
1960" between the words "Resources' and "a" in
the third line of paragraph 4

(b) the substitution of "“tractor-
bulldozer® for "tractor, bulldozer® in the sixth
line of the second sub-paragraph of paragraph

6(b)(3).

3. Matters arising out of the Minutes

(2) eeececocennnose

(b) The Chairman explained that the
particulars about the Staff including pay and
conditions of service were not yet ready because
of the Secretary!s indisposition.

XX XX XX XX XX XX

9. At this stage of the proceedings Mr., DaSilva
was granted permission to leave. The Assistant
Secretary also withdrew.

10. Appointment of a General Manager: The
matter was considered in terms of the Financial
Secretaryts letter No. F.S.G.283/5511 dated
18th October, 1960 (see paragraph & of the
Minutes of Members meeting, 27th October, 1960).

The qualifications, training and experience
of all the candidates were reviewed exhaustively by
the Board who vnanimously agreed that Mr. G.BE.ILuck,
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Natural Resources,
was suitable for the post and

British Guiana, .
should be appointed.

It was decided, however, not to offer Mr.
Luck the appointment until the Governor in Council
had been informed of the decision and had approved

the selection.
Confirmed:
(sgd) J.H. Mc B. Moore

Chairman.
18th November, 1960.
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EXTRacT Frory

A MINUTES OF B.G. CREDIT
CORPORATION

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the
Members of the Corporation, held at Head Office
20-21 Water Street, Georgetown, on Friday, 18th
November, 1960, commencing at 3 p.m.

PRESENT
Mr. J.H. Mec B. Moore O.B.E,

Mr. Andrew H. James
Mr, P, Andersen

Chairman 10
Deputy Chairman

7e Mr., Muntaz Ali

Mr. Jacob Bowman
Mr. O,H. Fisher
Mr. Joseph Jardim
Mr. Ivan Remington
Mr. Gobin Biragie
Mr., C.H. Da Silva, Deputy
Financial Secretary
with
Mr. L.E, Kranenburg, Secretary.

Official 20
Member

T ot e B S S B Sum e e W

1. Before dealing with the Minutes of the
previous meeting the Secretary not being
present - The Chairman informed the Members
that he had received from the Deputy Chairman,
a draft of a proposed Press Release, copies

of which it appeared to him had been circulated
to all Members. He pointed out that great care
had to be taken in making statements to the 30
Press and he read to them what he considered

to be the sort of statement that should be
released. This he felt varied in but few
respects from what the Deputy Chairman had
suggested.

A general discussion took place and it
was decided that some amendments should be
made in the draft release proposed by the
Chairman - the Official Member to be consulted
in this respect. 40
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2. The Minutes: of the previous meeting held on Plaint@ff's
Friday 11th November, 1960, were confirmed and Bxhibits
signed by the Chairman, after the following hiesk
amendments had been made: Extrant from

Minutes of

(a) the insertion of the words "to the™ B.G. Credit

between the words "Assistant"™ and ®Secretary", Corporation.
appearing after the words "Mr, E.S. Douglas™ in 18th November
the list of names of the persons present at the 1960.
meetings

Continued.

(b) the insertion of the words "attached
herewith®", between the words "statement®™ and "for®
in the third liae of paragraph 8:

(c) the insertion of the word “unanimously"
between the words "who' and "Agreed"™ in the sixth
line of paragraph 10; and

(d) the insertion of the word Ymost®
after the word “was™ at the end of the seventh
line of paragraph 10.

Members asked that their appreciation
of the early issue to them of copies of the
Minutes be recorded.

3. Matters arising out of the Minutes:

XX XX XX XX XX XX

(d) Particulars of Staff and conditions
of Service: See paragraph 3(b) of the Minutes:
The Secretary explained that the statement should
be ready by next meeting.

XX XX o4 X XX XX
5. At this stage of the proceedings Mr. Da Silva
was granted permission to leave as he had to
attend another meeting.
XX bod XX XX XX XX
Confirmed
J.H. McB. Moore.

Chairman

25th November, 1960,
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EXTRACT FRQV MINUTES CF B.G.
CREDIT CORPORATION

Minutes of the proceedings at a meesting of
the Members of the Corporation, held at Head
Office, 20~21, Water Street, Georgetown, on
Friday, 25th Noveémber, 1960, commencing at

3 p.m.

XX XX XX XX XX

3. (b} Particulars of Staff and Conditions 10
of Service - see paragraph 3{(d) of the Minutes:

Copies of the document were distributed to
the Members present.

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION
AUTHORISED ESTABLISHMENT
A, HEAD OFFICE STAFF
GENERAL MANAGER

Salary Scale
$11,2808 p.a.
(fixed)

XX XX XX XX XX 20
Confirmed
J.H. McB. Moore

Chairman
2nd December 1960,

e
IETIER DEFENDANT®S SOLICITORS

TO CHAIRMAN, B.G. CREDIT
CORPORATION

Chambers,
TWHITEHALL,® 30
-2 Croal Strest,
Georgetown,
BRITISH GUIANA,

7th December, 1960

LUCKHOO & LUCKHOOQ
Legal Practitioners,
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The Chairman, .

British Guiana Credit Corporation,
Incorporated by Ordinance No. 13 of 1954,
c¢/o B.G. Mutual Insurance Co., Ltd.,
Georgetown.,

Dear Sir,

We are acting on behalf of Mr. Clement
Hugh Da Silva of 64 Brickdam relative to the
following matter.

Following upon an advertisement con-
taining terms &nd conditions by the British Guiana
Credit Corporation published in the daily news-
papers for the vacant post of General Manager, our
client on the 24th August, 1960, made application
of fering himself for appointment as General
Manager.

In view of the fact that he was a membsr
of the Corporation, our client abstained from
participating in the consideration of any of the
applications and indeed withdrew from the meetings
whenever this item came up for consideration,

On the 26th September, 1960, our client
received a letter from the British Guiana Credit
Corporation signed by the Secretary, Mr. L.E,
Kranenburg, which reads as follows:-

"Dear Sir,

With reference to your letter of
24th August, 1960, applying for the
vacant post of General Manager of this
Corporation, I am pleased to inform
you that at a meeting of the Corpora-
tion held on Thursday, 22nd September,
1960, you were selected for the appoint-
ment on the terms and conditions as
advertised; and I shall be glad to be
informed as early as possible, how soon
you would be able to take up the
appointment.

L.E, Kranenburg
Secretary.™

On the 3rd October, 1960, our client by
letter of that date accepted the appointment. He
intimated that he was seeking a release as early
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as possible from Govermment to take up the
appointment which he had accepted.

On the basis of the offer which had been
made by the Corporation and following upon his
acceptance our client treated his appointment
as being truly made and effected and proceeded
to make the necessary arrangements for his early
take over as General Manager of the Corporation.
Qur client wrote to Government seeking permission
to retire from the Service as early as possible
since he had reached the age where this was his
right so to do. His accumulated leave was
sufficient to take him to the age of voluntary
retirement. He further gave up his own house
and rented the same to live with relatives,
as the Office of General Manager carried with
it a free house to which he proposed to remove.
He so organised his domestic affairs to enable
him to take over in accordance with his afore-
mentioned acceptance after selection by the
Corporation.

Our client as a member of tho Corporation
received a copy of the minutes of a properly
constituted meeting of the Members of the
Corporation held on the 22nd September, 196C,
and in the said minutes the following appearsgi-

"3, (1ii) Appointment of a General
Managerl Vice I, Welre

Carmichael.

As the secretary was one of

the applicants for the position,
he withdrew from the meeting
while this item was being
considered,

A1l applications which had
been received as a result of
the advertisement published
locally and in the West Indies
were then carefully considered,
and Mr, Clement H. Da Silva,
now Deputy Financial Secretary
and Official Member of the

Board, was chosen for the
appointment. It was decided
that Mr. Da Silva be notified
and Government be advised of
the appointment; all the
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unsuccessful applicants to be notified
that the position has been filled."

These minutes were subsequently con-
firmed at a meeting of the members of the said
Corporation held on the 27th October, 1960,

Since the letter of offer and the
acceptance by our client for the post of General
Manager, our client has received no further
communication or intimation from the Corporation
and it was not until late in November when he
received a copy of the minutes of the meeting
held on the llth November, 1960, that for the
first time he became aware of efforts to replace
him by another person for the post of General
Manager.

It is our clientts claim that he is
the duly appointed General Manager of the British
Guiana Credit Corporation.
to take over and assume the responsibilities of his
rost within a reasonably short time. If any
attempt is made to revoke or cancel the said
appointment, our client will have no alternative
but to file a Writ immediately in the Supreme
Court of this Colony, seeking a declaration that
he has been well and truly appointed General
Manager of the said Corporation: that he is the
g? facto and de jure Manager of the said Corpora-

ion.,

Our client will resist any effort or
efforts by whomsoever made or wherever made to
deprive him of his legal rights and status
following his said appointment. We hope that you
will have this matter urgently considered by your
Board especially having regard to the legal
implications and we feel sure that you will be
forced to one conclusion and that is, that no
other person could properly replace our client
as General Manager of the said Corporation in
the light of the foregoing.

Yours faithfully,
Luckhoo & Iuckhoo.
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IETTER C.H., DaSILVA TO SECRETARY
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.

FINANCE SECRETARIAT,
Public Buildings,
Georgetown.

8th December, 1960Q.

Sir,

With reference to my minute of 16th CUctober
addressed to the Financial Secretary informing 10
him of my appointment as General Manager of the
British Guiana Credit Corporation and of my
proposal to retire fram the Service to accept
this appointment, I hereby apply for 10 months
and 25 days vacation leave due to me which I
should like to begin from 19th January 1961, and
for permission to retire from the Service at the
expiry thereof. I shall be fifty years of ags
on 12th March, 196l: my birth certificate is
attached. 20

2. I shall also be glad to receive permission
to accept paid employment during my leave as is
usual.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,

C.H. Da Silva
Deputy Financial Secretary

The Secretary, _

Public Service Commission (Establishment), 30
Georgetown.

(through Financial Secretary.)

no4n
EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF B.G. CREDIT
CORPORATION

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CORPORATION
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Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the
Members of the Corporation, held at Head Office,
20-21 Water Street, Georgetown, on Friday, 9th
December, 1960, commencing at 3 p.m.

PRESENT' s

Mr. J.H. McB. Moore, O.B.E.
Mr., Andrew H. James

Mr., J. Jardim

Mr. P. Andersen

Mr. M, Ali

Mr. J. Bowman

Mr. G, Biragie

Mr. O.H. Fisher

Chairman
Deputy Chairman

Mr, C.H., DaSilva was absent

1. Appointment of A General Manager

(a) The Chairman informed the meeting
that he had received a letter dated 7th December,
1960, from Luckhoo & Luckhoo, Legal Practitioners
acting on behalf of Mr. C.H. Da Silva, intimating
that it was their clientt!s intention to take
action in the Supreme Court of the Colon{ if the
Corpecration attempted to revoke or cancel their
offer to him of the post of General Manager of
the Corporation, which he had already accepted.

After discussion it was unanimously
decided that a copy of the letter should be

forwarded to the Honourable, the Financial Secretary

for his information.

(b} The Chairman also informed Members

of the receipt by him on his arrival for the meeting,

of a letter dated 9th December, 1960, from the
acting Permanent Secretary to the Ministry of
Trade and Industry enclosing for his advance
information a copy of a statement regarding the
appointment of Mr. G.E. Luck as General Manager
of the Corporation, which the Minister of Trade
and Industry intended torelease on 10th December,

1960, at his usual Saturday morning Press Conference.

The letter and statement were taken for
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notification.

The Secretary joined the meeting during
the discussion of the above items and apologised
to the Chairman and Members for being half an
hour late, owing to his having accepted Govern-
mentts invitation to be present at the opening
of the Legislative Council at 2 p.m.

Mr. Remington also joined the meeting
while the above items were under discussion.

2. The Minutes: of the previous meeting
held on Friday, 2nd December, 1960, were con-
firmed and signed by the Chairman.

XX XX XX XX XX XX

4. At this stage of the proceedings Mr. James
asked permission to withdraw, stating that he
was not prepared to consider applications for
loans until the new General Manager was
appointed and had assumed duty. Permission
to withdraw granted by the Chaircun.

XX XX XX XX XX XX
Confirmed
JeHe McB, Moore.
Chairman.

6th January, 1961.

"82"

IETTER FINANCIAL SECRETARY TO
C.H, Da SILVA

FINANCE SECRETARIAT,
P.0. Box 757,
Georgetown,

Demerara,
BRITISH GUIANA

12th January, 1961,

DED A
No. 298 /59

Sir,
I refer to your letter cof 8th December
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to the Secretary, Public Service Commission,
applying for vacation leave and for permission

io retire from the Service at the expiry of your
eave,

2. I am to inform you that your application
for vacation leave of 1C months 25 days has been
approved with effect from 16th January, 1961.

3. Your application for permission to retire
at the expiry of your vacation leave is under

consideration and you will be informed of the
decision in due course.

I have the honour to be,

Sir,
Your obedient servant,
W.P. DtAndrade

Financial Secretary.
Mr, C.H. Da Silva,
Deputy Financial Secretary,
Public Buildings,
GEORGETCWN,

thﬂ
IERTTER FINANCIAL SECRETARY TO C.H.
Da SILVA
FINANCE SECRETARTAT,
P.0., Box 757,
Georgetown, Demerara,
ERM. A BRITISH GUIANA,
T. 298 /59
2nd March, 1961.

Sir,

With reference to your letter of the 22nd

February regarding your application for permission

to accept paid employment during your pre-

retirement leave, in the absence of a request from

you for permission to accept specific employment
during this period His Excellency the Govermor
regrets that he is unable to grant permission as
sought by you. If and when howsver you have
employment in view you should seek permission to

accept such employment, in which event your request
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will be sympathetically considered.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant

27
for Financial Secretary.
Mr., C.H, Da Silva,

A 181 Barima Avenue,
Bel Air Park.

7?7 Rﬂ 10

IETTER C.H., Da SILVA TO FINANCIAL
SECRETARY

A 181 Barima Avenue.
9th March, 1961.

Sir,

. A
Please refer to your letter T.298 /59
of 2nd March.

2e With respect, I thank Hi= Excellency

the Governor for the sympathetic couasideration

offered to any request I may make when I have 20
employment in view. I am aware of the need in
accordance with section 19 of the Pensions

Ordinance for specific approval in each case of
employment by a company.

3. - The work I propose engaging in is the
part-time secretarial duties in the formation

of new limited 1liability companies before they
are registered, the costing of new manufacturing
processes and the improvement of systems of
owner-managed small Business, the valuation of 30
securities etc. and weighing and gauging work (I
am a sworn licensed weigher and gauger)., I
propose to establish my own small office and to
build up a practice. Already I can receive two
briefs - one for costing a small cabering bus-
iness and the other for valuing securities of

an individual. ‘
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4, This type of work does not relate to the

Civil Service. Other skills than those needed in
the Civil Service are involved. Like Mr, J.I.
Ramphal, retired Commissioner of labour, whom I
have seen practising in the Courts as a lawyer -
surely with His Excellency the Governorts permission
- I would wish to practise my secretarial profes-
sion in the same way.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant.
(sgd) C.H. Da Silva,

The Hon. Financial Secretary.

npse

IETTER FINANCIAL SECRETARY TO
C.H, DaSILVA

FINANCE SECRETARIAT,
P.0. Box 757,
Georgetown, Demerara
BRITISH GUIANA.

24th March, 1961.

A
T 298 /59
Sir,

With reference to your further letter of
the 9th March regarding your accepting paid
employment during your pre-retirement leave, in
the circumstances mentioned therein approval has
been given for you to accept paid employment
during this period.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,
??
for Financial Secretary

Mr. C.H., Da Silva,
A 181 Barima Avenue,
Bel Air Park.

Plaintiffts
Exhibits .

i R‘lt
Letter C.H.
Da Silva to
Financial
Secretary
9th March,
1961.
Continued.

npn
Ietter
Financial
Secretary
to CoHo Da
Silva.
24th March,
1961.
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Exhibits
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ILetter
Financial

Secretary to

Secretary
B.G. Credit
Corporation.
6th April,
1961,

1t U“
Extract from
records of
New Widows
& Orphanst
Fund.
2nd March,
1962,

178.
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IETTER FINANCIAL SECRETARY TO
SECRETARY B.G. CREDIT CORPORATION

FINANCE SECRETARIAT,
P.0. Box 757,
Georgetown,

Demsrara,
BRITISH GUIANA

6th April, 1961,
ITT 10
NO. G.360/54

Sir,

I have the honour to inform you that
Mr, J.H. McB. Moore, O.B.E., and Mr. C.H.Fisher
resigned from the Corporation by letters
addressed to the Governor?!s Secretary on the
18th and the 24th of March, 1961, respectively.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant, 20N

27
for Financial Secretary.

The Secretary,

B.G. Credit Corporation,
Brickdam & Boyle Place,
Georgetown.

nwyn

EXTRACT FROM RECORDS OF
NEW WIDOWS & ORPHANSt
FUND 30

COPY

File No. 195 Number 15
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Plaintiffts
Name of : Date of Date of Date of Exhibits
Birth Joining Marriage.
Fund " Ull
Death Extract from
etc. records of
New Widows
& Orphanst
Contributor: Fund.
Da Silva, 2nd March,
Clement 12.3.11 1.10.35 1962,
H.P, Continued.
Wife:
Margaret
Mary 15,12,14 26.7.47
Children:
Clive Hugh 29.10.48
Paul 14, 6,50
Peter 6., 6.55

. I hereby certify that the
above is a true copy of the records of the New
Widows and Orphans! Fund.

R.A, Charles
Secretary.

New Widows & Orphanst Fund.
2.3.62.




IN THE PRIVY COUNCIL No, 43 of 1963

ON_APPEAL |
FROM THE BRITISH CARIBBEAN COURT OF APPEAL

BETWEEN :-

BRITISH GUIANA CREDIT CQRPORATICN

a body corporate, incofporatedby

Ordinance, No. 13 of 1954 whose

Office is situate at Lots 20 and

21 Water Street, Georgetown,

Demerara (Plaintiffs)  Appellants

- and -

CIEMENT HUGH Da SILVA
(Defendant) Respondent

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

CHARIES RUSSELL & CO., GOODMAN, DERRICK & CO.,
37 Norfolk Strest, 30 Bouverie Street,
London W.C.2, Fleet Street,

London B.C.4,

Solicitor for the Appellants. Solicitor for the Respondent.




